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Lifestyle China Group Limited ("Lifestyle China” or together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is an established
retail venue operator based in the PRC. The Group operates two “Fashionable Lifestyle” department stores under
the Jiuguang brand in Shanghai and Suzhou respectively as well as a commercial complex with a gross floor area
of 350,000 square meters.

Targeting the mid-range to upper-end consumer market in China, the Group stands out with its appealing
product and brand portfolios and top-notch one-stop shopping experiences. The Group is committed to
optimising its product mix and enhancing its customer services by organizing promotion activities offering rich
consumption scenarios with an aim to satisfy the diverse needs of local consumers in terms of shopping, leisure
and lifestyle.

In addition to operating its own retailing venues, the Group has been maintaining a strategic equity interest in the
Beiren Group, a leading retailing group based in Shijiazhuang, Hebei Province, PRC. The business activities of the
Beiren Group cover department stores, supermarkets, electrical appliances stores, gold and jewelry shops and
outlet malls. The business performance of the Beiren Group and the share of its results by the Group is significant
to the Group.
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i 2024 proved to be fraught with challenges in the global political and
economic landscape, as the path to global economic recovery remained
arduous and uneven. Amidst this complex interplay of external pressures
and internal constraints, China’s economy demonstrated remarkable
resilience, maintaining overall stability while achieving incremental
progress, with key economic indicators sustaining a positive trajectory.
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Shanghai Jiuguang marked its 20th anniversary in September 2024, a
milestone commemorated through the launch of the “Shanghai Jiuguang
Department Store 20th Anniversary Gala” and a nostalgic exhibition that
chronicled two decades of challenges, achievements, and evolution since
its inauguration in 2004. Throughout this journey, the Group has remained
steadfast in its “Customer-First” philosophy, unwavering in its commitment
to delivering superior products and services. As the retail landscape
increasingly prioritizes personalized engagement and experiential
scenarios, the Group has consistently innovated to align with evolving
customer expectations, striving to offer differentiated services and curated
merchandise. In recent years, the Group has further elevated its offerings
by introducing interactive services via an online membership platform,
refining consumption environments, enhancing shopping experiences, and
propelling the development of personalized service paradigms.

During the year, the Group proactively navigated market shifts by
recalibrating its strategic focus, optimizing tenant portfolios, diversifying
product categories, and deepening the integration of online and offline
channels to drive contextualized consumption and advance green, low-
carbon development initiatives. Notwithstanding these efforts, amid
heightened consumer caution and competitive pressures from
e-commerce, the retail growth rate of offline stores moderated across the
industry, contributing to a year-on-year contraction in the Group'’s total
revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group reported revenue of
RMB1,252.6 million, marking a 7.1% decrease compared to the prior year.
The loss attributable to owners of the Company amounted to RMB20.1
million (2023: profit of RMB87.8 million), with a loss per share of RMB0.014
(2023: earning per share of RMB0.060). In consideration of prevailing
operating conditions and future development imperatives, the Board has
resolved not to declare a dividend for the year.

“ECME - 2RBERBFTMLE - 2IREE
EREPRAERR o T 51 EPER 77 B2 P R IR R X2 4
BT S PREKERROQAIE  ETHR
¥R BTEE IEQEESREREES -

FEAKXBER S -_NEANADERE_TAF
Foplt NEBERTIEBAKAE=-TE
FHABRA| WREBALCSRE  BEE T
TPOF LR T m Bk B A B — TGRS ©
BEZTF AEEREFERIBERZ2LIHE
2OBRARREEENE RERS - BETET
BHEITERECREEZS(LER  ~NEBF
BRI BIRERERSRR IRkEHZE/LR
HEEG o AFR  AEBEBESIARLEEE
FEEBRE  BERETEERE  REABY
BB MEBEALRBEE -

EE—F% AKEREGERETSE(  FBH
BERE  BOARELHFES - EERREHN
WHRAR LR TRE  HBERIEBRZER
BRER - A XHBEEBRNERHEERE L
ZEHERE BTPENZERRAEEREN
& AKREFERLEXERGAKR -

E_E_NMF+_A=+—HILFE KA&EH
BREWAABAREI25526B& T IWERD
71% : KRR A ANEBLEEAAREKE2015E
TT(ZEZ=F g ARMESISHEE L) K
BEEARBKIMAT(ZZE_=F: 8REIAR
B00607L) s ERERIKERERAKRERT
T EBREREFRNIEREAME -

Lifestyle|ChinalGroup]Limited Annual [Reportf2024)



In March 2025, the central government unveiled the Special Action Plan to
Boost Consumption, outlining a multifaceted strategy to stimulate demand
through aggressive policy incentives. This initiative integrates consumption
revitalization with pro-people livelihood measures, introducing more
inclusive and diversified policies while implementing comprehensive
measures to stabilize equity and property markets. The Group stands
poised to capitalize on this favorable environment, where national
priorities are firmly aligned with boosting consumption and expanding
domestic demand. Holding steadfast to the philosophy of “Prudent
Growth”, we remain committed to optimizing operational efficiency.

The Group will continue to harness the strengths of the Jiuguang brand
and its distinctive management model, staying at the forefront of trends to
refine shopping environments, curate diverse events and thematic
exhibitions, and forge a consumption model that integrates shopping with
immersive experiences, thereby delivering one-stop consumption
scenarios for our customers. Simultaneously, we will expand our
membership base, refine loyalty program, and introduce exclusive
privileges for new members in addition to other incentives, ensuring both
new and existing members enjoy unparalleled shopping journeys.

Furthermore, the Group will leverage high-traffic social media platforms to
amplify customer engagement through live streaming and interactive
short-video content. By blending creative storytelling with participatory
formats, these efforts will drive digital-to-physical store traffic, achieving
deeper online-offline synergy. Through persistent optimization of data
analytics and customer experiences, we will deliver hyper-personalized,
omnichannel services to fuel sustainable business growth.

Guided by an open mindset to embrace fresh perspectives and brave
rising challenges, we will advance with unwavering conviction, innovative
thinking, and pragmatic execution to generate enduring value for
shareholders and elevate services and consumption experiences for
customers.

To conclude, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my heartfelt
gratitude to all employees, customers, partners, and shareholders for their
unwavering dedication and support over the past years. It is through this
collective effort that the Group has achieved sustainable growth and
transformative evolution. We eagerly anticipate collaborating with each of
you in steering through challenges while seizing the opportunities that lie
ahead — together!

Lau Luen Hung, Thomas

Chairman & CEO
31 March 2025
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Market Review

In 2024, amidst formidable global economic volatility and conditions, as
well as fierce market competition, China maintained a commendable 5%
growth rate in its annual GDP. This success was underpinned by strategic
rate cuts and robust fiscal stimulus policies. The consumer goods retail
sector, however, exhibited marked differentiation in performance, with
total retail sales reaching RMB43.2 trillion, reflecting a year-on-year rise of
3.2%. Yet, this growth decelerated from the previous year, signaling
persistent challenges within the market.

During the year, China's real estate market remained in a protracted
correction phase, weighing on consumer sentiment and sustaining
weakness in domestic demand. Government interventions, including the
issuance of special treasury bonds, successive interest rate and reserve
requirement ratio cuts, trade-in incentives, and voucher distribution
programs, provided critical market support. To invigorate consumer
spending, Shanghai Municipal Government launched thematic campaigns
such as the “New Year Celebration Shopping Festival”. Our Group
proactively aligned with these policy incentives and stimulus efforts by
implementing customer-engagement initiatives, thereby ensuring steady
development across our retail operations.

In recent years, consumer preferences have grown increasingly diverse,
with heightened emphasis on product quality, brand prestige, and
sustainability. Confronted with this evolving demand landscape and a
languishing consumer market, the Group adopted a multifaceted strategy,
which includes optimizing curated merchandise assortments and
onboarding premium merchants, enhancing omnichannel integration of
offline experiences with digital platforms, championing green
consumption and sustainable practices, refining loyalty program alongside
digital transformation, and elevating both the shopping environment and
service quality, in a bid to navigate current challenges bought by shifting
consumer dynamics.
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Financial Review

Amid a challenging operating environment characterized by subdued
consumer spending and heightened competition, the Group has adeptly
harnessed the distinguished reputation of our Jiuguang brand to execute
signature marketing campaigns. Concurrently, we optimized in-store
environments, refined our loyalty program, refreshed merchandise
portfolios, onboarded premium merchants, and integrated online-offline
sales channels to deliver seamless shopping experiences. These initiatives
have collectively broadened our consumer appeal and laid a resilient
foundation for sustained sales growth.

Revenue and Sales Proceeds

In 2024, the Group's revenue amounted to RMB1,252.6 million, a decrease
of 7.1% from RMB1,349.0 million in 2023. The total sales proceeds
decreased by 11.8% to RMB2,782.3 million from RMB3,154.1 million in the
previous year. The decline was primarily attributable to cautious consumer
sentiment amid heightened economic uncertainty in China, as well as
increased market penetration of online sales. In the second half of 2024,
sales proceeds recorded a year-on-year decrease of 12.1%, as compared
to the 11.5% decrease in the first half of the year, as consumer confidence
remained subdued amid a challenging operating environment. Compared
with sales proceeds, the Group's revenue recorded a lower decline, largely
due to the increase in rental income from office towers of the Shanghai
Jiuguang Center.

Gross Profit and Concessionaire Rate

The Group's gross profit for the year decreased by 10.6% to RMB702.0
million from RMB785.4 million a year earlier, while the gross profit margin,
expressed as a percentage of total sales proceeds, climbed to 25.2% from
24.9% in 2023. When calculated as a percentage of revenue, the gross
profit margin stood at 56.0%, compared to 58.2% in 2023. The average
concessionaire rate declined to 19.5% from 19.7% in the previous year.

Net Loss/Profit Attributable to Shareholders

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the loss attributable to the
Company'’s shareholders was approximately RMB20.1 million, compared to
a profit of approximately RMB87.8 million in 2023. The reverse from profit
to loss was primarily due to: (i) lower gross profit as a result of sales
decline; (i) a 25.4% year-on-year decrease in the Group's share of profit
from its associate, Beiren Group, to approximately RMB138.0 million; and
(iii) decrease in interest income and government subsidies of RMB21.8
million and RMB9.3 million respectively. During the year, the Group
recorded an operating loss before tax, and excluding share of profits from
associates and a joint venture, of RMB61.8 million, as compared to an
operating profit of RMB21.5 million in 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 @575 & 2 #1(&)

Selling and Distribution Costs

In 2024, the Group's selling and distribution costs amounted to RMB578.3
million, a 5.5% decrease from RMB612.1 million in the previous year. This
decrease was largely driven by a combination of factors, including the
Group's sales decline leading to lower rental expenses and related taxes
calculated based on turnover, as well as a decrease in depreciation and
amortization charges due to certain fixed assets becoming fully
depreciated and closure of standalone Shanghai “Freshmart”. The total
selling and distribution costs as a percentage of total sales proceeds rose
to 20.8% during the year, up from 19.4% last year, as the decline in sales
exceeded the drop in these costs.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s general administrative expenses decreased by 2.4%
year-on-year to RMB255.0 million from RMB261.3 million in 2023, the
reduction was primarily attributable to decrease in repair and maintenance
costs of RMB4.2 million during the year. Meanwhile, other general
administrative expenses remained relatively stable.

Staff Costs

Staff costs, excluding directors’ remuneration, decreased by 1.7%
year-on-year to RMB204.9 million from RMB208.4 million in 2023. This
decrease was primarily attributable to decrease in staff headcount and staff
bonuses during the year.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group employed a total of 1,078 full-time
staff, including three executive directors, compared to 1,172 as of
31 December 2023.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

Other income, gains, and losses, which primarily comprise management
fees from concessionaire counters and tenants, fees from third-party
payment platforms, other miscellaneous income, and exchange gains,
decreased by 6.1% year-on-year to RMB204.3 million. This decrease was
mainly due to drop in fees from third-party payment platforms as sales
declined, and a decrease in government subsidies as compared to the
same period last year.

Interest and Investment Income

Interest and investment income for the year decreased by 29.6%
year-on-year to RMB52.0 million, primarily due to the overall reduction in
bank interest rates in China, which consequently led to a decrease in bank
interest and investment income generated from fixed-term and structured
bank deposits.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) & % @ 51 3% & 5 #7( &)

Finance Costs

The Group's finance costs, which primarily consist of interest on bank
borrowings and lease liabilities, amounted to approximately RMB117.6
million (2023: RMB124.2 million) and RMB69.3 million (2023: RMB57.7
million) respectively. The decrease in bank interest expense was
attributable to a decrease in the amount of bank loan and lower interest
rates, while the increase in finance costs from lease liabilities was a result of
the full year effect in respect of the increased lease liabilities following
renewal of the lease for the Shanghai Jiuguang property early last year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and
amortization (EBITDA) for the year decreased by 17.5% to RMB358.1
million from RMB434.3 million in 2023, primarily due to a decline in sales
and revenue.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group's net debt (defined as cash and cash
equivalents, bank deposits, structured bank deposits, and amounts due
from associates, less total bank borrowings, amounts due to a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, and amounts due to a joint
venture) decreased to approximately RMB196.8 million from
approximately RMB405.4 million as of 31 December 2023. This decrease in
net debt was primarily due to an increase in operating cash and dividends
received and receivable from associates during the year.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group's cash and cash equivalents, bank
deposits and structured bank deposits amounted to approximately
RMB2,953.3 million (31 December 2023: RMB2,823.6 million), of which
RMB70.5 million was in Hong Kong Dollars (HKD) held in Hong Kong. The
remaining cash balances were predominantly held in mainland China, with
approximately 96.6% denominated in Renminbi (RMB) and 3.4% in United
States Dollars (USD).

The increase in cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and structured
bank deposits was primarily attributable to: (i) net cash inflow from
operating activities, and (ii) an increase in dividends received from
associates and a joint venture during the year. At the end of the year, the
Group's gearing ratio, defined as bank borrowings divided by equity
attributable to owners of the Company, eased to 34.5% from 34.9% in the
previous year as a result of decrease in bank borrowings.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had bank borrowings amounted to
RMB3,238 million (31 December 2023: RMB3,278 million) drawn under the
secured 15-year term loan of RMB3,300 million (31 December 2023:
RMB3,300 million). The 15-year term loan is subject to repayment in the
amount of RMB6&0 million in 2025, RMB510 million over the years from 2026
to 2029, and the remaining RMB2,648 million over the years from 2030 to
year 2037, on a progressive basis.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 @575 & 2 #1(&)

Foreign Exchange Management

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries in China is
Renminbi, in which majority of the Group's transactions are denominated.
As described in the “Liquidity and Financial Resources” section above, a
small portion of the Group's monetary assets are foreign currencies (Hong
Kong dollars and United States dollars).

Given that majority of the Group’s revenue and expenses, as well as
borrowings and capital expenditures are denominated in Renminbi, and
the Hong Kong dollar cash balance held in Hong Kong is used to settle
operating expenses incurred outside of mainland China, the Group
currently does not require a comprehensive foreign currency hedging
policy. Nevertheless, the management will monitor the Group's foreign
currency exposure and, if necessary, will consider taking appropriate
measures to mitigate any significant potential foreign currency risk.

Pledge of Assets

As of 31 December 2024, the Group has pledged certain of its assets,
comprising (i) properties, plant, and equipment located in China, with a
carrying amount of approximately RMB3,529 million (31 December 2023:
RMB3,631 million); and (ii) right-of-use assets situated in China, with a
carrying amount of approximately RMB1,518 million (31 December 2023:
RMB1,569 million), for securing bank loan facility extended to the Group in
the amount of RMB3,300 million (31 December 2023: RMB3,300 million).
The outstanding loan amount of this facility as of 31 December 2024 was
RMB3,238 million (31 December 2023: RMB3,278 million).

Contingent Liabilities
As of 31 December 2024, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and Disposals
During the year, the Group did not make any significant investment, nor
were there any material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates
and joint venture.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) & % @ 51 3% & 5 #7( &)

Review of Operations

During the year, influenced by multifaceted factors including
socioeconomic dynamics, technological advancements, and demographic
shifts, consumers demonstrated heightened awareness of health,
environmental consciousness, growing brand loyalty, and increased
demand for personalized products. Concurrently, a rising number of
consumers opted for online shopping channels. To sustain competitive
advantage, the Group proactively adjusted its market strategies by
tailoring merchandise categories and optimizing merchant portfolios to
cater to local market conditions, while persistently promoting
scenario-based consumption to enhance omnichannel integration and
advance green and low-carbon development. These efforts were
dedicated to elevating customer shopping experiences and addressing
evolving consumer needs.

During the year, the Group focused on strengthening online member
engagement to improve quality and efficiency of customer interactions, in
addition to channeling online members to offline stores. Simultaneously,
the Group optimized its online marketplace by facilitating click-and-collect
services, thereby boosting offline sales opportunities. Since the second
half of 2024, the Group has also leveraged the Douyin platform to host
live-streaming events across diverse scenarios, driving traffic growth and
expanding omnichannel sales.

Shanghai Jiuguang Center ("JGC")

Strategically located in the Daning CBD, Jing'an District, JGC stands as the
Group's inaugural flagship complex, harmoniously blending shopping,
leisure, entertainment, and business functions. Housing nearly 500 tenants,
the venue curates a diverse portfolio spanning high-end cosmetics,
contemporary lifestyle brands, fashion, sports, and domestic trendsetters,
while incorporating premium amenities such as an IMAX cinema and
sports and fitness facilities to cater to multifaceted lifestyle needs. To
elevate customer experiences and stimulate spending, JGC rolled out a
series of thematic campaigns in 2024. In early spring, the “Floral Vitality”
initiative transformed a 1,000-square-meter space into an immersive
healing environment, complemented by a plant adoption program and
Healing Garden Concert series. These activities allowed shoppers to
engage with eco-conscious values while enjoying retail therapy. During the
National Low-Carbon Day, JGC organized vibrant zero-waste and
low-carbon awareness campaigns. By promoting biodegradable and
recyclable shopping bags, the venue not only reinforced environmental
stewardship but also infused shopping journeys with educational value and
interactive delight. Aligning with the “Consumer Promotion Year”
initiative, JGC actively supported the “"China Coordinates City
Orienteering Challenge — 2024 Shanghai.” During the event, JGC offered
targeted perks across sports, dining, shopping, and leisure categories,
garnering widespread acclaim from participants. In November
and December, JGC marked its third anniversary with the “Radiant
Rebirth” campaign. Highlights included ice-skating performances, carnival
parades, customized birthday cake distributions, and circus-themed
parade, delivering immersive winter experiences that resonated deeply
with customers. Through a meticulously planned calendar of events, JGC
sustained customer curiosity and fostered repeat visits, ensuring the venue
remained a dynamic hub of discovery and engagement.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 @575 & 2 #1(&)

While JGC's sales proceeds witnessed a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 5.1% to RMB294.3 million in 2024, its total revenue rose by
4.3% to RMB325.7 million, buoyed by increased rental income from the
office towers. Operational metrics revealed a 9.9% year-on-year growth in
average daily footfall to approximately 34,300 visitors, as well as a
0.9-percentage-point increase in stay-and-buy ratio to 76.2%, reflecting the
continuous update of merchandises and stores to meet the consumers’
demand after three years of operations in JGC. However, the average
ticket size declined from RMB195 to RMB175, indicating a prudent
consumer spending pattern.

Amid China’s gradual economic recovery and a subdued commercial real
estate market, the Group continued to prioritize leasing efforts for JGC's
twin office towers. By year-end, the East Tower and West Tower achieved
occupancy rates of approximately 63% and 16% respectively, generated
rental income of approximately RMB38.0 million for 2024, with tenants
spanning logistics, professional services, and e-commerce sectors.

Shanghai Jiuguang Department Store (“Shanghai Jiuguang")

Since the rise of shopping malls and innovative commercial complexes, the
department store sector has confronted significant challenges. As a
renowned department store on Shanghai’s Nanjing Road West, Shanghai
Jiuguang continues to leverage the strength of its brand heritage,
upholding an agile yet disciplined management approach and a
meticulous service culture that maintains its position as one of the city’s
most locally popular department stores in Shanghai.

Amid shifting consumer behaviors, volatile market conditions, and
declining per capita retail spending, Shanghai Jiuguang proactively
adjusted its operational strategies during the year. The store continued to
adjust its tenant mix, introducing regional and national debut stores while
aligning merchandise offerings with evolving customer preferences. This
dynamic approach ensured shoppers benefited from an innovative and
diversified retail experience.

During the year, Shanghai Jiuguang hosted a series of meaningful events.
In April, it teamed up with multiple government agencies to present the
"2024 Shanghai International Cosmetic Festival & Jing’an 5 ¢ 5 Shopping
Festival”, driving cosmetics segment growth through vibrant activities
while offering consumers enhanced product choices and experiences.
During the summer holiday, Shanghai Jiuguang co-organized the "Art+1
Charity Bazaar”, engaging over 100 participating families in a fundraising
effort to support autistic children and their families. In the middle of the
year, Shanghai Jiuguang debuted the “Lane 1618 Market” on Nanjing
Road West, featuring rotating pop-ups from 30+ boutique vendors to
infuse outdoor shopping excitement. Commemorating its 20th
anniversary, Shanghai Jiuguang launched the "Two Decades of
Togetherness” campaign, introducing diverse promotional perks to
stimulate spending.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) & % @ 51 3% & 5 #7( &)

In 2024, affected by the diversification of customer purchasing channels
and the adjustments to surrounding underground exit points, Shanghai
Jiuguang recorded a 9.5% year-on-year decline in average daily footfall to
46,700 visitors. However, average stay-and-buy ratio improved by 2.9
percentage points to 39.9%, while average ticket size dropped by 4.1% to
RMB374. Consequently, total annual sales proceeds decreased by 8.3% to
RMB1,777.0 million, with average concessionaire rate dipping marginally
by 0.4 percentage points to approximately 22.5%.

Suzhou Jiuguang Department Store (“Suzhou Jiuguang”)

Amid a sluggish retail market and intense competition within the
department store sector, Suzhou Jiuguang sustained its brand equity to
organize various promotion events in 2024. During the Spring Festival,
Suzhou Jiuguang partnered with master paper-cutters to showcase
intangible cultural heritage, offering shoppers immersive visual
experiences. "Blossoming Goddess Festival” was held in March, followed
by the annual "VIP Mid-Year Appreciation Event”—both designed to
stimulate spending through diverse promotional perks. Heeding the call of
Suzhou government, Suzhou Jiuguang organised in the “5 5 Shopping
Festival” as well as Mid-Autumn and National Day promotions, effectively
boosting customer spending sentiment. Despite these efforts, prolonged
economic downturns, consumption downgrades, and regional commercial
disparities resulted in negative revenue growth despite increased average
daily footfall. Total sales proceeds fell by 19.9% year-on-year to RMB704.5
million, average daily footfall rose by 11.8% to roughly 15,200 visitors.
However, stay-and-buy ratio and average ticket size fell by 6.9 percentage
points and 13.1% respectively, reaching 48.6% and RMB403. Average
concessionaire rate edged down by 0.1 percentage points to 15.2%.

Dalian and Shenyang Property

The Group’s commercial properties in Dalian and Shenyang still remained
vacant in 2024, incurring total cash outflows of approximately RMB17.0
million for upkeeping and maintenance.

Standalone “Freshmart” Operation
Following expiry of the lease, the Group’s "Freshmart” in Shanghai’s
Changning District has ceased operations since March 2024.

Investments in Associates

The Group holds a strategic equity stake in Beiren Group, a leading retail
conglomerate based in Shijiazhuang City, Hebei Province, China. During
the year, while the home appliance category saw a substantial surge in
sales, buoyed by the government’s trade-in subsidy program for
household appliances, local market was concurrently impacted by a
downturn in consumer sentiment. This led to a substantial sales decline in
luxury segments such as jewelry. Consequently, Beiren Group's sales
revenue and net profit saw a year-on-year decrease in 2024. Coupled with
absence of the one-time gain recorded last year from the disposal of a
land parcel, the Group's share of Beiren Group's net profit for the year (net
of attributable non-controlling interests) decreased by 25.4% to RMB138
million from RMB185.0 million in 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 @575 & 2 #1(&)

Regarding the accounts receivable for which the Group has made full
impairment provision in the year 2019, given that the Group holds only a
non-controlling interest in Beiren Group, it is reliant upon Beiren Group's
management to (i) undertake suitable and essential measures to pursue
the recovery of these receivables from the debtors and/or the guarantor,
and (i) procure the most recent pertinent information, including but not
limited to the financial particulars and standing of the debtors and the
guarantor, along with advancements in any legal proceedings initiated
against them, if applicable.

During the year, the Group was informed by Beiren Group’s management
that no advancements have been made in the recovery of the outstanding
receivables, and no additional financial particulars concerning the debtors
and the guarantor has been acquired. In light of the information on hand,
the Group persists in its view that the full impairment provision established
in 2019 for these receivables continues to represent the most accurate
assessment.

Given that the Group possesses merely a non-controlling interest in Beiren
Group, the Board recognizes the necessity to rely on Beiren Group's
management to initiate requisite legal proceedings and to oversee the
situation’s evolution through consistent liaison with the pertinent
authorities. The Board is equally aware of the obstacles and hurdles
encountered by Beiren Group’s management in their endeavors to secure
further and up-to-date information.

In consideration of the aforementioned context and notwithstanding the
absence of any headway in procuring the most recent updates on the
cases pertaining to the debtors and/or the guarantor, the Board opines
that the measures implemented by both the Group and Beiren Group's
management are the most appropriate given the situation.

At the end of 2023, the Group solicited an independent legal opinion from
a Chinese counsel concerning the repayment capacity of the debtors and/
or the guarantor in relation to the receivables. While Beiren Group's
management has commenced civil litigation to reclaim the pertinent
debts, adhering to the fundamental legal tenet in mainland China’s judicial
system of prioritizing criminal proceedings over civil ones, civil and
commercial cases contingent upon the resolution of associated criminal
cases must await the finalization of said criminal cases before they can
proceed. Given that the criminal case involving the guarantor remains
pending without a final verdict, there has been no significant advancement
in the civil case against the debtors. Moreover, in accordance with the
applicable laws in mainland China and the precedents set by analogous
cases, all assets of the guarantor that have been sequestered, detained, or
frozen will be preferentially restituted to the fundraising participants upon
the conclusion of the litigation. Any deficiency will be subject to further
recovery efforts or compensation orders by the People’s Court, with such
compensation taking precedence over the civil obligations to Beiren
Group. Notably, numerous public cases akin to the criminal action initiated
by the Group against the guarantor were resolved in 2023. Consequently,
the independent legal opinion posits that the probability of recuperating
the receivable balance is exceedingly slim. Following a meticulous
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) & % @ 51 3% & 5 #7( &)

evaluation of the circumstances, the Group maintains its stance that the
receivables have been irrecoverable since the initial full provision for bad
debts was established in 2019, extending through to 31 December 2023.

Based on the aforementioned independent legal opinion, the auditor
concurred with the Group’s determination that the receivables in question
were indeed irrecoverable as of 31 December 2023, and accordingly
refrained from issuing a qualified opinion on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements as of that date. However, as the auditor was still
unable to secure sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to evaluate
management’s assessment of the receivables’ irrecoverability as of
1 January 2023, the auditor issued a qualified opinion in respect of the
comparability of the 2024 and 2023 figures in the Group's consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2024. The Board and the Audit Committee endorsed
the auditor’s qualified opinion concerning the comparability of the current
year's figures and the corresponding figures in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Outlook and Plan

As global economic growth slows down, challenges persist from new U.S.
tariffs on Chinese imports, coupled with domestic consumption
stagnation, real estate vulnerabilities, and unemployment pressures. In
response, the Chinese government is expected to maintain a moderately
accommodative monetary policy, leveraging targeted reserve requirement
ratio cuts and rate cut while expanding trade-in incentives and subsidy
programs to drive consumption upgrading as a catalyst for industrial
upgrading. The Group believes that these measures will significantly
bolster consumption, expand employment, and stimulate investment
activities. Additionally, China’s recent visa-free trials for visitors from South
Korea and other nations have sparked a tourism boom among young
South Koreans heading to Shanghai, with inbound tourism growth poised
to lift the performance of Shanghai Jiuguang and JGC. The Group will
align with policy priorities to maximize Jiuguang’s brand equity to further
solidify its leadership in department store sector.

The retail landscape is undergoing transformative shifts, marked by a shift
toward rational consumption, the rise of service-oriented spending, and
live-streaming e-commerce redefining merchandise sales channels. These
trends underscore consumers’ growing demand for diversified and
personalized experiences. To navigate this evolving environment, the
Group will prioritize innovation and strategic agility, introducing
experiential and immersive consumer offerings that cater to market
demands and consumer preferences. By achieving seamless omnichannel
integration and fostering a diversified, sustainable operating model, we
aim to deliver enhanced consumer experiences that bridge the gap
between digital and physical retailing.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 @575 & 2 #1(&)

Maximizing Jiuguang's brand equity

The Group will capitalize on the Jiuguang brand’s established presence in
the retail market to enhance overall competitiveness and solidify its
leadership in department store sector within Shanghai and the Yangtze
River Delta region. Recognizing the rapid evolution of e-commerce and
shifting consumer shopping behaviors, we will accelerate digital
transformation efforts, introducing distinctive product lines and
promotional campaigns that synergize with the service excellence of our
physical stores to engage younger demographics and sustain competitive
differentiation.

Championing green consumption

The Group is committed to aligning with and advancing green
consumption trends by expanding considerations of products’
environmental impact and fostering consumer behaviors that promote
ecological improvement. Emphasizing environmental sustainability and
corporate social responsibility, we aim to promote holistic sustainable
development across society. The "Jing'an Flower Festival” held in the
springtime of 2025 in Jing'an District, where JGC is located, enabled
customers and tourists to enjoy a seamless “park-and-mall” integrated
experience, merging natural ecology, cultural value, and commercial
vibrancy.

Optimizing tenant and merchandise mix

In response to rising consumer demand for high-quality, health-oriented,
and personalized offerings, coupled with heightened value-for-money
expectations, the Group will continue refining its tenant and merchandise
mix to precisely respond to evolving preferences. This includes introducing
a greater variety of eco-conscious, highly personalized established brands
and emerging labels that address consumers’ growing emphasis on green
consumption and wellness-oriented lifestyles.

Refining loyalty program

Beyond continuous enhancements to the existing VIP membership
program, the Group will focus on expanding membership acquisition
across diverse channels. Both new and existing members will receive
exclusive benefits tailored to their status, as well as special member
privileges, new member welcome offers, and additional rewards.
Furthermore, Al-driven analytics will be deployed to analyse purchasing
patterns and preferences, enabling personalized product
recommendations and shopping guidance. These measures are designed
to enhance members’ shopping experiences, thereby cultivating their
greater brand loyalty to Jiuguang.

Integrating digital and physical marketing

The Group remains attuned to emerging consumer trends, leveraging
platforms such as Xiaohongshu and Douyin to amplify brand visibility and
narrative. Initiatives include live streaming, short-video content, and other
digital campaigns to promote our e-commerce offerings. More
importantly, online marketing will be strategically aligned to complement
brick-and-mortar sales, driving foot traffic to physical stores and fostering a
cohesive omnichannel experience.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) & % @ 51 3% & 5 #7( &)

Enhancing the shopping environment

The Group is dedicated to working with tenants to create an exceptional
shopping environment, integrating interactive elements that captivate
customer attention and heighten customer engagement. Ongoing
aesthetic enhancements will be implemented to elevate customer comfort.
By refining the shopping ambiance, the Group aims to amplify customer
experiences, thereby driving sales performance.

Prioritizing office leasing
The Group will remain focused on the leasing works for JGC's twin office
towers to increase the cash flow.

Amid intensifying retail competition and a dynamic market landscape
presenting both challenges and opportunities, the Group will adopt a
proactive stance by deepening digital transformation, strengthening data
analytics capabilities, and enhancing in-store customer experiences.
Furthermore, we will explore the integration of Al and other emerging
technologies into retail operations — from merchandise and spatial layout
optimization to brand portfolio refinement, loyalty program operation, and
service quality upgrades. This dual-pronged approach will enable us to
carve a distinctive niche in the hyper-competitive market, delivering
sustainable and long-term growth.

Proposed Privatisation of the Company

Reference was made to the composite scheme document of the Company
and the Offeror dated 28 January 2025 (the “Scheme Document”), unless
the context requires otherwise, capitalized terms used in this paragraph
have the same meanings as those defined in the Scheme Document. On
2 December 2024, the Offeror requested the Board to put forward the
proposal for the privatisation of the Company by the Offeror by way of the
Scheme and the withdrawal of listing of the Shares from the Stock
Exchange.

As the Scheme was not approved by the Scheme Shareholders at the
Court Meeting, the Company has maintained its listing status on the Stock
Exchange. Please refer to the joint announcement of the Company and the
Offeror dated 20 February 2025 for details.
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Governance

The Board is the highest governing body of the Group. It is responsible for
formulating the management objectives, strategies, priorities and goals of
the Group in relation to Environmental, Social and Governance aspects
and is also in charge of supervising their implementation.

The ESG Committee comprises the Chief Executive Officer of the Group
and senior members from various operating aspects and is responsible for
the formulation, implementation and daily governance of the overall ESG
strategies of the Group.

According to the overall ESG strategies of the Group, members of the ESG
Committee are responsible for the specific formulation and
implementation of the relevant ESG objectives in relation to various
operating aspects as well as the collecting and reporting of the relevant
information. It is also the responsibility of the members to submit the
relevant performance and annual reports in relation to the environmental,
social and governance issues to the Board on a regular basis. They also
endeavour to constantly improve the reporting mechanism in relation to
the environmental, social and governance issues, which will allow the
Board to be fully aware of the initiatives in relation to the environmental,
social and governance issues of various operating aspects of the Group
and their subsequent implementation and follow-up progress, as well as
the relevant governance system and measures in relation to the potential
risks of the environmental, social and governance issues of the Group.

To implement strategies in relation to the environmental, social and
governance issues more effectively and monitor the relevant possible
environmental, social and governance-related risks, the ESG Committee
will hold regular or irregular meetings depending on the situation to
investigate, formulate and adjust the relevant strategies. Regular meetings
will be held with sub-units under the ESG Committee to follow up on the
implementation of environmental, social and governance targets on the
relevant policies and standards in relation to various operating aspects of
the Group. Meanwhile, the ESG Committee will also collaborate with the
relevant departments such as the legal and audit departments timely to
assess the risks, to which the Group may be exposed and formulate
corresponding responsive and control measures.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) B15 « 2 R &R E (&)

Being the final stage of implementing strategies in relation to
environmental, social and governance issues, the ESG Committee will
continuously acquaint itself with the trends and changes of development in
relation to the environmental, social and governance issues, striving to
promote effective incorporation of the strategies in relation to the
environmental, social and governance issues of the Group into the
corporate’s daily decision making and business operation. It is the belief of
the Group that under the full collaboration of various operating levels, the
efforts made by the Group will strenuously ensure the Group has a high
level of corporate responsibility standard in relation to environmental,
social and governance issues.

Reporting Scope

The Board of Directors considers that the business of Lifestyle China
Group Limited (hereinafter referred to as the "Group”) is closely linked to
the environment and society in various aspects, and we will endeavour to
disclose and report matters we believe that are relevant and important to
the Group's mission as much as possible.

Business Philosophy

As a premier department store retail operator, we regard integrity as our
core value and we believe that the Group's presence and prosperity are
interdependent and interconnected with the society and we adhere to the
following philosophies in conducting our business to fulfill this vision:

D) e it BN

1. Customers: our mission is to create one-stop department
stores and shopping locations so that our customers can enjoy
pleasant shopping experiences.

2. Employees: our employees are our precious assets and we treat
them with fairness and respect and maintain a working
environment to unleash their full potential.

3. Business partners: we do business with our partners with
integrity and fairness and in a responsible manner. Also, we
encourage our business partners to embrace high standards of
corporate responsibility similar to those of ours.

4. Community: we are dedicated to unremittingly contributing
and serving the communities in which our business is
operated.

5. Shareholders: we endeavour to create sustainable returns for

our shareholders.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) &% « & & &% RE (&)

Environment

Emissions

While creating social and economic value with an aim to minimising the
impact of our business on the environment, the Group dedicates its efforts
to establishing sustainable development and acting as a responsible
corporation in discharging our social responsibilities. To achieve these
objectives, we strive to take appropriate measures to ensure that correct
decisions and executions are made at all levels of our operations.
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To contribute to environmentally sustainable development, the Group is committed to:

AEERNRATTHBERAREAVFELERME TR

1. eradicating resources wasting misconduct

2. minimising the use of scarce resources and energy

3. adopting the most effective environmentally friendly operating
solutions

4. endeavouring to promote environmental protection awareness

5. setting sustainable and measurable environmental protection
targets

The primary sources of greenhouse gas emissions of the Group include
electricity, water and natural gas consumption. Hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes mainly come from sewage, kitchen waste,
construction and household wastes. The Group focuses on measuring and
reporting carbon reduction results and promoting waste reduction at
source. In this connection, the Group strictly complies with relevant
legislative requirements on sewage and waste disposal, and engages
government-approved professional firms to carry out recycling treatment,
so as to implement effective environmental management system
standards. Regular inspections of the Group's operations are conducted by
relevant government environmental protection authorities. Annual
government inspection on all relevant sewage and waste disposal for the
financial year 2024 was passed, which complied with government

standards.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) B15 « 2 R &R E (&)

KPI A1.1: There are 7 main types of emissions including air pollutants,
kitchen waste, slop oil, household waste, domestic wastewater,
construction waste, sewage well and grease trap wastes. The total
emission and corresponding intensity in the financial year 2024 were
731,661.34 tons and 1.12 ton/sq.m. respectively.

KPI A1.2: The total greenhouse gas emission of carbon dioxide and
corresponding intensity for the financial year 2024 were 82,144.75 tons and
0.13 ton/sqg.m. respectively. The greenhouse gas emission of carbon
dioxide from direct energy and corresponding intensity were 752.71 tons
and 0.0012 ton/sqg.m. respectively. The greenhouse gas emission of carbon
dioxide from indirect energy and corresponding intensity were 81,392.04
tons and 0.12 ton/sq.m. respectively.

KPI A1.3: The total hazardous waste produced and corresponding intensity
in the financial year 2024 were 1,396.64 tons and 2.14 kg/sqg.m.
respectively.

KPI A1.4: The total non-hazardous waste produced and corresponding
intensity in the financial year 2024 were 730,264.70 tons and 1.12 ton/sg.m.
respectively.

KPI A1.5: The Group's targets and measures to mitigate emissions for the
financial year 2024 are set out below.

Total emission

MR E

> Emission from direct energy

EEERERE

} Emission from indirect energy

BRI E

—  We strive to constantly improve energy use efficiency and minimise
carbon emissions to the surrounding area during the construction
processes of environmentally friendly projects.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) &% « & & &% RE (&)

We endeavour to use environmentally friendly products and services
for our decoration and renovation projects to minimise the creation
of hazardous substances. For instance, we would request our
contractors to use environmentally friendly and energy-saving
products that are approved by relevant government authorities,
especially materials such as adhesives, paints, coatings, etc., which
must be low VOC (Volatile Organic Compounds) compliant.

KPI A1.6: For the handling of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes, the

Group's targets and measures to reduce waste for the financial year 2024

are set out below.

22

> Intensity of the total wastes
BRYBBEZRE

Intensity of the total
hazardous wastes

FEERYAERE

> Intensity of the total
non-hazardous wastes

BERRVREZE

We set up a sewage treatment system for handling sewage in

llI

compliance with the government’s “pollutant discharge standard for

urban sewage treatment plant”.

Waste prevention and management play an indispensable role in the
Group's overall environmental policy. Accordingly, the Group has
set up an effective waste management approach to ensure that the
collection and treatment of waste were carried out in compliance
with relevant government regulations and would cause the least
impact on the surrounding environment. The Group will strictly
follow the relevant government requirements and enter into
disposal agreements with government-approved professional firms
with relevant expertise to carry out separation, recycling and
removal of waste.

Kitchen waste mainly comes from catering tenants. The Group
provides necessary guidance to the catering tenants and employees
to reduce unnecessary food waste in production and consumption.
Meanwhile, the Group has procedures in place for the collection and
treatment of kitchen waste which are strictly in accordance with the
principles and requirements as set by the government. As opposed to
dumpling, landfilling or selling kitchen waste illegally, we will enter
into disposal agreements with the municipal city government
departments or designated professional firms with relevant expertise
to carry out collection and disposal of kitchen waste.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) B15 « 2 R &R E (&)

—  To improve the efficiency of the piping and drainage systems, the
Group carried out transformation and optimisation works on the
sewage pump system of the water collection wells.

In 2024, thorough dredging and cleaning were conducted for all
sewage pipes and sewage treatment equipment at our Shanghai
store to improve the efficiency of the drainage system. Meanwhile,
in 2024, our Suzhou store has strengthened the daily inspection of
sewage pipes to eliminate the relevant safety hazards and maintain
the normal operation of on-site facilities and equipment, and ensure
smooth drainage of water sources.

Use of Resources

The Group is committed to minimising the overall energy consumption in
our daily operations. Through scientific management and implementing
appropriate controls in every part of our operations, we strive to maximise
energy efficiency and eliminate the wastage of electricity, gas fuel and
water resources.

KPI' A2.1: The Group's direct and/or indirect energy consumptions by type
for the financial year 2024 were 103,020,940 kWh of electricity; 348,132
cubic meters of natural gas consumption, and 3,022 tons of steam energy
consumption. Accordingly, their energy consumption intensities were
157.71 kWh/sqg.m., 0.53 cubic metre/sq.m. and 0.005 ton/sqg.m.
respectively.

KPI A2.2: The total water consumption and corresponding intensity for the
financial year 2024 were 868,436 tons and 1.33 tons/sqg.m. respectively.

KPI A2.3: Electricity consumption facilities within the Group’s department
stores/buildings mainly comprise air conditioning systems, vertical
transportation systems, general lighting, refrigeration systems, plumbing
and drainage systems, ELV systems and IT facilities. The Group's targets
and measures in respect of the efficiency of energy use for the financial
year 2024 are set out below:

Intensity of the power
} energy consumption
ENREREREE
} Intensity of the natural
gas consumption

ARAREREERE

} Intensity of the steam
energy consumption
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overnance Report (continued) %15

Consideration of energy saving and environmental friendliness of
equipment is an important evaluation criterion in outsourcing and
procuring new equipment for the Group. Priority has been given to
those energy-saving and environmentally friendly products in our
general procurement of lighting and power equipment. Meanwhile,
energy-saving and environmentally friendly related requirements are
also applied to the entire tendering process.

In 2024, the power equipment as well as heating equipment of our
Jing'an store, Daning store and Suzhou store was set to operate
based on actual needs to better reduce energy consumption.

To substantially reduce power energy consumption, the Group is
gradually adopting long-life and lower power consumption LED
lighting in shops and office areas to reduce power consumption.

In July and August 2024, with the aim of further reducing energy
consumption, the Shanghai Jing'an store completed the lighting
renovation in specific areas of the supermarket on the B1 floor and
the children’s play area on the éth floor by replacing traditional
lighting with energy-efficient LED light sources.

In 2024, Shanghai store as well as Suzhou store continued to
facilitate the adoption of LED lighting as lighting sources for the
tenants’ renovations. These stores have adopted measures such as
reasonable control of lighting in public areas and comprehensive
examination of tenants’ electricity consumption according to the
regulations on energy conservation management to monitor the
electricity current control, electricity level pre-warning and reduce
electricity consumption in real time in the public areas of the
shopping mall and tenants.

As the Group strives to implement low carbon and environmentally
friendly practices, excellent performance has been achieved in
energy saving and emission reduction.

Shanghai Jing'an store completed the replacement of six fan coil
units (located in F314, J216, Y405-408, AHU3-1, PAU8-2, and 1#
elevator lobby) and the cooling coil of the AHU4-3 air handling unit
in 2024. By using new equipment with lower energy consumption to
replace old equipment with high energy consumption, we achieved
the goals of conserving energy and reducing emissions.
Additionally, Shanghai Jing'an store carried out cleaning of the
chilled and hot water systems as well as the heat pump system in
accordance with the screening procedures. This improved the heat
exchange efficiency of the relevant air conditioning equipment,
further contributing to energy conservation and emission reduction.

In 2024, both Shanghai Daning store and Suzhou store strengthened
the management of key energy-consuming equipment. They
implemented segmented, time-based and on-demand control,
which minimized energy waste while ensuring business
requirements were met.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) B15 « 2 R &R E (&)

KPI A2.4: Water consumption mainly comes from sanitary facilities for our
customers and staff as well as the water-cooled air conditioning systems.
The Group's targets and measures in respect of the enhancement of water
efficiency for the financial year 2024 are set out below:

} Intensity of the total water
consumption
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—  To improve water consumption efficiency and prevent wastage of
water resources.

In 2024, Shanghai Jing'an store identified a leak on the main water
supply pipeline beneath the surrounding pedestrian street through
daily inspections. The issue was promptly addressed by hiring a
professional company for repairs, which helped reduce water loss
caused by pipe damage.

In 2024, the Shanghai and Suzhou stores continued to strengthen
the inspection and maintenance of water valves, water-saving
devices, faucets, and sewer pipes in the toilets of the building to
reduce or control water leakage, so as to prevent water wastage and
enhance the efficiency of water consumption.

KPI A2.5: The disclosure on the total packaging material used for finished
products is not applicable to the Group's operations due to our business
nature.

Environment and Natural Resources
The Group supports environmental protection and carries on the greening
of our operating environment. The Group also constantly assesses its
measures taken to minimise the impact of our business operation on the
surrounding environment so that appropriate improvement actions can be
taken promptly. These measures include the use of energy-efficient
lighting and environmentally friendly papers, paper usage reduction,
turning off idle lighting, computers and electrical appliances and other
facilities and equipment to save energy. The Group is also committed to
promoting the use of recycled papers and shopping bags made of
recycled papers in our stores, where feasible.
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(continued) R15 - HEREAHRE (#)

KPI A3.1: Appropriate actions are taken to manage the impacts of the
Group's operations on the environment and natural resources. We actively
promote environmental protection, formulate a number of policies and
measures to optimise the operation and office environment, strengthen
energy conservation and emission reduction management and emphasize
green operation and green office. Relevant policies and measures taken
for the financial year 2024 were as follows:

—  Implementing the Office Automation Application System. In 2024,
the Group further upgraded electronic office automation systems to
optimise office procedures and streamline processes to reduce the
use of office papers and facilitate the Group's paperless office
operation.

—  Implementing double-sided printing and reusing and recycling toner
cartridges, paper, envelopes and paper files. In 2024, the Group
continued to facilitate the reduction of paper consumption at our
stores based on its actual needs. Also, printing facilities are
reasonably adjusted to reduce the consumption of consumables.
We adopt a centralised collection and disposal approach to handle
the centralised collection and disposal of used consumables to
avoid environmental pollution resulting from improper waste
disposal.

—  Purchasing and using recycled paper bags instead of traditional
packaging bags. To advocate environmentally responsible
shopping, the Group provides customers with paper bags produced
with recycled paper and printed with the environmentally friendly
recycling label, reminding the customers that paper bags can be
recycled. We take appropriate measures to strictly comply with the
"General Technical Requirements of the Environmental Protection,
Safety and Labelling for Plastic Shopping Bags” and “Notice on
Restrictions of Manufacturing and the Sale of Plastic Bags” issued by
the country. Reduction in plastic bag consumption was achieved by
charging customers for non-woven bags, and providing plastic bags
only when necessary.

—  Encouraging the use of environmentally friendly materials and
energy-efficient equipment in our construction projects. In respect
of the renovation and design of our office and stores, the Group
actively adds an environmental-friendly philosophy to adopt an
open atrium design to maximise the use of natural light and share
lighting in common areas and retain or refinish the existing furniture
where possible during renovations to reasonably make use of the
existing resources.

The Group aims to achieve a harmonious development of people,
buildings and the natural environment. While utilising natural resources
and handmade means to create a good and healthy living and entertaining
environment, we aim at controlling and minimising the use and destruction
of the natural environment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) B15 « 2 R &R E (&)

Climate Change

Climate change has become a global focus and a major issue. Extreme
weather events caused by climate change are also becoming more and
more serious, bringing significant risks and impacts to the global economy.
The Group has always been recognising the impact of climate change and
has taken various measures to assess and reduce risks. The Group has
identified different physical risks that may pose a threat to its operations
and its financial performance, including various extreme weather
conditions and disasters (including droughts, floods, severe typhoons,
unusually persistent heat waves, epidemics, etc.) caused by climate
change. In addition, the Group also recognised the corresponding
transition risks caused by climate change, including the increase in
attention to climate-related issues, changes in consumer preferences and
changes in investors’ expectations and views to the Group, which may
result in the potential increase in operation, compliance and other costs.

Therefore, the Group will review the latest policies and regulations related
to climate change in the regions where it operates in a timely manner, and
identify potential climate-related risks that affect its operation activities
and long-term sustainable development. On top of that, the Group also
communicates with investors to understand their climate-related
expectations and concerns.

KPI A4.1: Significant climate-related matters that have or may have an
impact to the Group, along with corresponding mitigation actions.

To deal with climate-related risks, ensure the safety of employees and
on-site personnel, and reduce the adverse effects of various extreme
weather conditions and disasters on operations and long-term sustainable
development, the Group has formulated relevant counter-measures and
plans as internal guidelines for its work procedures, so as to issue safety
warnings and make special work arrangements when such situations occur.
Additionally, the Group also pays close attention to and understands the
relevant requirements and regulations on addressing climate change
where it operates, continuously reviews and improves relevant work
arrangements and guidelines, and conducts relevant special drills on a
regular basis every year to enhance employees’ awareness of protection
and response, ensure the safety of employees and on-site personnel, and
reduce property losses.

Moreover, the Group has also established emission reduction targets and
corresponding measures that help reduce greenhouse gas emissions,
thereby contributing to the sustainability of the global ecosystem.
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Social

Employment and Labour Practices

Employment

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had 1,078 employees.

As an employer embracing equal opportunities, the Group’s employment
policy aims to provide a working environment where there is no
discrimination on the basis of race, gender, religion, age, etc., and
establish a sound and quality work environment to attract talents. All
applicants enjoy equal opportunities and fairmness.

To attract and retain outstanding talents, the Group has a comprehensive
performance appraisal management regime and regularly communicates
with employees to ensure its system’s transparency and fairness. Through
the assessment of employees’ job performance, we employ and promote
employees who share common values and professional ethics, and praise
those who are self-motivated, responsible and honest to ensure the
continued improvement of the Group's business.

Employees’ remuneration package is reviewed regularly by the Group. The
evaluation makes reference to the labour market and the level of salaries
and benefits in the same industry and takes into account employees’
performance and working experience to ensure that competitive
remuneration packages are being offered to motivate their continuous
improvement and contribution to the Group. In terms of employee
dismissal policy, the Group follows the local regulations as stipulated by
the government.

The policy on working hours, rest days, other benefits and welfare of the
Group is in line with the requirements of the local government and
industry practices. In addition to paid annual leave, we also offer
employees other types of leaves, including sick leave, marriage leave,
maternity leave and care leave.

Furthermore, the Group takes steps and initiatives to maintain a
harmonious labour relationship. We work with labour unions to organise a
wide range of leisure and cultural activities to express our care to our
employees and promote healthy lifestyles and strengthen their sense of
belonging and togetherness to the Group.

In the financial year 2024, there were no serious breaches of applicable
legislation and/or regulations.

KPI B1.1: For disclosure purposes, the Group categorizes its employees
into five age groups: 18-20, 21-30, 31-40, 41-50, and over 50 years old.
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Number of employees by gender, type of employment and age group at ~ F2024F FRiZER| - EIFFEE - Fic4ARIE S
the end of the year 2024 is shown in the following charts: BEEABEHAT

Gender Distribution Employment Type
BRUEBIE 2 EEER
(o)

[ Labour Contracts
EiIBHER

[ Services Contracts

Male Z 1 ETSBAR
Female Z 1%
Age Group 1.0%
FieA R
B 1820 B 41-50
18-207% 41-508%
I 21-30 [ Above 50
21-307%% 50BR A £
B 31-40
31-405%

p.

KPI B1.2: In the financial year 2024, the employee turnover rate of the  BSBAENIEIZB1.2 - K204 FE - ANEE B
Group was 1.47%. BmALLER1.47% o

The employee turnover rates (excluding executive directors) by gender 20248 R E I 14 R - FEERI B D MEE R
and age group in the financial year 2024 are as follows: KR (PBENTES)ERET :

T

Gender Distribution: By Age Group:
BUERIE D RERARNE D :
Male B8 O U0 000% Y 053%
(y 18-207% 41-50%%
0.62%
21-30 0 0
2130 0.26% 0.11%
Female 21
0.57%
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Health and Safety

The Group always strives to provide and maintain a safe and healthy
environment in its property portfolio for all the customers, employees, and
business partners. Therefore, the Group provides comprehensive
insurance coverage including work injury and employer liability, as well as
annual health checks to its employees. We conduct regular inspections of
premises and provide training and education to our employees on disaster
prevention, fire drills, and occupational safety, as well as first aid training to
enhance employees’ knowledge and skills to prevent accidents.
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KPI B2.1: There were no work-related fatality incidents reported in the past
three years, including the financial year 2024.

KPI B2.2: In the financial year 2024, the number of loss of working days due
to work injuries was 93 days, accounting for 0.03% of normal working days.

KPI B2.3: Occupational health and safety measures, and related
implementation and monitoring methods:

—  Maintaining proper lighting and ventilation systems and a tidy
environment in offices and stores, and providing sufficient working
space in the offices.

—  Smoking is prohibited in offices and stores.

—  Following government guidelines relating to severe weather
warnings such as typhoons and rainstorms.

At the same time, the Group requires its employees to share the
responsibility in the setting, execution and monitoring of policies in
respect of safety and health. Their responsibilities include:

— Identifying, reporting and avoiding hazards at the workplace in

relation to health and safety and having the responsibility to report
such hazards immediately to superiors or the security department.

30

B A RIERB2.1 : BIE2024F BF EHE N B
EZFN - EAEREIERRBmE TR RN -

PR EMIEIER2.2 : 2024 FE - ATEE S
BARNBEH AKX HIEFEITEREM0.03% °

FRAERIEREB23 : ARMRMMBRERER
28 ARBERITRERE

— HERBFERREAREREELEREN
BERELENIIEES] -

R AEBEGERKEEBBANE AITRE
BEUHRFELZEZBRZBE  SLBRERRE:

— B mERBRETHESMERERR
2EENBE —EFREREFEENR
B AREMERR BN LR HZREFT

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2024



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) B15 « 2 R &R E (&)

—  Participating in the investigation of any accidents or hazards to
prevent them from happening or re-occurrence.

—  Working together with the Company in adopting work safety
methods and procedures.

Development and Training

The Group firmly regards employees as valuable assets and their
development helps facilitate the growth of the Group. In pursuing our
business objectives and providing protection for the general rights and
interests of our employees, the Group puts in place a suitable platform
that supports the Group and employee development and training through
performance evaluation, two-way communications and questionnaires on
training needs. The employee development and training policies adopted
by the Group include:

—  Providing newly-joined staff with comprehensive orientation
programmes to assist them in familiarising themselves with the Group.

—  Providing employees with regular and ad-hoc internal job-related
training and development workshops.

—  Actively seeking external training resources. In 2024, we cooperated
with professional training institutions and launched various types of
training including but not limited to supervisory level development
training, middle and senior management training. Management
knowledge and professional skills covering management skills and
teamwork are taught by professional lecturers.
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Post-training evaluations are conducted to assess the effectiveness
of these training programmes.

KPI B3.1: Percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category (excluding executive directors).

Gender Distribution:

BHURIE S

Male 5

w O
[IVI] 20.59%

Female M O

23.26%

e

KPI B3.2: Average training hours completed per employee by gender and

employee category (excluding executive directors).
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Labour Standards

The Group is committed to strictly complying with the relevant local labour
and employment laws and regulations, and ensuring that employment
contracts entered into with employees are on a legal, fair, equal, voluntary,
mutually agreed and good faith basis. The Group adopts employment
policies and procedures that prohibit forced labour and child labour. The
same requirements also apply to the Group's concessionaires and tenants.

KPI B4.1: The Group strives to perform continuous reviews and
improvements on the recruitment practices to prevent child labour and
forced labour.

The relevant policies adopted by the Group are:

—  Strictly prohibiting any departments to request and/or employ any
persons who are below 16 years old for any reason. The Human
Resources Department is responsible for the review of the age of
the applicants during recruitment to ensure that no minors under
the age of 16 are employed.

—  All employment must be on a voluntary basis and we do not allow
forced labour, or use any form of deception to induce employees to
join the Group.

KPI B4.2: We are not aware of any child or forced labour incidents in the
financial year 2024. The Group believes that it is not exposed to any risk of
having child or forced labour in our business operation. We are committed
to taking immediate measures to eliminate any non-compliance in respect
of child and forced labour.

Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

In accordance with our operating practices and the composition of
different segments along our supply chain management model, our stores
sell direct purchased merchandises and offer branded merchandises and
services through concessionaire and leasing arrangements. Through
seamless cooperation with suppliers and business partners, and highly
efficient information technology networks, the Group is able to work
smoothly along the supply chain which optimises the resources allocation
to deliver high-quality products and services to our customers. The Group
strives to share our commitments and beliefs in environmental and social
aspects with our business partners. This also encourages our business
partners to pay attention to and control environmental and social risks that
may be related to supply chain management and embrace high standards
of corporate responsibilities that are similar to ours.

The supply chain management policy adopted within the Group is set out
below:

—  To cooperate in a fair, honest and responsible manner with suppliers
who share our business philosophy.

—  Suppliers are contractually prohibited from recruiting child labour.
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—  Suppliers are contractually obliged to ensure that the products they
offer are non-toxic and meet the relevant government and industry
requirements and standards.

KPI B5.1: Number of suppliers by region and store.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had 1,798 suppliers in the Chinese
Mainland, including 1,383 suppliers for Shanghai stores and 415 suppliers
for Suzhou stores.

KPI B5.2: Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers.

— In engaging suppliers, they are required to meet the Group's
product requirements, such as price, quantity and delivery time.

— In engaging suppliers, it is based on a set of standards, including
quality control and compliance with the relevant Chinese Mainland
and/or international standards.

—  Renewal of supplier contracts is subject to a review of their
performance based on the practice and their achievements.

KPI B5.3: Practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.

—  Suppliers are responsible for product management in the sales area,
ensuring that the products provided are of good quality, and shall
not provide inferior commodities, and all processes in their supply
chain shall comply with the practices of environmental protection
and social risk reduction. The Group has the right to conduct
random inspections on the quality of products provided by the
suppliers.

KPI B5.4: Practices used to promote environmentally preferable products
and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

—  Suppliers are required to abide by the “Store Decoration Design
Guidelines”, “Interior Decoration Code” and other specifications
formulated by the Group. After completing the decoration project, it
should be inspected by the relevant departments of the Group's
member companies to ensure that the decoration conforms to the
practices and requirements of environmental protection and
services. In the event of non-compliance, the suppliers are required
to rectify immediately.
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1

Product Responsibility

The Group believes that our corporate sustainability and reputation are
built on our high-quality products and services. Our operation team is
committed to providing safe and high-quality products and services to our
customers and addressing customer complaints with utmost attention.

Meanwhile, the Group believes that product safety is the key to our
success. We strictly follow the industry standards and government
regulations relevant to our products and services. We provide training to
employees to enhance their consciousness of product safety to prevent
any counterfeits and sub-standard merchandise being sold at our stores
and to protect the rights and interests of our consumers.

The product safety policies adopted by the Group are as follows:

—  For non-food products, the Group enhanced the quality checks on
products provided by our suppliers and business partners to ensure
that these products meet the relevant safety standards and
requirements. Based on the characteristics of the product, special
attention is placed on compliance with those regulations and
requirements related to baby and children’s products, toys and
customer safety and execution to ensure that our products sold have
fully complied with the relevant mandatory regulations and
requirements in the PRC.

—  Forfood products, the Group assumes the primary responsibility for
food safety in accordance with the relevant provisions of the “Food
Safety Law of the PRC". We also set and implement policies and
procedures such as “Purchase inspection and recording policy”,
"Food selling procedure management”, “Procedures regarding
removal of substandard food items from shelves”, and “policy and
procedures relating to reporting and handling of emergency food
safety incident” to ensure all food items provided are safe.

KPI B6.1: During the year, no products were recalled by the Group due to
significant safety and health reasons.

KPI B6.2: Our customer services extended to before, during and after the
sales. All complaints are handled by professional personnel of the Group’s
customer service department. Details of the complaints, progress status,
handling time and settlement are properly recorded and supervised. There
were 298 complaints in respect to products and services received by the
Group in the financial year 2024, which were consistent with the industry
norm.

KPI B6.3: Practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

The Group recognises that brand equity is critical to our success. We
actively allocate resources to maintain and protect the intellectual property
rights of our brands.
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We value intellectual property rights and determine intellectual
property rights as an indispensable element of successful business.

We manage and protect our intellectual property rights through
registration and maintenance and enforcement measures.

We respect the intellectual property rights of others and do not
infringe on their intellectual property rights.

Suppliers who have business dealings with the Group are required to
ensure that they will not display, sell, use and store any items that
infringe the intellectual property rights of others at designed sales
areas or counters and also undertake not to engage in other related
illegal acts at designed sales areas or department stores.

KPI B6.4: Once products are found to be of significant quality problems,
the Group will initiate an action plan to trace the product batch to ensure
high product quality and service standards.

KPI B6.5: Consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

To protect the relevant information and privacy of consumers, the personal
information that consumers fill out in the “Membership Application Form”
when applying for a membership card is entered into the membership
system of the Group by specialised personnel and is archived
confidentially and centrally managed. Our employees are not allowed to
access member information without authorisation.

Anti-corruption

The Group strives to achieve transparency, integrity and accountability in
our operations and requires our employees to maintain high standards on
ethics, and personal and professional conduct to maintain and promote
the Group's reputation. In addition to these codes of conduct for
employees, the Group has put in place an interest declaration and
whistleblowing mechanism, which we share with our Directors, colleagues
and business partners to minimise and mitigate any situations that may
lead to the occurrence of conflict of interests or corruptions. At the same
time, the Group considers integrity as our core value and encourages our
employees to report any improper, misconduct or fraudulent conduct. The
anti-corruption policy of the Group is set out in the Employees’ Handbook
and the "Letter of Undertaking by Supplier in respect of Anti-Commercial
Bribery”.

KPI B7.1: In the financial year 2024, there were no companies within the
Group or any of their employees during the employment term were
prosecuted for corruption.
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KPl B7.2: The Group requires employees to confirm and sign the
“Declaration and Commitment of Honesty and Integrity” when they are
employed and requires relevant suppliers and outsourcing processors that
have business dealings with the Group to confirm and sign the
"Anti-Commercial Bribery Commitment” before conducting formal
transactions and comply with the relevant anti-corruption commitments
and requirements set out in the employee handbook and commitment
letter.

Any employee can report to the relevant departments of the Group
companies directly or through any managerial staff if corruption is
identified or suspected. The whistleblower may also request that his/her
identity be kept confidential. We will protect the whistleblower from any
form of retaliation to the extent practicable unless the whistleblower
himself/herself has violated the regulations or acts maliciously.

KPl B7.3: The Group’s member companies are required to provide
Directors and employees with the above anti-corruption training and
reiterate the above anti-corruption requirements on a regular or irregular
basis as the case may be.

Community Investment

The Group adheres to the concept of “Giving back to society” and
proactively participates in community and social services to promote
corporate social responsibilities and make contributions to the society. In
this regard, we actively invest in the community, especially in those less
privileged groups as well as the young generation in respect of their
education, growth and development. Through engaging and interacting
with the community, the Group aims to:

—  Support less privileged groups and bring them love and hope;

—  Encourage employees to be compassionate and sympathetic;

—  Strengthen our employees’ sense of belonging to the society; and

—  Provide education to help them achieve a better future.

KPI B8.1: The Group contributes its time and resources to the community
in the following areas:

—  Supporting and interacting with the community (such as the less
privileged groups and people with disabilities); and

— Education.
KPI B8.2: The related initiative in each area includes:

—  For education support, the activities organised by the Group in the
financial year 2024 were as follows,
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In July 2024, our Shanghai Jing'an store participated in Charity
Month to support the Shanghai Charity Education and Training
Center with actions and financial aid. The store has made donation
to help the children and teenagers in need for 9 consecutive years,
which cared for their growth and success, whilst contributing to
public welfare and charity.

In August 2024, our Suzhou store continued to participate in the
Charity Education Support Programme of Suzhou Industrial Park
Charity Federation and continued to support students from less
privileged families in Suzhou Industrial Park, thereby students from
less privileged families would not be denied the opportunities to
learn and acquire knowledge due to the poverty.

In terms of social care, activities organised by the Group in the
financial year 2024 were as follows,

In January 2024, our Shanghai Jing'an store continued to participate
in the “Love under Blue Sky — Charity Sale by Thousands of Shops”
event hosted by the Shanghai Charity Foundation and donated part
of a day’s sales revenue to support women living in poverty for
gynecological examination and the elderly in difficulties.

In January 2024, our Shanghai Daning store participated in the 30th
“Love under Blue Sky, Uniting Kindness for a Compassionate
Society — Charity Sale by Thousands of Shops” event hosted by the
Shanghai Charity Foundation to support the elderly in need within
the community.

In June 2024, our Shanghai Daning store provided a venue free of
charge to the Shanghai Children’s Foundation for hosting a charity
sale event.
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In June 2024, our Suzhou store participated in Warm Hut Project
themed “Lighting Hope, Illuminating the Future” organised by Ying
Chun Hua Love Federation (¥ & 7€ & 0 B & &) of the Suzhou
Industrial Park, helping to alleviate the financial burden of families in
need who travelled long distances to seek medical treatment. The
store provided free accommodation — a temporary place for poor
children and their families who come from other places for medical
treatments to live in Suzhou, thereby offering accommodation and
living assistance to the families during their treatment in the
hospital.

The Group continued to work with various charitable organisations to
actively interact with local communities in different ways during the year. In
the financial year 2024, in line with our commitment to supporting local
vulnerable groups and the younger generation, our partner organizations
include the Shanghai Charity Foundation, Shanghai Jing'an District Civil
Affairs Bureau, Shanghai Charitable Education and Training Center,
Suzhou Industrial Park Charity Foundation and Ying Chun Hua Love
Federation of Suzhou Industrial Park.
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Outlook

The Group will continue to uphold our principles in a responsible manner
and strive to strike a balance among the interests of our customers,
employees, shareholders, and society, and is committed to the
coordinated developments between the enterprise and the society, the
enterprise and the environment and the enterprise and the stakeholders,
and make contributions to the society.
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Corporate Governance Report
Mz fmhe \Aiﬁd:

Corporate Governance Principles

The board of directors (“Board”) and management of the Company are
committed to maintaining good corporate governance practices
appropriate to the businesses of the Group. The Company has adopted
the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) as its guidelines and focus on a quality Board, sound internal
controls, and transparency and accountability to all stakeholders.

Corporate Governance Code Compliance
The Company has complied with the code provisions of the CG Code for
the year ended 31 December 2024, except the following deviation:

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are not segregated
but such arrangement would facilitate the development and execution of
the Group's business strategies and enhances efficiency and effectiveness
of its operations.

Corporate Culture

The Group focuses on the development of the Jiuguang brand,
continuously optimizing its product mix and creating a rich and
comfortable shopping environment to meet people’s pursuit of a stylish
and quality lifestyle. Pursuant to the corporate culture standards set by the
Board, the Group applies the four core values of innovation, teamwork,
excellence and integrity throughout its daily operation and management,
and actively strives to create value for customers, employees, partners and
shareholders.

Innovation — As consumer behavior continues to change and evolve, the
Group is committed to creating added value for customers and business
partners through the promotion of new products, processes, propositions
and business models. Recently, the Group pressed ahead with its
marketing strategy of omni-channel membership management, with new
retail business initiatives that integrate online platforms and its retail
establishments to promptly capture the opportunities presented by the
e-commerce boom and surge in demand for online shopping.

Teamwork — The Group promotes and encourages trust and cooperation
among its employees and teams. This not only creates better shopping
experience for customers but will keep employees motivated during
challenging times. Team members encouraged each other and pulled
together to overcome the operational issues and difficulties and spared no
efforts to face the various challenges in the market.
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Excellence — The Group's pursuit of excellence and quality is evident not
only in the projects it develops, but also in the subtleties of its daily
operations. The Group aims to consolidate its leading position in the
lifestyle and retail sector and expand its VIP customer base. As a pioneer in
introducing unique and sophisticated lifestyle concepts, the Group's
venues have become some of the most popular shopping and
entertainment destinations in the regions where it operates.

Integrity — The Group strives to adhere to high standards of business
ethics and corporate governance in all its activities and operations, and
attaches great importance to the character of its team members and
quality of its products. The Group has not only adopted the code
provisions in the CG Code as set out in the Listing Rules, but has also
established an interest declaration and whistleblowing mechanism which
the Group shares with its business partners to promote fairness and trust.

The Group communicates its corporate culture to all employees, business
partners, and shareholders through various trainings, meetings and
manuals. The Group also provides channels for all stakeholders to voice
their concerns in relation to the Group’s operations. The Board is
responsible for monitoring operating practices and taking appropriate
actions to uphold and promote the Group's reputation.

As at the date of this report, the Board has reviewed and concluded that
the Group's corporate culture is consistent with its purpose, values and
strategy. The Group will continue to provide training to its directors and
employees to ensure that its core values are reflected and carried through
in its day-to-day operations.

The Board

(1) Board Composition
As at the date of this report, the Board consists of a total of seven
directors, including three executive directors, one non-executive
director and three independent non-executive directors. More than
one-third of the Board is represented by independent non-
executive directors with one of whom being a certified public
accountant. The Board believes that the number of executive and
non-executive directors is reasonable and adequate to provide
sufficient checks and balances that would safeguard the interests of
the shareholders and the Company. The directors possess
professional qualification and knowledge and industry experience
and expertise, which enable them to make valuable and diversified
advice and guidance to the Group’s business activities and
development.

Details of the composition of the Board are set out in the
“Corporate Information” in this annual report. Details of the
changes to the composition of the Board, during the year and up to
the date of this report, are provided in the “Directors’ Report” under
the section “Directors”. The directors’ biographical details and the
relationships among them are set out in the "Profile of Directors” in
this annual report.

FIEPEKEARLE —FT-_NFFR

Pl — AREHEBANERMERRAERLFNE
MBS TRAREAEEEEFENAMIRE -
AEEGFHEZEERTERNE HREMA -
BRARMNEBEEFEE - (FRIIABE B
BERSHBTNLEE  ARECKABMER
HEEBENBYBEESMZ — -

HE —ARERNEEMBEH R EETET
BREENARERLEERER  BINEREKEN
A& M fn B anE © BRERM_E M AR RIPR S & <F
By RIS AEBEE BN PR MRS
Wl - I B EFEREHILAZMS] - fREDFRIE
fF o

AEEEBERIFIEY @2 LTM - FHE
8 EBEHRBRREEECEE - BTAM
BRNERTEE NEEEXAEELEFTHEN
ERIFR EFSRAEEXHER UK
BUEETTE  NEERRHARENEE -

REAREEH  EF2CBHIRREIEEND
EXRERE - BEMER B AEEBE
BEREEEREERMEY - UEREZOER
REBEEEFREAELET -

Exg

(1 EFS4AMK
RAZEAH EFemnAtuESFE
B BREMHTES  —UIFRTES
R=fIBUIFATES BE=D &
FENEBHBYIIFNTESTHE  HP—
ARBEGEE - BEFERE AITES
HENTEFZHARAEAERMREHRR
MERNEFEER  AREBRRERAR
AlZME - REFHAEXRERMAB K
TEERMEPIAGE - Al RAREERE
BLBERTRESEMLRERTAERE
83l

EEelNFBIERAFRICRER]
N-REAREEABREAY EFE4
K2 B2BF RN EFERE]INIEE]
—H - REFZEABRBEFBEREFTHEN
R IR AFRIEFHNIA -

41



Corporate Governance Report (continued) 7 % & 4 3R £(4&)

(2)

(3)

42

The independence of the independent non-executive directors is
assessed according to the relevant rules and requirements under the
Listing Rules. The Company has received written annual
confirmation of independence from each of the independent non-
executive directors and the Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive directors meet the independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company adopted a Board diversity policy in accordance with
the requirements set out in the code provisions of the CG Code.
The Company recognises the benefits of having a diverse Board,
and sees diversity at the Board level is essential in achieving a
sustainable and balanced development. In designing the Board's
composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge,
industry experience and expertise. All Board appointments are
based on meritocracy and considered against a variety of criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has three female
out of seven of the directors of the Company, representing
approximately 42.86%. The Company targets to maintain the
number of female directors in the Board representing at least one-
third of the Board members in the long run and will continue to
promote gender parity at all levels of the workforce within the
Group. Consistent with such objective, the Group will monitor and
evaluate the relevant policy and progress from time to time so as to
achieving a balanced gender diversity. Having considered the
Group's current business model and the employment market, the
Board believes that there is no mitigating factor or circumstance
which would make achieving gender diversity across the workforce
within the Group more challenging.

For details of the gender ratio of the Group's workforce, please refer
to the relevant data set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report section to this report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer, being
the same person, is responsible for setting overall strategic plan and
development of the Group as well as for implementing the Board's
decisions, monitoring and supervising the Group's overall
performance, ensuring adequate capital and managerial resources
are available to implement the business strategies being adopted
from time to time, setting out and monitoring targets, plans and
direction for management, reporting to the Board on the Group's
performance and proposing business plans and strategies for further
evaluation and assessment by the Board.

(2)

(3)

BAIFMITESHBIMETRE EHRA
R GRYI R EMELFZ - ARRIE&
EREUIFNTEFEMHENERAEE Y
MZIRFHRE  ARRRRBAABULIE
HOTEFETA LMARANEIIMR 2B
MAESl - W RBIAL -

ESTERESILHE

AR ARBDE 57 RIZ 57 RIS E SR
EEEKEZ LR - AR AR ILIR
EEFEKEZTLERERS  BHES
EEEZZITCRIFEBAIRE MG EE
BROBERITE ARAERTEEENE
HER EHRZETHEEEZEKES
e BEETRRLR - Fik -HES
BBk BELR E-ME TTE
KEmEEMAANH - EFEMBRETHNUA
AT BRA YNSBRERDERE
EEKEZ g

RAFHRAY  ARBELREETE=%
BRI K91542.86% - R REIM B RER
PEFEFEh AN EEAREDEES
EREABHN =02 UHESRER
EEERETIHMRFE - BZAF—
B AR B MAT (AR B R
ER - NERIENMURZ T - KEE
AEBRERNEBEARREDS  EF
ERRAERRAZIBENEEUNAEH
ERETIERUNZTTEE AP -

BEEASE2EE TR OIS -
ALHARENRE  HEREARE —
ENFTE AR R BUR

IERERVTE
EEEIFMEFRATEIR—A AR
BEARERERBASNBERINTE
FERR ERHAEEARERERR -
BRABRBES LEBRERANIT IR
PR RIGRE  REEERIERER
B FEETR AKERRAES
CERALIEEZXBEMRBUARES
SIFE— TN R

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2024



Corporate Governance Report (continued) 1 3 &4 3R &5(4)

(4)
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Responsibilities

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective
manner. The Board steers and oversees the management of the
Company including, establishing the strategic direction and setting
long-term objectives for the Company, monitoring the performance
of management, protecting and maximising the interests of the
Company and its shareholders, and reviewing, considering and
approving and the subsequent reviewing and monitoring of the
annual budget against actual performances and results. The Board
has delegated management, under the leadership of the Chief
Executive Officer, with authorities and responsibilities for the day-
to-day operations and administration of the Group.

Each director has a duty to act in good faith in the best interests of
the Company. The directors are aware of their collective and
individual responsibilities to the Company and the shareholders in
respect of the manner in which the affairs of the Company are being
controlled and managed.

Directors are requested to make declaration of their direct or
indirect interests, if any, in any proposals or transactions to be
considered by the Board. If a director has a potential conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board
has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with in
accordance with applicable rules and regulations and, if
appropriate, an independent board committee will be set up to deal
with the matter.

All directors have full access to and are provided with adequate,
reliable and timely information about the operations and latest
development of the Group to enable them to discharge their
responsibilities and make timely decision. Updates have also been
provided to all members of the Board on a regular basis to enable
them to discharge their duties. Operational and financial
information and analysis of the Group can be accessed directly
through briefing and reporting by the Chief Executive Officer and
management during Board meetings. Through the company
secretary, independent professional advice, on the account of the
Company, could be sought should such advice be considered
necessary by any director for carrying out his/her duties properly.
While proper mechanism has been put in place such that
independent views and input shall be available to the Board, the
Company will further refine, as and when appropriate, such
mechanism to ensure its effectiveness.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

After recommendation from the nomination committee,
appointment of new director(s), if any, is vested with the Board.
Under the Company's articles of association, the Board may from
time to time appoint a director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. Any such new director so appointed shall
hold office only until the first annual general meeting of the
Company after his/her appointment and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

There is no specific term for all non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) and all directors (including
non-executive directors) are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and are subject to re-election in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

Meetings

The Board held five meetings during the year to consider and/or
approve, among other matters, the Group's interim and final results
announcements and financial statements, material transactions and
to review quarterly operating performance of the Group.

Board members attended the Company’s Board meetings either in
person or through video/telephone conferencing means in
accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of
association. The attendance record of each director at the Board
meetings and general meetings held during the year is set out

(5)

(6)
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FEEE(BREINTER)AZLE=F
WERE  WALEREE-
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EZgRFARERARERE  UBE
/st (R 8 REBKHh LR
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REBEARREBERZMAERE  EF
EREERIINRIE BEGETAL
HEARNREFEER - TESNFALFE
Exeea BRERRE ZREHINNT

below:
Number of meetings attended/held
HE T BITEBRRE
Board Annual General
Meetings Meeting
Directors B EEZggR BRRAFRE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas gl 5/5 11
Mr. Lau Kam Sen ASREE 3/5 11
Ms. Lau Kam Shim 5% 8 5/5 11
Non-executive Director FHITES
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy PRIEIS/NE 5/5 11
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHTES
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SRR/ NE 5/5 1/1
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond R SEHE 5/5 0/1
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai MIE K& 5/5 11
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(7) Practices and Conduct of Board and Board Committee (7) EE=SgRHEHBTZESSBRZERRE
Meetings Al
The company secretary is responsible for ensuring the proper NAMEEERREBAMAARETE
convening and conducting of the Board and Board Committee EERHEBTZEE8H  TRRTE
meetings, with the relevant notices, agenda and Board and Board FAEARREZEEREETLZESHHK
Committee papers being provided to the directors and relevant BRMEERA  2RFEREFER
Board Committee members in a timely manner before the HETZESgR Xt -
meetings.
The company secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of all NAMEBERTFMEESTSELAETE
Board and Board Committee meetings. Board and Board BEgeaL EFSRHETLZESS
Committee minutes are available for inspection by the directors and AR EEREETEZENEEM -
Board Committee members.
(8) Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional (8) EE=MERBESERRE
Development
Induction pack covering the Group’s businesses and the statutory BENEEZEE (R SEGEERR
and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company will be REEEBR EMARESEEERES
provided to each newly appointed director, if any. The Company FEANRBEER - AQRFBEMMES
continuously updates the directors on the Group's businesses and REFBAAEEERLR AR iR A&
the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other Hith BREERTENENER -
applicable regulatory requirements.
During the year, the directors participated the following training: FR-EBEFD2EATEI
Types of Training
Directors B o Eckic)
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Gt A, C
Mr. Lau Kam Sen BlSREE A C
Ms. Lau Kam Shim 2|54/ A A C
Non-executive Director EHITES
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy BRI/ NME A, C
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SRR/ NME A, B, C
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond SRIR & A C
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai MIET & A B, C
A — reading materials provided by the Company relating to A — BEAAARRMBERARATE
the Company'’s businesses and regular updates on the BUARBEERREREEN £
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements MRBI R EAMEREERENTE
relevant to director’s duties and responsibilities HE AR
B — attending briefings/seminars/conferences/forums B — HEAUEEBBREENER
relevant to director’s duties and responsibilities e /Mmie /g3 wiE
C — reading newspapers and journals relating to corporate C — HEEHECEEREFH BRK
governance matters, environment and social issues or HERENBEERE L EITR
director’s duties and responsibilities = R ET
FREPEREARLAT —S-NEFR 45
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
("Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors. After specific enquiries by the Company, all
directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Statements

The directors acknowledged their responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2024. The directors have ensured that the financial
statements of the Group are prepared so as to give a true and fair view of
the Group's state of affairs, the results and cash flow for the year, and on a
going concern basis in accordance with the statutory requirements and
applicable accounting and financial reporting standards.

The directors also ensure timely publication of the Group’s financial
statements and aim to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's performance and position through all its
publications and communications to the public. They are also aware of the
requirements under the applicable rules and regulations about timely
disclosure of inside information.

The report from the auditor of the Company regarding their
responsibilities and opinion on the financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” in this annual report. The Board has taken steps to ensure the
continued objectivity and independence of the external auditor. For the
year ended 31 December 2024, the remunerations paid/payable to the
external auditor of the Company were approximately RMB2.8 million and
approximately RMBO0.6 million in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided to the Group respectively. Details of non-audit services and the
fees incurred are as follows:

Review of interim financial information RMBO0.4 million
for the six months ended 30 June 2024
Services provided relating to the proposed RMBO.2 million

withdrawal of listing
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Board Committees
As at the date of this report, the audit committee, the remuneration

committee and nomination committee are in operation and they have

been established with specific terms of reference to assist the Board in

discharging its responsibilities.

EEg@BETHWZEES

RARESEH BEXZEE FHZE8ek

’%

ZEEILEF  ARFHREANBESE

R LB EEEEITERARE -

(1)  Audit Committee 1) BREES®

The audit committee comprises three members, namely, Mr. Lam ERZEEHR=-BXEBANK  BIMXE

Kwong Wai, Ms. Cheung Mei Han and Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, oA SRER/NERRIR SR - B R

Raymond, all are independent non-executive directors. The audit B RBIUFHNTES ERLZES

committee is chaired by Mr. Lam Kwong Wai, who is a certified MAREEREEFE > BARESAE -

public accountant. The audit committee is provided with sufficient ERZERIEHFTWERABITHRE -
resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the audit committee setting out the REESFAIMFAMEIESIBRIRET E2 B

committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the “EESHESEFINNEZEES 2RI LE

guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on 5 BEHAARQF AL, -

the Company's website.

The principal duties of the audit committee are as follows: ERZEGZIERENT

(i) to review the services and appointment of the Company's (i) FH AR B INEZ BN 2 RIS A
external auditor, the nature and scope of auditing, and the Z AN RIS E B E IR R AR %
related audit fees; HER:

(i) toreview the Company's financial statements and reports, the (i) BHARAIZHBHRERRE &
changes in accounting policies and practices, and the FIREEN 2 #E) REGHEST
compliance with applicable accounting standards, the Listing AR EmAR B ROADIAR
Rules and legal requirements; JE

(i)  to oversee the Group's financial reporting system, risk (i) EERAEEZMEHEMGE - Bk
management and internal control systems; and B R ANEREEIEGIE &

(iv)  to review and monitor the corporate governance functions as (iv) B REECETRHIIZOES
set out in the CG Code. R BV EBAE ©

The audit committee held two meetings during the year. The FN BRZECURTMAERE -B%

attendance record of each committee member is set out below: BeEHEgRE s LEHIINT

Number of meetings attended/held

Audit committee members EREEEHE HEBITERRE

Mr. Lam Kwong Wai (Chairman) MICBT A (EFE) 2/2

Ms. Cheung Mei Han SRE/ A 2/2

Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond RIS 2/2

AREEREARAT —T-NEFR a7
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(2)

48

In the meetings, the audit committee (i) reviewed with external
auditor the Group's interim and annual financial statements and
reports before they were submitted to the Board for consideration
and approval; (i) reviewed with the external auditor the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group; (iii) reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems;
(iv) reviewed the corporate governance functions of the Group; and
(v) reviewed the management’s position and basis of assessment on
major judgmental areas concerning the auditor’'s modified opinion.

Remuneration Committee

Members of the remuneration committee comprise three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Kwong Wai,
who is the chairman of the remuneration committee, Ms. Cheung
Mei Han and Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond and one executive
director, namely, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. The remuneration
committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee setting out
the committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the remuneration committee are to provide
advice and recommendations to the Board on (i) the remuneration
packages of the directors and senior management; (ii) any specific
remuneration packages with reference to market conditions,
performance of the Group and the individuals with reference to the
goals and targets as set by the Board from time to time; and (iii) if
necessary, any compensation arrangement for termination of office
of directors or senior management.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the year. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out below:

(2)

ERZZEERE LO)EIIBRBMERA
SEPHRFERBHRRNIBERBER
S AHEERILE ¢ ()EIMNEZEED
EHAKEMERAZ S RAIREFER:
(iii) 2 B L B B 32 N TR BB B 4 %'JFZEAZ
1 (EHAREZ EXEIAREE

AR BN 2 BIAD H A JE R %ﬁﬁqﬁ
FEE ZHH 7T S5 R FF il B2 o

%’r@ﬂ%ﬁa
FNEESKER-RBUIIENTES
W%@Tﬁ?ﬁ%i(ﬁ?‘% TMEEg 2 ERE) -
REMPDARRIBXEEAR —BRITE
FREBIEAHENK - FTHEESRIEHT
WERNEBITERE

BAE ST RIR ST RINR IR S| AR R E 2 #r
MEZEeREREFI TR 2RO IE
B DEHRARBME -

e S ZI%E&,\F’, ?f%%&%—,
ERBZHMEE  (NE2ETHIT)

7«&%.&“/\%‘%%&%%?%’“7%%@

ZBEERBE®MR Eﬁfﬂ?ﬂﬁi‘f*ﬁ@ﬂﬁ?@ ;
KWV ERREENESRERER T

HHZTH"JW ZHMEFSRIERLE

FR HFHEZBEEERT - RERH-BX
BegRBEHFERICEHIIMT

Number of meetings attended/held

Remuneration committee members FMZEEERE HiE BITEBRRE
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas BBt 11
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai (Chairman) MBI (FFE) 11
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SREIR/NAE 1/1
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond RIB X SE 1/1

In the meeting, the remuneration committee reviewed and
recommended for the Board's approval (i) the discretionary bonus
for the executive directors for the year 2023; and (ii) the
remuneration packages of the directors for the year 2024, including
proposal on executive directors’ salary adjustment which took effect
from 1 April 2024.

Ve e LEMREBESSHE
(VATTEER _7_:EF‘ZE’J\$ TEAL

&(||_7_@¢V2§$ IS B
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(3)

FIRPERERRAT

Nomination Committee

Members of the nomination committee comprise three independent
non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Kwong Wai, Ms. Cheung
Mei Han and Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond and one executive
director, namely, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas who is the chairman of
the nomination committee. The nomination committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee setting out the
committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company'’s website.

The principal duties of the nomination committee are as follows:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
and

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The above principal duties are regarded as the key nomination
criteria and principles for the nomination of directors of the
Company, which also form part of the nomination policy of the
Company. In selecting and recommending candidates for
directorship to the Board, the nomination committee would
consider various aspects such as candidate’s qualification, time
commitment to Company and contributions that will bring to the
Board as well as factors concerning board diversity as set out in the
Company’s Board diversity policy, before making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment of directors.

The nomination committee is also responsible for assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive directors.

—E-MEER

(3)
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The nomination committee held one meeting during the year. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out below:

FR - REZBEERT - REH-BX
BegREHFERICEHIIMT

Number of meetings attended/held

Nomination committee members REEEEHE g BITEBRRE
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas (Chairman) RIEIB A (XF) 11
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SREIR/NAE 1/1
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond SRIR S A 1/1
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai MR 11

In the meeting, the nomination committee (i) reviewed the existing
structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii) reviewed the
independence of independent non-executive directors; and (i) made
recommendations to the Board on the proposed re-election of the
retiring directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's
strategic objectives, and maintaining sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems. As such, the Board not only sets and
communicates the Group's strategies and objectives but also oversees the
Group's risk management and internal controls systems on an ongoing
basis, and to ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal controls systems has been conducted at least
annually.

The audit committee plays a vital role in overseeing the risk management
and internal controls systems on behalf of the Board. The audit committee
reviews, on at least an annual basis, the Group's risk management and
internal controls systems to ensure that management has fulfilled its duties
in establishing and maintaining an effective risk management and internal
controls systems. It also assesses the extent and frequency of the
communication of the monitoring results to the Board, as well as
considering the results of any investigation into the Group's risk
management practices and internal controls and management's responses
to the findings of such investigations. The audit committee performs
annual review for the adequacy of budget and resources, staff qualification
and experience, and the quality of training program of the Group's internal
audit, accounting and financial reporting functions.
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The Group's system of internal controls which includes a defined
management structure with limit of authority is designed to help the
achievement of business objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
external publication, and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in the operational systems for the
achievement of the Group's objectives.

The Group also regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information and procedures are in place for the handling of confidential
commercial information to ensure that inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is approved, and its
dissemination effectively made.

The main features of the Group's risk management and internal controls
systems are illustrated below:
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The Group has established an organisational structure with defined levels
of responsibility and reporting procedures. Monthly management
accounts are available for review of the senior management and the Board
(in a concise format of a Monthly Report) for monitoring the Group's
financial and operating results. The management, supported by the
operation units and the internal audit team, are responsible for
formulating, implementing and monitoring sound risk management and
internal control systems, and reporting to the Board and the audit
committee on the result of risk assessment, as well as the assessment on
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.
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The internal audit provides an independent appraisal on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The yearly internal audit plan is derived based on the assessed
risk of the Group's major operations and business and, taking into account
also result of internal audit activities conducted in the preceding period,
are reported to the audit committee for approval. In addition to its
scheduled internal audit works, the internal audit team may be requested
to conduct other review or investigative work. The results of internal audit
reviews and agreed management action plans in response to
recommendations of the internal audit are reported to the executive
director and audit committee periodically. In case material internal control
defects are noticed, the internal audit team will perform further
investigation and report the confirmed material defects and findings to the
audit committee for further action, if any. The internal audit also follows up
with management regarding the implementation of the agreed action
plans to ensure that operation procedures and internal controls are
continuously enhanced.

In addition to the assessment and review of risk management and internal
controls conducted by the internal audit team, the half-yearly review and
annual audit conducted by our external auditors, aim to provide assurance
that the Group's financial statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, the Group’s accounting policies
and applicable laws, rules and regulations, will also provide to certain
extent independent checks on the Group's internal controls system.

For the year ended 31 December, 2024, management has conducted
regular reviews during the year on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems covering all material aspects
related to financial, operational and compliance controls, various functions
for risk management and security of physical assets and information
systems. The audit committee had been reported during the audit
committee meetings of key findings identified by internal auditors and
external auditors and discussed findings and actions or measures taken in
addressing those findings relating to the Group's risk management and
internal controls. No material issues on the risk management and internal
controls system have been identified during the year ended 31 December
2024 and no significant areas of concern which might require rectification
works or affect our stakeholders, including our shareholders. The Board
and its audit committee considered the risk management and internal
control system to be effective and adequate, including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training and budget of its
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

Commitment to Transparency

The Board emphasizes in creating and maintaining a high level of
transparency through timely disclosure of relevant information on the
Group's business and activities to the shareholders, investors, media and
investing public, through regular press releases, analyst’s briefings, press
conferences, as well as timely updating of the Company’s website. Our
executive director and management, who look after the business
operation, are committed to respond to enquiries from regulators,
shareholders and business partners.
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Investors’ Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company regards high quality reporting as an essential element in
building successful relationships with its shareholders. The Company
always seeks to provide relevant information to existing and potential
investors, not only to comply with the different regulatory requirements in
force but also to enhance transparency and communications with the
shareholders and the investing public. This is part of a continuous
communication program that encompasses meetings and relevant
announcements to the market in addition to periodic written reports in the
form of preliminary results announcement and the publication of interim
and annual reports. The annual general meeting of the Company also
provides an opportunity for communication between the Board and the
shareholders.

In addition, the Company maintains a corporate website on which
comprehensive information about the Group is made available on a timely
basis. The shareholders communication policy of the Company is also
available on the Company’s website and is reviewed periodically to ensure
that such policy is effectively implemented and so far the Company
considered the arrangement and communication channel stated in such
policy remains effective and sufficient during the year. Regular meetings
are also held with institutional investors and research analysts to provide
them with timely updates on the Group's latest business developments
which are not inside information (as defined under the Listing Rules) in
nature. These activities will keep the public informed of the Group's
activities and foster effective communications.

The Group also participated in investment conferences and forums during
the year in order to enhance the awareness of the investing public of the
Group's business operations and development strategies.

The Company is committed to ensuring that it is fully complied with
disclosure obligations stipulated in the Listing Rules and other applicable
laws and regulations, and that all shareholders and potential investors have
an equal opportunity to receive and obtain externally available information
released by the Group.

Dividend Policy

The Company currently does not have a pre-determined dividend payout
ratio. Any declaration, payment and amount of dividend in the future are
subject to the Board's discretion having regard to the Group's future
financial performance and earnings, capital requirement financial
conditions and other factors as the Board may consider relevant.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company, any
one or more shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, on a one
vote per share basis, shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business or resolution specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the shareholder(s) himself (themselves)
may convene a physical meeting at only one location which will be the
principal meeting place, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
shareholder(s) as a result shall be reimbursed to the shareholder(s) by the
Company.

The above written requisition shall be addressed to the Company’s head
office at 20th Floor, East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong.

The procedures regarding proposing a person for election as a director are
set out under the “"Corporate Information” on the homepage of the
Company's website.

For details in relation to shareholders’ right, please refer to the articles of
association of the Company which is available on the website of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board in writing
through the company secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Company Secretary

Lifestyle China Group Limited

20th Floor, East Point Centre

555 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2838 2030

Email: info@lifestylechina.com.hk

Constitutional Documents
During the year, the Company has not made any changes to its
memorandum and articles of association.

The consolidated version of the Company’s memorandum and articles of

association has been published at the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.
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Profile of Directors

EEEN

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lau, aged 71, joined the Company in January 2016. He is the Chairman
and chief executive officer, and is also director of certain subsidiaries and
all associated companies of the Company. Mr. Lau is also the executive
chairman of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (the shares of which
were withdrawn from listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited in December 2022 pursuant to a privatization
initiative). He is a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference Shanghai Committee and a member of the board of directors
of the Shanghai Jiao Tong University, the PRC. Mr. Lau is the father of Mr.
Lau Kam Sen and Ms. Lau Kam Shim.

Mr. Lau Kam Sen

Mr. KS Lau, aged 36, was appointed an executive director of the Company
on 20 March 2023 and has served as director of certain subsidiaries and
associated companies of the Company since August 2023. He is also an
executive director of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (the shares of
which were withdrawn from listing on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in December 2022 pursuant to a
privatization initiative). Prior to joining the group companies of Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited, he has worked in investment banking with a
global financial institution in Hong Kong. He has also served as board
member of Fudan University since November 2024. Mr. KS Lau holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree from Columbia University in the City of New York
and a Master of Arts degree from New York University. He is the son of Mr.
Lau Luen Hung, Thomas and the brother of Ms. Lau Kam Shim.

Ms. Lau Kam Shim

Ms. Lau, aged 37, was appointed an executive director of the Company on
20 March 2023 and has served as director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company since August 2023. She is also an executive director of Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited (the shares of which were withdrawn from
listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in
December 2022 pursuant to a privatization initiative). She is currently the
president of the International Association of Department Stores. Ms. Lau is
also a member of the Executive Committee of the Hong Kong Retail
Management Association, a member of the Retail & Tourism Committee
with the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce and has been
appointed as the Chairlady of the Retail Trade Training Board of the
Vocational Training Council with effect from 1 April 2025. She holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree from King's College London, University of London
and a Master of Arts degree from Columbia University in the City of New
York. Ms. Lau is the daughter of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas and the sister
of Mr. Lau Kam Sen.
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Non-executive Director

Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy

Ms. Chan, aged 63, joined the Company in March 2016. She has over 20
years of experience in corporate management. Ms. Chan holds a Master
degree in Business Administration from the University of Leicester, United
Kingdom and a Bachelor degree in Laws from the University of
Wolverhampton, United Kingdom.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Cheung Mei Han

Ms. Cheung, aged 59, joined the Company in June 2016. Ms. Cheung is a
practicing solicitor in Hong Kong and holds a Bachelor degree in Laws
from the University of London and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from
the University of Hong Kong. She is also an associate member of The
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) and The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries). Ms. Cheung has more than 30 years of experience
in the company secretarial sector. She has pursued her career in the legal
sector since 2006 and is currently a partner at S.Y. Wong & Co, a law firm in
Hong Kong. She is the President of the Sailing Federation of Hong Kong,
China.

Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond

Mr. Cheung, aged 70, joined the Company in June 2016. Mr. Cheung is an
entrepreneur and has over 10 years of experience in the department store
industry. He also has over 20 years of experience in the textile and
garment manufacturing industries and served as a director of the 15th
Board of Directors of the Federation of Hong Kong Garment
Manufacturers in 1992.

Mr. Lam Kwong Wai

Mr. Lam, aged 69, joined the Company in June 2016. Mr. Lam was
executive director, group financial controller and company secretary of
Chinese Estates Holdings Limited, a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, until his resignation in May 2023. He has
over 40 years of experience in auditing, finance and accounting industries.
Mr. Lam is a Certified Public Accountants (Practising) and holds a Master
degree in Business Administration from the University of Warwick, United
Kingdom.
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Directors’ Report

EEERE

The board of directors ("Board”) of the Company present their annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are the operation of department stores and
related retailing business as well as property investment in the PRC.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 74.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2024.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2024, comprising the discussion of the future business development and
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, are set out in the
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 4 to 5 and pages 6 to 17 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the “Five-Year Group Financial

J

Summary” on page 159. No important event affecting the Group has

occurred since the end of the financial year under review.

Discussions on the Group's environmental policies and performance,
relationships with key stakeholders, and compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations are contained in the "Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 18 to 39 of this annual report.
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Shares
Details of movements during the year in the shares of the Company are set
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Debentures
The Group has not issued any debentures during the year.

Distributable Reserves
Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in note 42 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The Group is principally involved in retail business which consists of direct
sales and sales under concessionaire arrangement. During the year, less
than 30% of the Group's revenue were attributed by the Group's five
largest customers and approximately 72% of the Group's purchase were
attributed by the Group's five largest suppliers in respect of our direct
sales and approximately 29% of the Group's purchases were attributed by
the largest supplier.

To the knowledge of the directors, none of the directors, their respective
close associates or any shareholder who owned more than 5% of the
number of issued shares had interest in any of the five largest suppliers of
the Group.

Donations
During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately RMB307,000 (2023: RMB1,838,000).

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.
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Directors’ Report (continued) & =& 1§ & (&)

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lau Kam Sen

Ms. Lau Kam Shim

Non-executive Director
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Cheung Mei Han

Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond

Mr. Lam Kwong Wai

In accordance with Article 84 of the articles of association of the Company,
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy, Mr. Lau Kam Sen and Ms. Lau Kam Shim will
retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Changes in Information of Directors
Below are the changes in director’s information as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules:

Mr. Lau Kam Sen has served as board member of Fudan University
since November 2024.

Ms. Lau Kam Shim has been appointed as Chairlady of the Retail

Trade Training Board of the Vocational Training Council with effect
from 1 April 2025.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2024, the directors’ and the chief executive's interests
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO")), as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code") as set out in
Appendix C3 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange ("Listing Rules”) were as follows:

EENRBSTHRAERRKRG - HERS
REER ZER
RZZEZWNF+—A=1+—H FFZREST
HA BRER TS AR 2 BEOEE (R(GEF K
BRI BH LB G ]) EXVEPFREE)
281D~ AR AD KR ERERE R A R IERE 55 K A
BIEHIE3521 R EL N AETF 2 ELMAK
BEEBBMEXSAER AR (B2 ES L
MR ([ ERE]) MExC3pEl 2 ( EmETA
BERETHEFRHNEESFRAN(FLEFAI]) A
FITHGARR T REE R FT 2 fEm Bok B &5
T

Long position in shares of the Company REAQARRGBZHER
Number of Percentage of
Name of director Capacity/Nature of interest shares held issued shares
BERSG HERTRAG
EEpg B HEHEE #E ZESHL
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Beneficial owner 252,051,460 17.21%
gl ytes EmEA A
Interest of controlled corporations (Note) 844,988,832 57.70%
REGDEE R (M)
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy Beneficial owner 297,000 0.02%

g%/ ME BamEAA

Note: The 844,988,832 shares comprise:

(a) 540,000,000 shares held by United Goal Resources Limited (“United Goal”).
United Goal is ultimately owned as to 80% by Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
through Asia Prime Assets Limited (“Asia Prime”, the entire issued share
capital of which is wholly owned by Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas) and as to
20% by certain family members of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Joseph, the elder
brother of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lau Luen
Hung, Thomas is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares in
which United Goal is interested.

(b) 304,988,832 shares held by Dynamic Castle Limited (“Dynamic Castle”),
which is wholly owned by Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is deemed to be interested in the same
parcel of shares held by Dynamic Castle.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the directors or
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. Nor any of the directors and chief
executive had any interest in, or had been granted any right to subscribe
for the securities of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or had exercised any such right during
the year under review.
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Interests of Shareholders Discloseable under the SFO

As at 31 December 2024, the following persons (other than a director or
the chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or notified to the
Company:

REFZRBERINETHE 2RR
B

RZBZMFE+-_A=+—H8 " THALTE
EADAEBARSTHAR) RARF 2R
RABBAIR 9 5 A 1R R 45 0 5 ) 58 336
BERBNAR L BRANIARALT 2
KA BIIT

Long position in shares of the Company REQXARGZHR
Number of Percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held issued shares
BERH HERITRG
=L B REEME =] ZBEDH
United Goal Beneficial owner (Note 2) 540,000,000 36.87%
EmiAa A (FiE2)
Asia Prime Interest of controlled corporation 540,000,000 36.87%
(Notes 1 and 2)
EEHERE R (M1 R2)
Dynamic Castle Beneficial owner (Note 2) 304,988,832 20.83%
EmiAa A (fzE2)
Notes: B EE -
1. Asia Prime, a company wholly owned by Mr. Lau Luen Hung,Thomas, holds 80% of 1. Asia Prime RB|EBEELERA2RE AFE

the entire issued share capital of United Goal. By virtue of the SFO, Asia Prime is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares comprising 540,000,000

shares in which United Goal is interested as beneficial owner.

2. Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, Mr. Lau Kam Sen and Ms. Lau Kam Shim are directors
of United Goal, Asia Prime and Dynamic Castle.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified by any
person (other than a director or the chief executive of the Company) who
had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2024 which were recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or notified to the
Company.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Equity-linked Agreements

The Group has not entered into any equity-linked agreements during the
year.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

There was no competing business of which a director of the Company had
an interest which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
and Contracts

Save as disclosed under the section "Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company or any entities connected with the director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto,
provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of
any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of the directors. There is
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
directors and officers of the Group.

Continuing Connected Transactions

EERBREE 2R
EVNGE £ B O et S e
HAIEBI0AT RE S s -

ESNRE RGN zER

BTX[FHERERS | —FAEEN  KAARE
FREEFERENTASEREARRARRE
E{RIB B A BB AT 32 B A 4 48 o 4F (R (T a] B AT
RERMZEARS  RHHANT - EEKHEE
HHEERER -

BEFZREE
REARR 2 EMERADR  BUEFARERE
EHIA - SR TT E BTG T AT BB 2Rl B A Bt
MRz —BXLEERARAEETESR
B ERERBETLEREERNEETRES ZH
FRTNEHEBNERNFE - ARFCA/EAEHE
EENAMBEREEENESARARBEL
REBRIERRE

FEREXS

The following transaction constituted non-exempt continuing connected BEZZT_MNF+-A=+—HIEFERXN ' RI&
transactions of the Company (“Continuing Connected Transactions”) imiﬁﬂu ViIN/N _]ZTW FSIBKTER RIS
under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2024. B (I HE@AERS]) -
1.  Tenancy Agreements 1. HEHS
Transaction Party Name of Date of Nature of Annual caps amount Transaction amount
within the Group Counter Party agreement Terms transaction for the year 2024 for the year 2024
k- S 3] b S 1} 3
REBRAH REHHER iE LR 8 THtE FELREE R5¢H
(RMB'000) (RMB'000)
(AR®F ) (AR®F7)
Shanghai Ongoing Shanghai Joinbuy (i) 26 November () 1 October 2004 to () Lease of entire () (a) Lease/Rental Expense: (i (a) Lease/Rental Expense:
Department Store City Plaza Co. Ltd." 2004 30 September 2024 building of BE/ Ml BE/BeRX
Limited ("Shanghai ("Shanghai Joinbuy it 313 ’%TEEJrﬂ Az Shanghai Joinbuy 121,000 96,841
Ongoing”), City Plaza"), a +—RA=t75A City Plaza Building (Note 2)
a company owned company owned of ("Shanghai (MzE2)
of 5% by the Group 50% by the Group Premises”) (Note 2) (b) Management Fee: (b) Management Fee:
(Note 1) (Note 1) BERELBAR EEE: ERE:
TEAKBRERAA t?ﬂﬁ*ﬁiﬁg%ﬁﬁﬁ BmESAE 33,000 32847
([ EBAK]) - AF([ EENESD ([ Liemes5i)) (Note 2)
REEEH6%RIE %)) 4"*.1’% (M32) (M3x2)
#aa () S0%REN R . . . . .
GED (i) 28 December (i) 1 October 2024 to (ii) Lease of the (i) (a) Turnover Rent: (i) (&) Tumover Rent:
202 30 September 2044 Shanghai Premises EEEAG: EETES:
ZZoCE “EoMETA-RE (Note 3) 14,000 9,772
TZAZTAR “TMMERA=TH HELBEESH (Note 4)
(F3E3) GED)
(b) Management Fee: (b) Management Fee:
EEE: EEE:
11,000 10,794
(Note 4)
(FizE4)

n

" The English name is translated for identification purpose only
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Entrusted Loan Agreements

2. ZEXERMHE

Transaction Party Name of Date of Nature of Annual caps amount Transaction amount
within the Group Counter Party agreement Terms transaction for the year 2024 for the year 2024
“ECMEY it S 13
rEERAH REHBER EEE £5 TH%E FELREE 2588
(RMB'000) (RMB'000)
(AR®F ) (AR¥%T7)
Shanghai Shanghai Joinbuy (i) 23 June 2021 (i) 23 June 2021 to (i) Provision of (i) 100,000 (i) NIL
Ongoing (Note 1) City Plaza (Note 1) “E--F 22 June 2024 entrusted loan(s) (Note 5) &
LERK (W) LENERTES (1) ~AZtZH “EC-ERACTZRE (Note 5) (fftz£5)
“RoMESAZTZR REZTER
(Fizs)
(ii) 24 June 2024 (ii) 24 June 2024 to (ii) Provision of (ii) 60,000 (i) NIL
EopmE 23 June 2027 entrusted oan(s) (Note 6) &
~AZTRA ZRCMESAZTHER (Note ¢) (tite)
ZtFRAZTZR REZTER
(ko)

Notes: Pt T -

1. Shanghai Ongoing is owned as to 5% by /8 W& (£ E) B R A & 1. EAxBa DEAE (RE)BERAF(NAE
(Shanghai Joinbuy Group Co., Ltd.") (“Joinbuy Group”) and 30% by /& SED R EBANEBROERRF(NLER
NEMRDABR 2 (Shanghai Joinbuy Co., Ltd.") (“Joinbuy Co.”). Joinbuy 1) 5 Bl #E 5% R30%AHE - LA KB R
Group and Joinbuy Co. (whose controlling shareholder is Joinbuy Group), NERG (HIZERERRANEEE) HALE
being substantial shareholders of Shanghai Ongoing, are connected AKXREERRE - ARRAIRHE AR EED
persons of the Company at the subsidiary level. As Shanghai Joinbuy City BEAT BHREBNLEWTESHENES
Plaza is owned as to 12% by Joinbuy Group and 38% by Joinbuy Co., ERAERGD 5 RIES 12% K% 38% MK - 1R
Shanghai Joinbuy City Plaza is an associate of Joinbuy Co. and a B ETRE - EEhBERTESANERS
connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level under the Listing OB B A A e AN 1) BIBA B B 2 RSB T 0 A 52
Rules. At e

2. Further details of the transaction and the annual caps were set out in the 2. RHREE FREE—DSHEHNARFBH
announcement “Renewal of Annual Caps” of the Company dated 30 BRIE-_—FT-_A=1THIEEFE LR
December 2021. Since the tenancy agreement was entered into by the WRE - AR ZEERZAAEERNERNE
Group before the adoption of HKFRS 16, such tenancy agreement has BB ImEERE165RATE] L - ZHE =
been classified as continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A of BEREETRAE T NAR RSB AGER
the Listing Rules. B

3. The new tenancy agreement entered into between Shanghai Ongoing as 3 EEAKWEREEAN)E EENERTES
tenant and Shanghai Joinbuy City Plaza as landlord in relation to the (EREDN_ZF-__F+-_A-+N\AL
Shanghai Premises dated 28 December 2022 (“New Shanghai Jiuguang B ISIET L 2 SR E e (R EE A E
Tenancy Agreement”) constituted very substantial acquisition and one-off HHEERE]) RE ETRABRARR ZIEE
connected transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules which was BAUEEERNMBERS - BERER
approved by the shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary general T - =F= AT REITZARARIEREER
meeting of the Company held on 20 March 2023. Further details of the RE HHE - FAMEE - ARG E—F5F
transaction have been set out in the Company’s announcement dated BERARRBHA T _—F+-A-+tN
28 December 2022 (“Announcement”) and circular dated 22 February 2023 Az ((Zas) REA—S-_=F_A
("Circular”) in relation to the New Shanghai Jiuguang Tenancy Agreement. “tHo-RzBE((ZER])) - NBRBEEH LE

AKRBEHEWZ
4. Further details of the annual caps for the period from 1 October 2024 to 31 4. ERE_Z-_NF+A—HRBE_Z_F

December 2024, and for the two financial year ending 31 December 2025
and 2026, were set out in the Announcement and the Circular. Payment of
the turnover rent (if any) and management fees under the New Shanghai

Jiuguang Tenancy Agreement constitutes continuing connected

transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

FIEPEKEARLE —FT-_NFFR

T A=+ BEE UEREE-T-RER
ZEAFT AT AUEREMBREEZ
FE LR E—TFHFBHENZRE RZRE
RIE EMRAFEUAE - HT EEAKEERE
B TRz g ¥EEAe (e REE
BEKARRZHERERS -
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5. Further details of the transaction and the annual caps were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 June 2021 and its supplemental
announcement dated 28 June 2021.

6. Further details of the transaction and the annual caps were set out in the

announcement of the Company dated 24 June 2024.

" The English name is translated for identification purpose only

All the Continuing Connected Transactions above have been reviewed by
the independent non-executive directors of the Company who have
confirmed that for the year ended 31 December 2024, the Continuing
Connected Transactions have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms or
better; and (iii) according to the agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders
as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Notice 740 (Revised) "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

To the extent the transactions disclosed above which are also related party
transactions as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, these related party transactions constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and the Company has complied with the relevant
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.
Certain related party transactions in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements constituted connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are exempt
from shareholders’ approval and disclosure and other requirements.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any listed securities of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2024.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the basis of the employees’
merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the directors of
the Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee, taking into
consideration to the Company's operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

Employees

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 1,078 employees
(including executive directors), with 1,072 based in the Chinese Mainland
and 6 in Hong Kong. The staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments)
amounted to RMB204.9 million (2023: RMB208.4 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2024. The Group ensures that pay levels of its
employees are competitive and in line with the market trend and its
employees are rewarded on a performance related basis within the
general framework of the Group's salary and bonus system.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s shares has been
held by the public as at the date of this report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers ("PwC") . A resolution will be submitted to the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to reappoint PwC as
auditor of the Company. There has been no change in auditor of the
Company in any of the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

31 March 2025

FliEFEREARRAF —T-NFFH
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

B ABERE

_E
pwec

To the Shareholders of Lifestyle China Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Qualified Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Lifestyle China Group Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on
pages 74 to 158, comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2024;
o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income for the year then ended;

J the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

J the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

J the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising

material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the comparability of the
current year's figures and the corresponding figures in relation to the
matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report,
the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Comparability of the current year’s figures and the corresponding
figures for the year ended 31 December 2023 in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity

As further detailed in note 17 to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, the Group holds equity interests in certain associates herein
referred to as "Beiren Group”. For the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Group recognised share of profits of associates of RMB230.7million and
investments in associates of RMB3,701.8 million in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024. Out of these
amounts, RMB230.1 million of the share of profits of associates for the year
and RMB3,697.7 million of the carrying value of investments in associates
as at 31 December 2024 were attributable to the Beiren Group.

In 2019, the Group recognised an expected credit loss allowance, net of
deferred tax credit (“Full Impairment”) against the entire overdue trade
receivable balance due from three PRC companies (“Debtors”) of the
Beiren Group (“Trade Receivables”). This was accounted for in the Group’s
share of results of the Beiren Group. Such Trade Receivables are
guaranteed by the ultimate beneficial owner of the Debtors (the
“Guarantor”). The impact of the Full Impairment on the Group’s share of
losses of associates, loss attributable to owners and loss attributable to
non-controlling interests for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted
to RMB812.4 million, RMB487.4 million and RMB325.0 million respectively.

We previously qualified our auditor’s report on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 due to a
limitation of scope as we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to determine whether adjustments to the carrying amount
of the Trade Receivables (nil balance) and the related deferred tax credit in
respect of the aforementioned Full Impairment carried forward were
necessary.

In relation to the audit of the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2023, based on the information available as
well as previous court judgements, the Group's independent legal adviser
was of the opinion that the likelihood of recoverability of the balance of
Trade Receivables was very low. The Group’s management were of the
view that the legal advice obtained further strengthened the basis of their
assessment that the recoverability of the Trade Receivables was remote
and an expected credit loss allowance made for the full amount of the
Trade Receivables as at 31 December 2023 was appropriate.

FliEFEREARRAF —T-NFFH
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The legal opinion obtained supports to the Group's assessment of the
amount of expected credit allowance against the Trade Receivables as at
31 December 2023. However, we were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence we considered necessary to assess the
recoverable amount of the Trade Receivables as at 1 January 2023. Our
audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023 was qualified because of the abovementioned scope
limitation on the opening balances, which could have a consequential
effect on (i) the Group's share of profits of associates for the year ended
31 December 2023, and (i) the Group's profit attributable to owners and
profit attributable to non-controlling interests in the Group's consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Because of the possible effects of this matter on the comparability of the
current year's figures and the corresponding figures for the year ended
31 December 2023 in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and the consolidated statement of changes
in equity, our opinion on the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2024 is therefore qualified.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the matter described
below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report.

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.
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Key Audit Matter
BB R

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB NAHEARENBHETEE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

ME BERJBUREAEEEWRETE
Refer to notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

REREVBEMERME14K15

The Group has identified several department store properties
with impairment indicators which are either loss-making or
vacant during the year. As of 31 December 2024, the related
balances of property, plant, and equipment and right-of-use
assets amounted to RMB4,173.6 million and RMB1,839.1
million respectively.

AEBERFANBNE THRREFROBEEYE  ZF
MEHELEFBEXEE - BE-T-_WF+=-A=+—8"
Y% BEMREALEREEERBZHBIIASAR
%4736 BB TR ARKE1,8391BET -

Management conducted impairment assessments for these
department store properties which involve estimating their
recoverable amount using the higher of the value-in-use and
the fair value less cost of disposal. Significant assumptions
and judgement were involved in the impairment
assessments.

EREHZSAEEYEFETRENG  PRANBEREE
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Our audit procedures to address this key audit matter, amongst
other procedures, included but are not limited to:

HFERIB U R BT RN FEF (BREEMIZF) BIEET
FR7

o Understood management’s assessments based on
respective department store performance as to which
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
demonstrated indicators of impairment;
BREEAEERR BREEERDE  BEREREA
K fF RS ER R R ERRORTE

o Understood management'’s processes in relation to the
preparation of impairment assessment and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and the judgement
involved;

THREBETERENGEGRIEFENBRE TBHBZE
BT HEE LR IRE RS R 89 #I e - 5T B RHE R
bR st 6 (B 45 LB

o Assessed the competence, capability and objectivity of
the independent professional valuer;

B HEGEMIES  REARFEIL

o Obtained the valuation report and discussed with the
independent professional valuer and management to
understand and evaluate the valuation methodologies
and the key assumptions used;

ERLERSE - VB FE M (EMREREETIR
AT @R FHEMFEANGEETENEERE
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Key Audit Matter
BB

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNESTNAHBEARETSRETEE

Management determined the recoverable amount based on
the fair value less cost of disposal of the department store
properties with the assistance of an independent professional
valuer. The recoverable amount were assessed with reference
to the fair value of department store properties determined
using either the income capitalisation method or the direct
comparison method, as considered appropriate.
EBEHEEGEMNH T  BEEERATERMBESKAE
ETAEEDENAKOSE - JHESEI2EEANER
FAREELEERTIREMNE) MEETHNAEENERATE
TR -

The key assumptions adopted by management in the
valuation under the income capitalisation method are
capitalisation rates and prevailing market rents and for the
valuation under the direct comparison method, the key
assumption is unit prices of comparable transactions.
EREERDETHHETRANEIZBRRAERNEEXRR
ImEHES  MEEBRLBETHMEHESD  TEREK/AE
B S H BB -
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° Involved our valuation specialists to assess the valuation
methodologies and the reasonableness of the key
assumptions applied in the valuation, including the
capitalisation rates, prevailing market rents and unit
prices of comparable transactions;
ZREGEEEFUTMEEETDERGERANZZHRR (B
FBEREE - BRITHSESRABELRTSNELER)
&R

. Tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of
input data applied in the valuation by the independent
professional valuer to relevant supporting evidence; and
MR - - B EEAEMNMEEDTERD
WA BB R KA - I EARR X FF R IR TR
R

° Evaluated the recoverable amount adopted by
management and their sensitivity analysis with change in
key assumptions to consider the downside effect of such
changes, if any.
AEEEEMRANTTRCSEREHTIEZRREDH
BRESN - WEBUEZE (B AT m RN B H Y
2 o

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the key

assumptions and judgement adopted by management in the

Group's impairment assessment of property, plant and

equipment and right-of-use assets for the relevant department

store properties were supported by the available evidence.

RBPAATHRER  RMABREBER EXEEVE  KE
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued) %5 37 # £ £ 5} &5(4&)

Other Information
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued) % 7 # £ & & 5(4&)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued) %5 37 # £ £ 5} &5(4&)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed for
purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yuen Kwok Kin Andrew.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEEERkEMEEKRER

for the year ended 31 December 2024 Bl ZE —E N+ - A=+—AILFE

2024 2023
—EC-NE —BE-=F
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
k3 AR®T T ARET T
Revenue WA 4 1,252,612 1,348,975
Cost of sales $HEE A AR (550,591) (563,541)
Gross profit EH 702,021 785,434
Other income and gains Ha A R ias 6 204,346 217,636
Selling and distribution costs $HE K5 SHBAR (578,279) (612,132)
Administrative expenses THHAX (255,039) (261,326)
Interest and investment income FERKE WA 7 52,029 73,862
Share of profit of a joint venture EfE—RE& &R 18 32,315 27,238
Share of profits of associates JE (R E & R B A 17 230,698 308,939
Finance costs BRE KA 8 (186,916) (181,938)
Profit before taxation B 5 AT S ) 201,175 357,713
Taxation IE (82,119) (82,164)
Profit for the year AN E 5 A 10 119,056 275,549
Other comprehensive income Hfh 2 [ W as
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to BEE R REEF DEE
profit or loss: BwmzER
Exchange differences arising on translation of BMEGINERRESE
foreign operations ZEHERE 7 20
Other comprehensive income for the year REEZAMEE R 7 20
Total comprehensive income for the year AEFTENRAE 119,063 275,569
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: REEZREN (EEB),/
i A
Owners of the Company VN/NCIE SN (20,105) 87,767
Non-controlling interests IR AR RE = 139,161 187,782
119,056 275,549
Total comprehensive (loss)/income fE(R2m (E518),/
attributable to: et 5
Owners of the Company VN/NCIETZ SN (20,098) 87,787
Non-controlling interests RIS RE 2 139,161 187,782
119,063 275,569
RMB RMB
AR%TT AR
(Losses)/earnings per share attributable to owners AN A& HEH AL 2
of the Company Tk (&E), BT
— Basic and diluted — BEARNE#E 13 (0.014) 0.060
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB RER

asat 31 December 2024 R —ZE —_NF+=-A=+—H

2024 2023
—E-nmF —EZ=F
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000
hg= AR®T ARET T
*Restated
*E 5|
Non-current assets IERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB R&E 14 4,884,676 5,042,882
Right-of-use assets PHEEE 15 3,426,205 3,569,973
Investment property WEME 16 1,200,081 1,230,863
Investments in associates REEZE N FIRIRE 17 3,701,776 3,572,148
Investment in a joint venture R—EEELENRE 18 366,621 364,455
Deferred tax assets REFRIBEE 19 32,586 26,081
Other receivables H b W FR I8 20 19,930 14,930
Bank deposits SRITER 24 618,600 553,214
14,250,475 14,374,546
Current assets MEEE
Inventories T8 21 97,177 93,877
Trade and other receivables EUERF &ﬁﬁw&‘u&zmﬁ 20 164,876 185,316
Amount due from associates FEW%M”_\ 1B 23 146,692 112,782
Structured bank deposits g \Efﬂﬂr 25 509,510 580,800
Cash and bank balance Iﬁ/f KERITH#TF 24 1,825,205 1,689,612
2,743,460 2,662,387
Current liabilities mEAaE
Trade and other payables JERBRAR R R IR 26 955,314 959,356
Amount due to a joint venture BN —HEEELERE 22 32,617 37,640
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder FERTRT B A Rl — %
of subsidiaries FEIERR AR R 2 FRIE 30 26,142 26,142
Tax payable JE B8 19,937 26,521
Bank borrowings — due within one year RITEE ——FRNIH 27 60,000 40,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 51,949 45,809
Contract liabilities AHEaE 29 9,821 13,668
1,155,780 1,149,136
Net current assets FRBEE 1,587,680 1,513,251
Non-current liabilities FERBAE
Bank borrowings — due after one year RITHEE — —F& I H 27 3,178,000 3,238,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 1,514,581 1,566,061
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEAE 19 75,897 67,198
4,768,478 4,871,259
11,069,677 11,016,538

FIEPEKEARLE —FT-_NFFR

75



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued) %= & 81 7% it s & ()
asat31 December2024 A —Z-_WNFE+_-_A=+—H

2024 2023
—EC-NE —E-=F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
i AR¥TR ARWEFTT
*Restated
*E& 7

Capital and reserves NN
Share capital [N 31 6,291 6,291
Reserves G 9,372,191 9,392,289
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RABIHER ANEGRER 9,378,482 9,398,580
Non-controlling interests FEIE MR A 1,691,195 1,617,958
11,069,677 11,016,538

The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 158 were approved  F74E158BFREVBHMEREESEN _S-H
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2025 and =R =+—B#/&ERKERZE - TH FINEE

were signed on its behalf by: REREZE:
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Mr. Lau Kam Sen
BIEEEE BSRAE
Executive Director Executive Director
HiTEF HITEF

76 Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2024



L19'690'LL G6L'169'L 87'8/€'6 SsT'liLT  (8SL'SLL) 61L'8L €65 059'e5L ZEL'ers9 1629 H—t=HZ+HHWTE&"HE ¥¢0¢ 19quisdeq LE Y
i)
.m _ _ _ (Z5'2) —_ _ _ Sz — B s SeMBS?I JO Jojsuel |
o p (r26's9) (726'59) — — — — — — — ST D s1ap|oyoeys Buj|013U0d-UOU 0} pled PUBPIAI]
11] £90'611 191'6EL (860°02) (So1'02) L - — — — BTN/ (9 BT ELY Jeak By} 1o} BWIOOUI/(550]) BAISUBYBIAWOD B30 |
.m / _ / _ / — — — — — ONETHHE LY 1eak U3 Joj BWOdUI BAISUBYRIdLI0D JBQ
("] it 950611 191'6€1 (S01'02) (01'02) — - - — — — W%/ (89 B Ly Jeak ayp 104 yj0id/(sso)
') Ly
o)) M 8ES9L0'LL  8S6'LL9'L 085'86€'6 TI8'EEL'T (S91'S11) 61L'8L €65 861'1G1 zeLers'9 1629 H-H-HW=&=% g0z Arenuer | pue
c | H—4=H=+H="&=A €¢0¢ Jequiade( L€
©
£ ,L: _ _ _ (89'9) _ _ — 9969 — _ e SOMI9S31 JO Jojsuel |
(®) m (S68'£9) (G68'£5) — — — — — — — — YW E T D siopjoyaeys Bulj|oLu0d-uou o} pied puspiAi]
r_m L_M 695'SL¢ 8L'(81 18018 19018 14 - — - - — EHIWETE LY 1eak a1} Joj aw0dU! BAISUBYRIAWOD [e10]
o+ M 0 _ 0z — 0z — — — — — CUHEITREE Y 1eak aUp 1o} BWodUl BAISUBYRIAWOD JBLRO
c I 6Y5'S/2 28.'181 19018 19018 — — — — — — WEEHY 1eak 8y} 104 joiq
e g -
m ﬂ 798'86/01  1/0'88Y'L €6L'01€'6 €1r'zs9'c (G81'sL1) 61L'8L €65 0e8'rL CEL'ers9 1629 H-H-—H=—"&"H £20¢ fenuer | 1y
Q i ULpAY LAY UIHEY LULHHEY LUIHEY LAY LIgdY LY UIHdY LrgHyY
P’ et
© N 000N 000.9NY 000.dNd 000N 000.9NY 000.dNd 000N 000,49y 000.dNd 000Ny
S
v e S L# BRHHE HE NEBY WBEE (CRM) $BOE  (CCEH)  BROE  vH
- ¥ c YBYE ¥ TRY
[} o I
oA Wy 2 @By
ﬂ { We [e10L s)sedoqul  [ejo) spyoud EINELEY] (zg @0u)  ansasal (zgotou)  wnmuwaid  |ende>
o] V_Am .m Buifjosuod paulelay  uonejsuely  aAJesal uondwopas  aAsasal aueys aleys
— E ke -uopn lendey [ende) snjdins
w m Kioymerg
[
m A_m h SRHUYEHETY
C 1 m Kuedwo? ay3 jo sisumo 03 ajqeInqLRY

77

m e 4

=z

FIRPERERRAT



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

for the year ended 31 December 2024 Bl ZE —E N+ - A=+—AILFE

2024 2023
—ETlmEF —BE-=F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Restated*
B5*
Operating activities ST
Profit before taxation B 5 B A 201,175 357,713
Adjustments for: IEYEH AT A% -
Interest income on bank deposits and other interest RITHERZ FEWA
income M EAMF] B U A (52,029) (73,862)
Finance costs B & A 186,916 181,938
Net exchange gain HIE H U (2,043) (684)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - BB R&E
nE 228,327 241,600
Depreciation of investment property BEMETE 30,782 30,782
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 143,768 148,780
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWME  BER
Byl 3 660 107
Share of profit of a joint venture Eh—HaBirE
il (32,315) (27,238)
Share of profits of associates iy /N b (230,698) (308,939)
Loss allowance on expected credit losses for trade JE LA B R e A B R L
receivables and lease receivables HEZEREE
PR BERRE (515) 6,491
Operating cash flows before movements in working EELASEBHALE
capital REemE 474,028 556,688
(Increase)/decrease in inventories & GEm, wWd (3,300) 15,594
Decrease in trade and other receivables JREE MAT B 23R e L A L2
IR D 18,815 21,959
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to a joint venture BN —HEaERERIEA
CRi), /38 (5,023) 25,060
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables JRE A B 35K e L A JE A<t
AR, /18 (12,946) 112,644
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities SR8/, N (3,847) 3,977
Cash generated from operations KREEBRRERE 467,727 735,922
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid EHFBETCEMSH (86,509) (87,579)
Net cash from operating activities KEXBREReFH 381,218 648,343
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued) %48 &% 8 X&)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 B Z — T _NF+_A=+—HIFE

2024 2023
—2-mE —T=F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBT R AREBFT
Restated*
Ell
Investing activities REEH
Interest received on bank deposits BUIRITFER 2 F & 34,872 46,136
Dividend received from associates WEE N Tz B WA B 67,160 5,657
Dividend and interest received from a joint venture H—HEEEREZBR
f% B &% A & 30,149 22,840
Investment income received from structured bank MEBERITFERZ
deposits IR E WA 14,297 15,760
Purchase of structured bank deposits BEEEMERITER (2,494,110) (2,600,450)
Redemption of structured bank deposits REVEBMERITER 2,565,400 2,019,650
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BFEL&E (61,402) (265,872)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME - WERRE
equipment FTiS k1A 166 4
Placement of bank deposits with original maturity over 7 AR E|HI H B8 = {&
three months ARRITER (2,384,015) (2,119,590)
Redemption of bank deposits with original maturity over $ZER | Hi H 818 = {&
three months ARBITER 2,428,599 1,110,987
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities BEEBME(FTR)
REFHE 201,116 (1,764,878)
Financing activities BMEEH
Repayment of bank borrowings EERTEE (40,000) (2,262,000)
New bank loans raised FERITER — 3,300,000
Repayments of principal elements of leases liabilities ERMEEREY
ENe 2 (45,340) (58,126)
Interest on leases liabilities paid HEaEBEZEMNAE (69,340) (57,698)
Interest on bank borrowing paid BHRITERFE (118,217) (123,324)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders BRAT 45 JEFE AR
BER R (65,924) (57,895)
Net cash generated (used in)/from financing activities ~ BE/EE) (FTA),FTi3
REF8 (338,821) 740,957
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY
/O ) %48 243,513 (375,578)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FUReRRESEEY 821,434 1,196,308
Effect of foreign exchange rate difference EXEZE 8 2,050 704
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FHRBeMREFEY 1,066,997 821,434
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents RERREZFEDDM
Cash and bank balances Ba MBTERF 2,443,805 2,242,826
Less: Bank deposits with original maturity B REIEIE A =1E A
more than three months K IRI1TIF 30 (1,376,808) (1,421,392)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRIBENIREEED 1,066,997 821,434

* HHEENDEPTSIBMESIFE - F2HME2R
ff5E24

See note 3.2 and note 24 for details regarding the restatement as a result of a

reclassification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2024 Bl ZE S N+ - A=+—ALLFE

80

General

Lifestyle China Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law in the Cayman Islands on 4 January 2016 and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and the principal
place of business of the Company are set out in section headed
"Corporate Information” to the annual report. The Company acts as
an investment holding company and the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are the operation of “Jiuguang” department stores and
related retailing business as well as property investment in the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC").

The Company’s ultimate controlling party is Mr. Lau Luen Hung,
Thomas (“Mr. Lau”), who is also the Chairman and executive director
of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") which is the functional currency of the Company.

Summary of material accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of those
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance ("HKCO") (Cap. 622).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a historical cost basis, except for the structured bank deposit,
which are measured at fair value. The preparation of
consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) % & B 7 $& 3% M 53(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 B Z — T _NF+_A=+—HIFE

2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(i)

(ii)

FRTERERRAF

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new and
amended standards for its annual reporting period
commencing 1 January 2024:

HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
(amendments) Current or Non-current

HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
(amendments) Covenants

HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
(amendments) Leaseback

HK Int5 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements —
Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment

on Demand Clause

(amendments)
HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance
(amendments) Arrangements

The amendments listed above did not have any impact
on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
Certain new accounting standards, amendments to
accounting standards and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for 31 December
2024 reporting periods and have not been early
adopted by the Group. These standards, amendments
or interpretations are not expected to have a material
impact on the entity in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 Bl Z — T _NFE+_A=+—HILFE

2

82

Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(b)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of financial
position respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 B Z — T _NF+_A=+—HIFE

2

FRTERERRAF

Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group's relevant components of equity and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the group ceases to consolidate or equity account for
an investment because of a loss of control, joint control or
significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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84

Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)
Investments in associates and a joint venture (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and a joint
venture are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and a joint venture used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of the
associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group's share of losses of an associate or
joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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FRTERERRAF

Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Consolidation (continued)
Investments in associates and a joint venture (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to
the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a Group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not
related to the Group.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Revenue and income recognition

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. The revenues are
presented as revenue in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a

bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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86

Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(d)

Revenue and income recognition (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs;

the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources which arise from contracts with customers:

For sales of goods, revenue is recognised when control
of the goods has been transferred to customers, being
at the point the customer purchases goods at
department stores. Payment of transaction price is due
immediately at the point the customer purchases the
goods.

Income from concessionaire sales is generated from
sales of goods by the relevant concessionaires based on
certain percentage of sales in accordance with the terms
of contracts. When the concessionaires fail to meet the
minimum guarantee income in accordance with the
terms of contracts, the minimum guarantee amount is
recognised as income. The Group recognised revenue
in the net amount of consideration to which the Group
will be entitled in exchange for the service, which is the
commission it is entitled upon the sale of goods by the
concessionaire. The concessionaire simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits of the Group's
performance in processing each sales transaction as and
when each transaction is processed.
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FRTERERRAF

Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(d)

Revenue and income recognition (continued)

. Service income is generated from the Group's
promotion, product display and billboards services at
its department stores. Such services are recognised as a
performance obligation satisfied over time.

o Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9, using
simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Other income from suppliers, concessionaires and tenants is
recognised when services are rendered.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations including obligation to provide goods or services
to customers on complementary basis and customer’s options
to acquire additional goods or services for free or at a
discount in future granted under loyalty reward program, the
Group allocates the transaction price to each performance
obligation on a relative standalone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service separately to a
customer.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(d)

Revenue and income recognition (continued)
Accounting for unredeemed gift certificates and reward
points under customer loyalty program

The unredeemed gift certificates and reward points under
customer loyalty program is recorded as contract liabilities,
and reflect the value that is expected to be redeemed, i.e.
anticipated breakage.

Breakage will need to be estimated considering the guidance
on constraining estimates of variable consideration as well as
the Group's historical experience with gift certificates and
loyalty points under loyalty reward program. Revenue is
recognised in regard to breakage in the proportion of gift
certificates and loyalty points redeemed in that period and
likely to result in the acceleration of revenue when the
possibility of redemption becomes remote.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group
recognises the amount of consideration to which it is entitled
using the most likely amount, which better predicts the
amount of consideration to which the Group is entitled.

The amount of variable consideration is included in the
transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable
that such an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue
reversal in the future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

The Group updates the estimated transaction price based on
issued statements to consignors and concessionaires
(including assessment of whether the variable consideration is
constrained) to represent fairly the circumstances present at
the end of the reporting period.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified goods or services by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that goods or services is transferred to the customers. When
the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the
amount of any fee or commission to which it expects to be
entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.

The Group acts as an agent for concessionaire as the Group
does not control the specific goods provided by the
consignors and concessionaires before goods are transferred
to a customer.
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FRTERERRAF

Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress)
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy.

Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
(other than construction in progress) less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

ltems of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated after taking into
account their estimated residual value, using straight-line
method over the following useful lives:
Buildings Over the shorter of lease terms
or 40 years
Leasehold Over the shorter of lease terms
improvements or 10 years
Plant and machinery 5to 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and 5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 5 years
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(e)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the amortisation of
right-of-use assets provided during the construction period is
included as part of costs of buildings under construction.
Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are
in the location and condition necessary for them to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
management).

Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and is not occupied by the Group.

Investment property is measured at cost, including related
transaction costs, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method to

write off the cost of the investment properties over their

estimated useful lives. Iltems of investment property are after

taking into account their estimated residual value, using

straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Buildings Over the shorter of lease terms
or 40 years

Land use right Over the lease terms

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probably that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and
maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment. At the date of
reclassification, its cost and accumulated depreciation are
transferred to property, plant and equipment and become its
cost and accumulated depreciation for accounting purposes.
If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, it is reclassified as
investment property.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 B Z — T _NF+_A=+—HIFE

2 Summary of material accounting policies

(continued)

(g) Leases
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. A contract contains a
lease if fulfilment depends on an identified asset and it
conveys the right to control the use of that identified asset
throughout the period of use.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis.

(i) Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

J fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;
and

J payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if

the lease term reflects the Group, as a lessee,
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined,
or the Group's incremental borrowing rate, being the
rate that the Group would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a
similar economic environment with similar term and
condition.
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2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(9)
(i)

(ii)

92

Leases (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the Group as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, which does not have
recent third-party financing; and

. makes adjustments specific to the lease.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate,
which are not included in the lease liability until
effective. When adjustments to lease payments based
on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between the principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the
consolidated income statement over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

. any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.
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FRTERERRAF

Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(9)

(h)

Leases (continued)

(i)  Right-of-use assets (continued)
The right-of-use assets are amortised over the shorter
of the assets’ useful lives and the lease terms on a
straight-line basis.

Right-of-use assets linked to owner occupied buildings
are measured applying the cost model relevant to that
specific class of property, plant and equipment.

(iij)  The Group as lessor
Rental income which are derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

@i

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive expense and
accumulated in equity and will be reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

0]

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based
on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
before taxation because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and a joint venture, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

0]

(k)

Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Impairment on non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
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2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)
()] Financial instruments

(i)

(ii)

FRTERERRAF

Classification
The group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through OCI or through profit or loss),
and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)
()] Financial instruments (continued)

(iii)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the group’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
There are three measurement categories into which the
group classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2 Summary of material accounting policies

(continued)

()] Financial instruments (continued)

(iii)

FRTERERRAF

Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income and
foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other
gains/(losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in
other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses
are presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss.

FVPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss
and presented net within other gains/(losses) in
the period in which it arises.
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Summary of material accounting policies

(continued)

()] Financial instruments (continued)
(iii)  Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OClI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as other income when the
group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the
statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value.

2

EXRETTERERBE (H)

SR I A (#)
it & ()
BEFITAGE)

m

(iii)

BATHA

REERERBLATA KA
BRERAVEFE-E
AEEEEEDEER
Hip 2 mEY a2 5 A
BRENRFEWRESNE
B AFERERER
REAIRHERIRERIEER
TEEHHEERER -
ZERENBRERASE
12 LS B R T ) e N S
RAEGNMERERSE
A

BRFEFABRENE
RMEEAFEEHNE
mRERAEMm R
(BR)(REREBR) -
BRFEFAREMEE
Was st BRI BRAIRE D
MEER(RBEEE
BE)TERERFER
Mo FHIR

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2024



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 B Z — T _NF+_A=+—HIFE

2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

m

(m)

(n)

FRTERERRAF

Financial instruments (continued)

(iv) Impairment
The group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
considered to be of low credit risk, it is assumed that no
significant increase in credit risk have occurred. Thus,
the impairment provision is determined as 12-month
expected losses using general expected credit losses
model.

For trade receivables and lease receivables, the group
applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables,
further details disclosed in note 20.

Trade and other payables

Trade payable are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade and other payables are presented as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months
after the reporting period. Trade and other payables are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

—E-MEER

2

BERETEERBE (&)

m

(m)

(n)

£RITA(E)

(iv) wiE
NS B E AR S A AR DI AR Y
B TANABEREESE
VEH ATBE 1 E 25T - FTA /Y
WEFEIANEERBRES
FEEREN-

SIRE AT E BRR R A
BEEERBNEREEM
5 BREERRLEREEE
e Bt - REBMETER—
RIEHEEBREEER12
B A EHEE -

LU BR 31 I R & FE MR IE T
T AEEEABEEMBRE
R ER A T RRIE T E
T 1156 T 70 B T 0 L B TR A
TEEIRHAESIE  E—ORFER
M FE209 R 45 55 -

B A R AR B HL At B Y RROR

ENERFIERBEEBBREFRHE
EEEEERAMBONREE -
e BR AR R E A AN SRR 25 B
BRE RIFFAFBETERRSE
HE+ —EAREN - BNERIK
HA BN IR S iR A FERER -
HIZABRANZRIRE RN AGTE -

rE

7B PAR A Jo Al B 3 R E 8K E A
iR o BERAUIE G EE -
AERFEETFE G ESERREE
STRZ P B iRt AR R AR SH & A
EEZBERA -

101



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 Bl Z — T _NFE+_A=+—HILFE

2

102

Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(o)

(p)

(q)

(r)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees render the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset. A liability is recognised for benefits
accruing to employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker ("CODM"). The CODM, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the chief
executive of the Company that makes strategic decisions.
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2

FRTERERRAF

Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(s)

(t)

(u)

(v)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The group holds the trade receivables with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Trade and other
receivables are generally due for settlement within 30 days
and therefore are all classified as current.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand and deposits held at call with financial
instruments and short-term bank deposits with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on
the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case,
the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs.

Borrowings are removed from the statement of financial
position when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance
costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the

Group has a right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period.
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104

Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(w)

(x)

(y)

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting
period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Structured bank deposit

Structured bank deposit is financial asset initially measured at
FVPL as interest portion is linked to non-interest rate factors
such as indices, exchange rates and commodity prices, from
which the contractual cash flows are not consistent with the
basic lending arrangement. A gain or loss that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented in interest and investment income in the period in
which it arises.

Critical accounting estimates, judgements and
reclassification

3.1

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

Significant estimates and assumptions concerning the future
may be required in selecting and applying accounting
methods and policies in these financial statements. The
Group bases its estimates and assumptions on historical
experience and various other assumptions that it believes are
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ
from these estimates or assumptions.
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3  Critical accounting estimates, judgements and
reclassification (continued)

3.1

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

(continued)

The following is a review of the more significant estimates and

assumptions used in the preparation of these financial

statements.

(a)

FRTERERRAF

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever there are
indications of impairment. The Group recognises an
impairment loss if the carrying amount of an asset is
higher than its estimated recoverable amount. The
recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets have been determined based on
the higher of their fair value less costs of disposal
("FVLCD"). Management involved independent valuer
to determine the FVLCD using direct comparison
method or income capitalisation method, where
appropriate. Estimates and judgements are applied in
determining the key assumptions of the assessments.
All key assumptions used in the valuation should reflect
market conditions at the end of each reporting period.

No impairment charge was recognized during the year.
For a department store which is currently making loss,
the related balances of property, plant, and equipment,
along with right-of-use assets, amounted to a total of
RMB5,007 million as at 31 December 2024. A
reasonably possible change in a key assumption
applied in the impairment assessment could cause the
recoverable amount to fall below the carrying value. A
1% decrease in monthly market rent would result in an
impairment charge of approximately RMB39 million,
while a 0.05% increase in the capitalisation rate would
lead to an impairment charge of approximately RMB43
million.
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3  Critical accounting estimates, judgements and
reclassification (continued)
3.1 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(continued)

(b)

(c)

106

Recognition of deferred tax assets for carried
forward tax losses

At 31 December 2024, the Group had unused tax losses
of approximately RMB1,112,771,000 (2023:
RMB992,025,000) available for offset against future
profits. For the year ended 31 December 2023,
deferred tax asset of RMB15,142,000 was recognised
for tax losses because the Group reviewed the profit
forecasts of relevant entity and determined that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available and the
tax losses can be utilised.

The realisation of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future assessable profits
or taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future. In cases where the estimated future assessable
profits or taxable temporary difference are more than
previously estimated, a material recognition of deferred
tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in
profit or loss for the period in which the revised
estimate takes place.

Provision for expected credit losses (“ECL”) of trade
receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on
internal credit ratings/past due status as groupings
of various debtors that have similar risk characteristic.
The provision matrix is based on the Group’s historical
default rates taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable supportable and
available without undue costs or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. In addition, trade
receivables with significant balances and credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The information about ECL and the Group's trade
receivables are disclosed in note 20 and 36 respectively.
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3 Critical accounting estimates, judgements and 3 HBREETHET HEREFSE
reclassification (continued) (%)
3.2 Reclassification of items in consolidated statement of 3.2 BRHBMARRGERERER
financial position and consolidated statement of cash BHEWNEFHSE
flows
In 2024, the Group has reclassified bank deposits with original RZT_WE  KEED KRS
maturity over three months from cash and cash equivalents to HBB=(EANRITEIRRE R
bank deposits. Moreover, bank deposits with a maturity date REEBYWEROBZRITFR -
beyond one year from the respective date of consolidated Lo - B ARG B ISR R & B B
statement of financial position and the related interest FEERBA—F R R RAE
receivable are reclassified to present under non-current BREWF S EEM D HEIATNERZEIE
assets. The Group has also restated the consolidated cash MENEE - AXEENEEIEGEEHR
flow statements to reflect the abovementioned reclassification SMER  ARMEMEHHE - W
as well as presenting the cash flow in respect of structured MBS 2 EBERITFRD
bank deposits in a gross basis. Consolidated statement of WEm - FEWHRRAE - HFaBRe
financial position, consolidated statement of cash flows, note MER BB EBR N H At & i
20 on trade and other receivable and note 24 on cash and FRIAM M 20 B IR & R IRIT A
bank balances have been restated to reflect the changes. 17 69 B 52242 & 51 LA R R BA |- 8
There is no impact on consolidated statement of profit or loss Bo SR YHEcERRAME
and other comprehensive income and consolidated EWam R MRS Em P BRI ER
statement of changes in equity. Below are extracted to 2oL THEBEGREUBIARE
summarise the changes on consolidated statement of RiFaRanskmE
financial position and consolidated statement of cash flows:
31 December 31 December
2023 31 December 2022
Statement of financial position (As originally Increase/ 2023 (As originally Increase/ 1 January 2023
(extract) presented) (Decrease) (Restated) presented) (Decrease) (Restated)
—E-=E —E-=E —EC-CE —E-=E
t=A=t-8 #m/ +=A=t-B +=A=t+-8 i/ -A-B
BBMRRE () (RAFIER) (D) (E5)) (R&5%R) () (B3)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETR AREFT ARETR AREFT ARETR
Non-current assets FRBEE
Bank deposits SRR - 553,214 553,214 - 84,570 84570
Other receivables Rt EARE 5353 9,577 14930 5,352 1,050 6,402
Total non-current assets FRYEELR 13,811,755 562,791 14,374,546 12,409,720 85,620 12,495,340
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables TR R B3R 0E 194,893 9,577) 185,316 211,378 (1,050) 210,328
Cash and bank balance: ReRENER:
— Bank deposits with original —RIBEBA={
maturity over three months RWEIER - 868,178 868,178 - 328,219 328,219
— Cash and cash equivalents —ReRBEZEY 2,242,826 (1,421,392 821,434 1,609,097 (412,789) 1,196,308
Total current assets MHAELE 3,225,178 (562,791) 2,662,387 2,038,940 (85,620) 1,953,320
Net current assets/iabilites) RYAE/(BR)FE 2,076,042 (562,791) 1,513,251 (353529) (85,620) (439,149)
HETEREARAR —F-NEFH 107
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3

108

Critical accounting estimates, judgements and 3
reclassification (continued)
3.2 Reclassification of items in consolidated statement of

%g%ﬁﬁﬁ\%ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ
3.2 BAMBRRERGARSKER

financial position and consolidated statement of cash BHENEHSE (B
flows (continued)
2023
(As
originally (Increase)/ 2023
presented) Decrease (Restated)
—2=-= (&), ===
(R 5 8R) A (E351)
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFIT ARBTRT ARETT
Statement of cash flow (extract) RERBR (FER)
Investing activities RETED
Purchase of structured bank deposits BEABERITEX (580,800)  (2,019,650)  (2,600,450)
Redemption of structured bank deposits REVERIERITER — 2,019,650 2,019,650
Placement of bank deposits with original FARE B E R
maturity over three months =@ ANEITER —  (2119,590)  (2,119,590)
Redemption of bank deposits with original ~ $2EUR | Hi H #8iB
maturity over three months =& A& RITIEK — 1,110,987 1,110,987
Net cash used in investing activities BEEREMAR S FRE (756,275)  (1,008,603)  (1,764,878)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HekReZEED
cash equivalents O ) F58 633,025 (1,008,603) (375,578)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNRELREEFBY
of the year 1,609,097 (412,789) 1,196,308
Effect for foreign exchange rate difference [EERER 7 2 704 — 704
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRAGRREEED
the year 2,242,826 (1,421,392) 821,434
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Revenue

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for goods
sold by the Group to customers, net of discounts and sales related
taxes, income from concessionaire sales, service income and rental
income during the year, and is analysed as follows:

A
WAEAEBEFARMBATHEERNE
Yo K% e MR TRRT H e SH S AR B IR - 2R
B RTEEIEE 2WA - IR KRAARA
SBA BT

2024 2023
—E-NE =5
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREF T

Recognised at a point in time: EREERD R
Sales of goods — direct sales ERHE —BEHEE 507,233 523,341

Recognised over time: BEERERR

Income from concessionaire sales REBHFEBEHEE Z WA 388,685 481,262
Service income R AW A 35,545 41,509
Revenue from contracts with customers KEZEFPAHZWA 931,463 1,046,112
Rental income HEUWA 321,149 302,863
Total revenue FEN N 1,252,612 1,348,975

All the above revenue is derived in the PRC.

Segment information

The Group’s operating activities are attributable to a single
operating segment under HKFRS 8 “"Operating Segments” focusing
on operation of department stores, retailing and related business as
well as property investment in the PRC. This operating segment has
been identified on the basis of internal management reports
prepared in accordance with accounting policies conform to HKFRSs
as disclosed in note 2, that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker (“"CODM") (i.e. the chief executive of the
Company). The CODM regularly reviews revenue analysis and the
profit for the year of the Group as a whole to make decisions about
resource allocation. Accordingly, no separate segment information
other than entity-wide information is presented.

The Group's non-current assets are all based in the PRC. The Group
has no customers that contributed over 10% of the total revenue of
the Group for both years.
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6  Other income and gains 6 Hftlg ARz

2024 2023
—E-MEF —EC-=%
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET R AREFTT
Management fee income BEIEEWA 128,994 127,450
Credit card recharges ERRERRE 19,688 22,433
Project income HE WA 2,371 2,820
Government subsidies (note) BT Bh (B &) 6,364 15,709
Net exchange gain RIE H U 2,043 684
Income from lessees PYERYi:PNL PN 796 796
Car park income FEHRA 20,356 20,846
Others Hi 23,734 26,898
204,346 217,636

Note: B 5E -

The amount represents government subsidies received from the PRC local
authorities for subsidising its operational activities by the Group. All of them had

ZEEETEMTE RS THORGME - EALE
BEITEEBEEBRME) o F7A H B IR B

no specific condition attached. B hnfge 4 o
7 Interest and investment income 7 FNEREKREWKRA
2024 2023
113 —ET-=F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFTT
Interest income from bank deposits RITTE R 2 FBUA 36,219 55,762
Investment income from structured bank HEEMBRITTERZEERA
deposits 15,810 18,100
52,029 73,862
8 Finance costs 8 ®MEMRK
2024 2023
—E-EF —ZE=F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET R AREFT
Interest expenses on: FERE -
— Bank borrowings — RITEE 117,576 124,240
— Lease liabilities —MHE&E 69,340 57,698
186,916 181,938
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 B Z — T _NF+_A=+—HIFE

Taxation wiE
2024 2023
—E-E —Eo=4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥EF ARETT
The tax charge comprises: MEXHBEETIEE
Current tax: REATIIA
PRC Enterprise Income Tax BT 57,655 89,480
Withholding tax FEHIF 22,270 577
79,925 90,057
Under provision in prior years: MAFEDRREE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR EPTISH - 59
— 59
Deferred tax charge/(credit) RIEF A H (M)
(note 19) (FHEE19) 2,194 (7,952)
82,119 82,164

REBEPBECEMAETA(REAETED
MEEMBBORBEED - T EMEAR
B At 2 1A P M8 4 19 2525% ©

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

AREE W EABFAIEM AEEERAE
Group has no assessable taxable profits arising from operations TEEEERTUE ] - O EEH I
outside the PRC. B -

No provision for taxation in other jurisdictions has been made as the

ARTESEERLE —T-NEFH .



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 Bl Z — T _NFE+_A=+—HILFE

12

Taxation (continued) 9 FIE ()
Tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before $¢F§ﬁlﬁiﬁgﬁiﬁ/\?§%&ﬁﬁiﬁqﬁ
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other mRPTRERTATE M 2 FERIT
comprehensive income as follows:
2024 2023
—F-MF —T=F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®F T ARETTT
Profit before taxation B i AT S ) 201,175 357,713
Tax at applicable income tax rate of 25% REAEHE25%TE 2
I8 50,294 89,428
Tax effect of share of profit of a joint venture Efh—E& &R 2 FHIE
TE (8,079) (6,809)
Tax effect of share of profits of associates IR E N B af 2 RIBFE (57,675) (77,235)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BERBBAZ HEZE
purpose (4,403) (4,125)
Tax effect of expense not deductible for tax NA[ RS 2 BB &
purpose 7,954 9,184
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised TERRIEEEHEZE 67,327 60,654
Under provision in prior years BEFETREME — 59
Withholding tax TR 22,270 10,721
Tax effect of previously unrecognised FRARBRNEREEE L
temporary differences MEZE 4,431 287
Tax charge for the year REFRIAL W 82,119 82,164
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10 Profit for the year

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 B Z — T _MF+_HA=

T—BALFE

10

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

REEmA
AREFHEFER,GEA) FHIHEE :

2024 2023
—E-MF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥EF ARETT
Directors’ remuneration (note 11): EE5Me (FIsE1) -
Fees e 1,094 1,004
Salary and allowances e KoREL 13,937 9,031
Bonus FEAT 18,470 18,196
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRAE N ET B R 32 26
33,533 28,257
Other staff costs, excluding retirement TEIERARBAEEHERINZ
benefits scheme contributions Hh B TR 183,941 187,139
Retirement benefits scheme contributions, R K& 5T S 4 5102 Uk
net of forfeited contributions for staff BT HMZ FHE 20,943 21,236
204,884 208,375
Total staff costs BB TR 238,417 236,632
Auditor’s remuneration Z AN B < 3,380 3,231
Depreciation of property, ME - BEMREBEZTE
plant and equipment 228,327 241,600
Depreciation of investment property KEMEZINE 30,782 30,782
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEZINE 143,768 148,780
(Reversal of)/Provision of loss allowance RUWEER R ERRKFIEZ
on expected credit losses for EHREEEENEE (BE
trade receivables and lease receivables B m), B (515) 6,491
Expenses related to variable lease payments 7 {5 Al & &) & 95 2 30,502 37,404
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEMEREZBE
plant and equipment 660 107
Expenses relating to low-value leases REEBE 2B 1,537 1,542
Expenses relating to short-term leases REEE 2 HBEMAX 179 437
Cost of inventories recognised as expense ~ R AL L2 FEK A 435,413 443,857

FIEPEKEARLE —FT-_NFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 Bl Z — T _NFE+_A=+—HILFE

11

14

Directors’, chief executive’s and employees’ 11 ES - BFITEREEMS
remuneration
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed R E A A E AR A R BB R RHEDI 8 R
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and HKCO, are as follows: WAFEEERERNITEMNEOT :
2024 —EME
Non-
executive
Executive Directors Director Independent Non-executive Directors
HTES FHTES BIFHTES
Lau Chan Cheung
Luen Hung, Lau Lau  Chor Ling, Lam  Yuet Man, Cheung Mei
Thomas*  KamSen  Kam Shim Amy KwongWai  Raymond Han Total
EIE O 858 858 RE®R HRR RIRX RER @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRT ARTR ARMTR ARBTT AR¥TR ARMTR AR¥TRT ARMTR
Fees we 182 182 182 137 137 137 137 1,094
Other emoluments Hitf
Salaries and other benefits He REMBET 8,197 2,870 2,870 - - - - 13,937
Bonus* TEAT* 9,236 4,617 4,617 - - - - 18,470
Retirement benefits schemes RAEFIEIGT
contributions - 16 16 - - - - 32
Total emoluments Hems 17,615 7,685 7,685 137 137 137 137 33,533
2023 —F-=
Non-
executive
Executive Directors Director Independent Non-executive Directors
BiTES FNTES BUFNTES
Lau Chan Cheung
Luen Hung, Lau Lau  ChorLing, Lam  YuetMan, Cheung
Thomas* Kam Sen  Kam Shim Amy  KwongWai  Raymond Mei Han Total
ElE s SR 25% BER MR F FIMX RER b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARETRT ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARBTT ARETR
Fees ik 180 142 142 135 135 135 135 1,004
Other emoluments Hitf &
Salaries and other benefits HeREMER 6,481 1,275 1,275 — — — — 9,031
Bonus* TEAT* 9,098 4,549 4,549 — — - - 18,196
Retirement benefits schemes RERF R
contributions — 13 13 — — — — 26
Total emoluments Hens 15,759 5979 5979 135 135 135 135 28,257

*

The bonus is determined having regard to the Group's and the executive

directors’ performance for each of the reporting period.

#

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, is also the chief executive of the Company.

* RANESEERBASERNTESESE
BMmEHNRRMmMEE

¢ FEBEETMEARARANERRITE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 B Z — T _NF+_A=+—HIFE

11

Directors’, chief executive’s and employees’
remuneration (continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for the
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The emoluments of the non-executive director and independent
non-executive directors shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

During the current year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office (2023: Same). None of the
directors has waived any remuneration during the year (2023: Same).
Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2024, three of them (2023: three) were directors of the
Company whose remuneration were disclosed above and the
remaining two (2023: two) were employees of the Group, details of
whose remuneration were as follows:

11

%%‘EﬁﬂﬁE&EEM$
&
BERAFATRAREERFERER
BZHTEEMS -

AERRARBUEREEEE BN
TEERBIFNTEEME -

RAFE  AEETEAEEIHEE
ARSI EMAREEREAMALEE
CHSABBHEE(CE =5 HR) -
REAFE BREEERETANS (=T
Z=F MR - BEZZT-_NF+ A
=t+—ALEFE AEEREZSFTALT
P ZR(CEZF ZR)BEARRE
= REIHER EXEBERBTRE (ZF
Z=F WA MAREERES  HEZE
SHBRIAT

2024 2023
—E-NE B
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET ARBETF T
Employees: BE :

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e FEMEEMEF 2,622 2,522

Retirement benefits scheme BRREFIFT B3
contributions 290 287

Performance related incentive HRIFE RS

payments — 775
2,912 3,584

FliEFEREARRAF —T-NFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 Bl Z — T _NFE+_A=+—HILFE

11 Directors’, chief executive’s and employees’ 11 EX - HFYTEREEME
remuneration (continued) (1®)
The number of the five highest paid individuals of the Group whose REBREESFATZHMN T AT
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: :
2024 2023
—ECIEF —F-=F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A N
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/%8 7t 2 1,500,0007% 7T 1 —
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/% 7t % 2,000,0007% 7T 1 2
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,001 7T 2 7,000,000 7T — 2
HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000 8,000,001% 7T 2 8,500,000 7T 2 —
HK$17,000,001 to HK$17,500,000 17,000,0017% 7t & 17,500,0007% 7T — 1
HK$19,000,001 to HK$19,500,000 19,000,0017% 7t & 19,500,0007% 7T 1 —
During the year ended 31 December 2024, no remuneration was HEZ-_WNF+-_A=+—BIFE "
paid by the Group to the two highest paid employees as an REBUVEAOMEESTEEX NS -
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation ARBIREMAREELERMAREE
for loss of office (2023: Same). ZRSABAE(CT -=F : AR) -
12 Dividends 12 RE
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of the HE-ZT-_NE+-_A=+—HILEFE "
Company during the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: nil). NN SZ S DR O SN AR

B(ZZ2==F:8)-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 B Z — T _NF+_A=+—HIFE

13 (Losses)/earnings per share

13

The calculation of the basic and diluted (losses)/earnings per share

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following

data:

(Losses)/earnings figures are calculated as follows:

BR(BER) &7

ARARHEREABRESRERREE (B
18)/BRTIREBEATBEMAE

(B18),/ BNEFHEMT :

2024 2023
—EME —E=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥EF ARETT
(Losses)/Earnings (B#R) BF
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to NAREE ANERARFE
owners of the Company (E1#8), a7l (20,105) 87,767
2024 2023
—E-F —F-=
‘000 ‘000
TR TR
Number of shares BROEE
Weighted average number of w588
ordinary shares 1,464,449 1,464,449

The diluted (losses)/earnings per share for the year ended

31 December 2024 equals to the basic (losses)/earnings per share as

there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares to issue during the

year (2023: Same).

FliEFEREARRAF —T-NFFH

HE_Z-_NF+—A=1+—HILEFEHN
BErElR (BB, BRERERER (5
8)/BF - ThEREREHE TABE ] #
BEBER(ZE_=F:8R) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 Bl Z — T _NFE+_A=+—HILFE

14 Property, plant and equipment 14 NE-BERRE
Furniture,
Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor
Buildings improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
Hh BREER
B HEVERE BERKS #fE RE @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETR  ARETT  ARBTT  ARETT  ARETR
Cost BA
At 1 January 2023 RZZ2Z=45-F-8 5,415,969 727,500 807,256 119,338 6,285 7,076,348
Additions NE - 14,661 — 2,382 — 17,043
Disposals/write-off HE/ M — (7,694) — 692) (387) (8,773)
At 31 December 2023 RZZZ=F+-A=+-H 5,415,969 734,467 807,256 121,028 5,898 7,084,618
Additions AE - 4,207 65,461 938 341 70947
Disposals/write-off HE/ M — (40,801) (6,316) (1,829) - (48,946)
At 31 December 2024 RZZ-mF+=A=1+-A 5,415,969 697,873 866,401 120,137 6,239 7,106,619
Depreciation E
At 1 January 2023 R-F-=£-f-R 869,272 700,290 179,252 56,111 3,873 1,808,798
Provided for the year FNEB 149,513 17,106 65,676 8,867 438 241,600
Disposals/write-off HE /M — (7,692) — 621) (349) (8,662)
At 31 December 2023 RZF-=#+-A=1+-A 1,018,785 709,704 244,928 64,357 3,962 2,041,736
Provided for the year FREE 132,226 19,706 67,450 8,461 484 228,327
Disposals/write-off HE /s - (40,801) (5613) (1,708) — 48,120)
At 31 December 2024 RZZZWE+-A=1-H 1,151,011 688,609 306,765 71,112 4,446 2,221,943
Net book values REFE
At 31 December 2024 W=B-mE+=A=+-H 4,264,958 9,264 559,636 49,025 1,793 4,884,676
At 31 December 2023 RZZZ=F+-A=1+-H 4,397,184 24763 562,328 56,671 1936 5,042,882
Depreciation expense for the year includes RMB228,327,000 (2023: REEZHERZIBIELRME  BERHK
RMB241,600,000) provided for property, plant and equipment, B 1EH 2 B % & %8 AR %228,327,0007T
RMB30,782,000 (2023: RMB30,782,000) provided for investment (ZZT==%: ARM241,600,0007T) * &
property (Note 16) and RMB143,768,000 (2023: RMB148,780,000) WAL 2 BB S5 AR 30,782,000
provided for right-of-use assets (Note 15). Depreciation expense of T(ZEZ=%F: AR¥30,782,0007T) (Ff
RMB91,759,000 (2023: RMB96,032,000) has been included in cost of T AR BEREEEFD 2 EESRE
sales, RMB234,723,000 (2023: RMB250,149,000) in selling and AR#143,768,00070 (ZE==F : ARHEE
distribution costs and RMB76,395,000 (2023: RMB74,981,000) in 148,780,0007T) (FizE15) - MEFRAZ AR
administrative expenses respectively. 91,759,000 (ZZE =% : AR®

96,032,0007C) EFT ASHER A - AR
234,723,000 (Z B =% : AR
250,149,0007T) B &t ASHE kD K A &
ARHET6,395000 (ZE=Z=F : AR
74,981,0007T) EFTAITB X ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 B Z — T _NF+_A=+—HIFE

15 Right-of-use assets 15 ERAREE
Land Buildings Total
T it BF et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
Cost R
At 1 January 2023, 1 January 2024 and RZZT=Z=F—HF—H -
31 December 2024 —E-MF—A—HK
—EMNE+ZA=+—H 2,197,792 2,046,163 4,243,955
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2023 RZE-_=F—HA—H 128,122 397,080 525,202
Provided for the year FREE 68,091 80,689 148,780
At 1 January 2024 R-ZB-pmE—f—H 196,213 477,769 673,982
Provided for the year FNEAE 68,076 75,692 143,768
At 31 December 2024 RZZE-_WF+-_A=+—H 264,289 553,461 817,750
Net book values REFE
At 31 December 2024 R-ZBZNFE+=A=+—H 1,933,503 1,492,702 3,426,205
At 31 December 2023 RZZ2-_=F+=-_A=+—H 2,001,579 1,568,394 3,569,973

FliEFEREARRAF —T-NFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 Bl Z — T _NFE+_A=+—HILFE

16

120

Investment property

16 REYHE

RMB'000
AREFTT
Cost R
At 1 January 2023, 1 January 2024 and RZBZ=F—A—RA ZZE-_NF-HA—AK
31 December 2024 —EoNFE+=ZA=+—H 1,297,555
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2023 R-E-_=F—H—H 35,910
Provided for the year FREE 30,782
At 1 January 2024 RZT_MF—-—HA—H 66,692
Provided for the year FNEE 30,782
At 31 December 2024 R-_Z_WMFE+-_A=+—H 97,474
Net book values BREFE
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-_NFE+=-A=+—H 1,200,081
At 31 December 2023 RZZE-_=F+-_A=+—H 1,230,863

The fair value of investment properties as at 31 December 2024 is
approximately RMB2,705,000,000 (2023: RMB3,168,000,000). The
valuation as of 31 December 2024 of the Group’s investment
properties was evaluated by the management of the Group in
reference to the valuation report as of 30 November 2024 issued by
an independent valuer, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The valuation of
the Group's investment properties as of 31 December 2023 was
determined by an independent valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle
Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited. Both Knight Frank Petty
Limited and Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory
Limited hold a recognised and relevant professional qualification
and has recent experience in the location and category of the
investment properties being valued, at open market values.

RZEZNMF+ZA=+—H "EWE
Z A FELX A AR ?2,705,000,0007T (= F
— =4 ARWE3,168,000,0007T) ¢ AEE
HEYWEBE-_T-_NF+-_A=+—H
Zﬁ@m$%lﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁmﬁ%
B EMOTBERARMEAEE
—HE+—A=ZTHMEERS Lﬂ%
B AEEREVEHE_T _=F+=
A=+—A 2 GEEB L EEMF 28T
TEFERERNERAAEE - WA=
MITERARRMEBITEET G REN
ERABIEFERURBHETEER I
P E R EEEREDE 2B R ER
EEAMME -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 B Z — T _NF+_A=+—HIFE

17 Investments in associates 17 RBERANKRE
2024 2023
—E-MF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Unlisted, at cost JEET @ KA 1,228,800 1,228,800
Discount arising on acquisition of additional RBEFEWE —EEE AR
interest in an associate in prior years BIMEREE 2 ITE 98,416 98,416
Gain arising on deemed disposal of interest AT E 7 A & —AHE &
in an associate in prior years NaliERmEE Z WS 11,297 11,297
Share of post-acquisition profits and other  FE{RULEETE 2 & F| R H A2 H
comprehensive income, net of dividends Wz HBRIEE 2,363,263 2,233,635
3,701,776 3,572,148
At 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group had interests in the RIE_NMFEFRZFB_=F+_A=+—
following major associates: H AEBER NI EZEMENRIEEER
Place/country of Proportion of nominal value
Form of business establishment/ Principal place of of issued capital/ Proportion of
Name of entity structure Egr;%atiggﬁ operation registered capital voting power held Principal activities
L0V
BEZE ¥BGERES #%/BR TEEERY BRTRA/EMBAEELH FEREELA TEER
2024 023 2024 2023
CRC@RE | CTo=F | CRORE | CTo=F
Shijiazhuang Beiguo Renbai  Incorporation PRC PRC 49% 49% 49% 49%  Investment holding of a
Group Company group of companies
Limited" ("Beiren engaging in the
Group”) (note a) operation of
department stores,
supermarkets and
property development
RFEMEARSEERE  HEMAL P s fEREE BIRYE
ARA([EARE]) BRXBIEARAY
(Fita) RERK
Beiguo Shangcheng Incorporation PRC PRC 16.05% 16.05% 16.05% 16.05%  Investment holding of a
Company Limited" group of companies
("Beiguo”) (note b) engaging in the
operation of
department stores,
supermarkets
FEERRNARAF il AV R B HEREERBHEHL
(M6 ) (B ztb) SEARZREER
Hebei Beiguo Future Mall - Incorporation PRC PRC 49% 49% 49% 49%  Retailing business in the
Company Limited" PRC
("Future Mall") (note ¢)
ALGEARRTESERE  EMAKL R B EHARETERK
ARA([ERTESE])
(G
Dragon Sign Limited Incorporation Hong Kong PRC 50% 50% 50% 50%  Investment holding of a
company engaging in
operation of
restaurants in the PRC
EREERAT oAV ik HE ERENERBEE IR
AZREER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 Bl Z — T _NFE+_A=+—HILFE

17 Investments in associates (continued)

Notes:

(@)

A

At 31 December 2024, the Group's 60% (2023: 60%) owned subsidiary,
Wingold Limited, indirectly held equity interest of 49% (2023: 49%) in Beiren
Group. The Group does not participate in the management of the

day-to-day operation of the operating entities within Beiren Group.

At 31 December 2024, ja 1L fBJR 1% & B BR A 7] (Hebei Xu Yuan Investment
Company Limited”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Wingold
Limited, and Beiren Group held direct equity interest of 16.05% (2023:
16.05%) and 73.95% (2023: 73.95%) in Beiguo respectively. Among the six
directors (2023: seven) in Beiguo, two (2023: two) directors were the
representatives of the Group. The Group does not participate in the
management of the day-to-day operation of the operating entities within

Beiguo.

At 31 December 2024, the Group's 60% (2023: 60%) owned subsidiary,
Ample Sun Group Limited, held direct equity interest of 49% (2023: 49%) in
Future Mall. In addition, 51% (2023: 51%) equity interest of Future Mall was
being directly held by Beiguo. The Group does not participate in the
management of the day-to-day operation of the operating entities within
Future Mall.

The English name is translated for identification purpose only

17 RBEQXFNRE (FH)

MEE

(a)

>

RZZE-MFE+-A=+—8 AEEHF
60% (Z T Z =% : 60%) ez 2 M B A Al HE
SERABRMEFHILAEEIIN(ZF
T A9%) B A G c AEEY T2 E
ERILASEANSETRNAEEE-

RZZ—mE+=—RB=+—H0  EL2ERA
AEE2ENBRAGTILBREEBRA
AIRILAEE DRI E1605%(ZF ==
F 16.05%) 73.95% (= F = = F :
73.95%) b RR E# R AN - FEILE A 3
NE(ZEZ=F LR)ESEEP WA
ZEC=F ME)EFALAEENRE -
AEBWA2HERBIEAANLETENAE
B

R-Z-—ME+-—A=+—H0 A&EEEE
60% (— B = =4 : 60%) s 2 B ATz
REBEERARFBBAERTEEHIO%(ZF
T 49%) EERARER o 1A - BRT
EI551% (2 Z=4F : 51%) WA# = AL
BEERE ASEETA2HEREXTE
BANEEBENBTEE-

RXAEERBF - B

The financial information in respect of the Group's associates is set EEASEBE A ZHMBERDT
out below:
2024 2023
—E_-MF R =F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTFTT
Total assets BER 16,273,811 15,082,354
Total liabilities BER gE (9,993,928) (8,954,049)
Net assets BEFE 6,279,883 6,128,305
Group's share of associates’ net assets AEBERBENREETFE 3,701,776 3,572,148
Revenue WA 8,253,986 8,384,600
Profit and total comprehensive income REZHEN LR 2E KR ER
for the year 414,157 586,786
Group's share of profit and total REBEEEBEARAFE
comprehensive income of associates w A & s R
for the year 230,698 308,939
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17

Investments in associates (continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material
associate is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the associate’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with uniform accounting policies
in conformity with those adopted by the Group.

Beiren Group is the only material associate to the Group, and it is
accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated
financial statements. The Group's equity interests in the Beiren
Group are held via certain non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Group.

Beiren Group

The principal activities of the Beiren Group are the operation of
department stores and supermarkets and property development in
the PRC. It was also engaged in auto trading business and sales
were made to three PRC companies (“the Debtors”) in prior years.
The ultimate beneficial owner of the Debtors has provided personal
guarantees over the Debtors’ outstanding amounts owing to the
Beiren Group (the “Guarantor”). During the year ended
31 December 2019, the Debtors defaulted on settlement of trade
balances due to the Beiren Group (“Trade Receivables”) and the
Beiren Group has ceased trading with the Debtors and terminated
the entire auto trading business since July 2019.

The Group was aware from public sources that the Guarantor was
detained by the relevant local authority in Hebei province in relation
to alleged illegal activities in one of his businesses. Based on public
notices issued by the local authority in Hebei, the Group noted that
all companies (including the Debtors) and assets which are located
in Hebei Province that are directly or indirectly owned by the
Guarantor (includes certain PRC-incorporated non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group, being companies holding the relevant
interest of the Guarantor in Beiren Group) have been seized by the
local authority pending investigations.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, after obtaining an
understanding from management of the Beiren Group in respect of
the actions taken to recover the Trade Receivables from the Debtors
and taking into consideration advice from the Group's external legal
advisers, the Group had concluded the likelihood of recovering any
amount from the Debtors or the Guarantor as remote and made a
loss allowance of expected credit loss, net of deferred tax credit,
against the full amount of overdue Trade Receivables due from the
Debtors (“Full Impairment”) for the purpose of recognising the
share of results of the Beiren Group for the year ended
31 December 2019.

FliEFEREARRAF —T-NFFH
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Investments in associates (continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates
(continued)

Beiren Group (continued)

The impact of this Full Impairment on the Group's share of losses of
associates, loss attributable to owners and loss attributable to
non-controlling interests for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to RMB812.4 million, RMB487.4 million and RMB325.0
million respectively, while its impact on the Group's carrying value of
the investments in associates, equity attributable to owners of the
Company and the non-controlling interests as at that date
amounted to RMB812.4 million, RMB487.4 million and RMB325.0
million respectively.

To date, the Group understood from management of the Beiren
Group that there has not been any progress made regarding their
legal actions taken against the Debtors as the criminal case against
the Guarantor taken by the relevant authority is still pending.
Management of the Beiren Group has been maintaining regular
contact with the relevant local authority regularly to follow up the
development of the case against the Debtors, however, there has
not been any concrete reply from the authority. The Guarantor is still
being detained by the relevant local authority and there has been no
additional information or development in relation to the
recoverability of the Trade Receivables due from the Debtors. As
such, there has not been any progress made in terms of recovering
the outstanding trade receivables nor able to obtain any further
financial information of the Debtors and the Guarantor. Given the
Group possess merely a non-controlling interest in Beiren Group,
the Board recognises the necessity on Beiren Group’s management
to take requisite actions to recover the Trade Receivables and the
Group has evaluated the merit of their actions taken and considered
that there is no impact to the Group's assessment of recoverability
of the Trade Receivables. In 2023, the Group obtained legal advice
from a PRC external lawyer on the recoverability of the Trade
Receivables. The PRC external lawyer considered that the likelihood
of recoverability of any balance of Trade Receivables is extremely
low. As at 31 December 2024, the Group considered that the Full
Impairment against the Trade Receivables remains as the best
estimate of the expected credit loss of the Trade Receivables based
on the information currently available and the advice of the external
lawyer.

17
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17 Investments in associates (continued) 17 REBERANKRE (&)
Summarised financial information of material associates EXBELRAZUBERNBE (B)
(continued)

Beiren Group (continued) IANEEH(E)

The Company will continue, wherever possible and practicable, to RARGEBEFTRERATZERLT &K
implement the measures and/or actions to monitor the L HITHNEREERER - BF
development of the situation, including but not limited to regular BERRAME BB A KB HFEERRRAK
communication with the major shareholder of the Beiren Group and SEETHBEESRR NEILASEE
the designation of the Group’s Chief Financial Officer to work BEEYEE - NEETEEEZERA A
closely with management of the Beiren Group. The Group will also BE EFREIAEBN%ERENIEAEER
communicate with the major shareholder of the Beiren Group, which TERRETER KA REETRE
holds 51% equity interest in the Beiren Group at the holding #oUFERMAOEFERIEASERREDN
company level, to explore and consider different options to ERIBXARIEE -

minimize any loss and damage to both of us as shareholders of the
Beiren Group.

The summarised financial information of Beiren Group: IEAEEZHMBERBTE
2024 2023
—EF B
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREF T
Current assets mENE E 8,691,500 7,786,363
Non-current assets ERBEE 7,571,509 7,285,415
Current liabilities nRBEE (8,649,128) (7,884,764)
Non-current liabilities FEmBEE (1,342,154) (1,065,574)
Net assets EEFE 6,271,727 6,121,440
Less: Non-controlling interests R FEE R A (1,035,951) (1,125,187)
Net assets attributable to owner HAEANEGLZBEEFE 5,235,776 4,996,253
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Investments in associates (continued) 17 REERRINRKRE (E)
Summarised financial information of material associates EABERNR 2B ERBE (F)
(continued)
Beiren Group (continued) IEANEEF (&)
2024 2023
—B-NEF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARBTT
Revenue WA 8,211,959 8,351,103
Profit and total comprehensive income REEHENRE2E K =B
for the year 412,866 585,432
Less: Profit and total comprehensive income & @ 3EIEREREE R FE
for the year attributable to non- A R e W AR R
controlling interests (151,184) (240,859)
Profit and total comprehensive income HEABGEARFEE a2 H
for the year attributable to owner W e 48 38 261,682 344,573
Proportion of the Group's direct ownership ~ AEBERIL A S BIZLHIEE
interest in Beiren Group = 49% 49%
128,224 168,841
Add: Further interest of certain subsidiaries Il : AEBEHEEFEZILA
of Beiren Group directly held by EEETHEBAR
the Group PR 101,829 139,421
The Group's share of profit and other REBEEGEIEASEARFE
comprehensive income of Beiren Group S ) K2 LA 2 T U a
for the year 230,053 308,262
Dividend declared from Beiren Group and ~ RFRIL ASKE KR TES
Future Mall to the Group during the year HALE 2 TIRRE 101,070 7,258
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the REFE M BMRFEREHEIASER: 2
carrying amount of the interest in the associate in respect of Beiren NEERZEEER DB ER G E
Group which recognised in the consolidated financial statements: R
2024 2023
—Z-nmEF —E=F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®F AR®EF T
Net assets of Beiren Group attributable to ~ # A AEHILAER 2
owners EEFE 5,235,591 4,996,069
Proportion of the Group's direct ownership ~ AEERIL AEBIZ LI EE
interest in Beiren Group WA Em 49% 49%
2,565,440 2,448,074
Add: Further interest of certain subsidiaries il @ ANEBEHEEFE 2L AL
of Beiren Group directly held by EETHBARME—F
the Group i 1,132,259 1,120,642
Carrying amount of the Group's interestin ~~ AEBERIL ASE R 2
Beiren Group FREIE 3,697,699 3,568,716

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2024



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) % & B 7 $& 3% M 53(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 B Z — T _NF+_A=+—HIFE

17 Investments in associates (continued) 17 REERTINRKRE (&)
Information of an associate that is not individually material BRIEERZEE RARER
2024 2023
—EMME —E=F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥EF ARBFTT
The Group's share of profit and REBE SN R EMEE
other comprehensive income Iz 645 677
Dividend declared from this associate ZHE NP2 IR E —_ 2,187
Carrying amount of the Group's interest REBENZEE DR R
in this associate ZFREE 4,077 3,432
18 Investment in a joint venture 18 R—EBEELENRE
At 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group held interest in the R -_WNEER B -_=F+_A=+—
following joint venture: H RNEBBBETIGERE 2 ER -
Proportion of
Place of nominal value of
establishment/ issued capital held Proportion of
Name of entity Form of business structure operation by the Group voting power held Principal activities
AEEMFERT
BERAB EREBER R/ Sehs  RAEELH FERERLH  ETEEH
Shanghai Joinbuy City Plaza  Sino-foreign equity joint venture PRC 50% 50% Property holding and
Co., Ltd." leasing
FENEHTESERA FHEERERHE FE MEBELEE
" The English name is translated for identification purpose only " EXHARBELSBE  EHHED
The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method of AETERERGEAR
accounting:
2024 2023
—EC-ImEF —E-=F
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBF 7 AREF
Cost of unlisted investment in a joint venture —EABREFELMREZ
BN 372,082 372,082
Share of post-acquisition losses and EIEW R 2 BB R
other comprehensive expenses, Hih2EMX - IKRKRE
net of dividends (5,461) (7,627)
366,621 364,455
HRPEREAERAE —S-NEFH 127
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Investment in a joint venture (continued) 18 R—EEELENRE (&)
The summarised financial information related to the Group's interest BHAEERAELE R s MBER
in the joint venture is set out below. The summarised financial BT - LT BERBERREEDR
information below represents amounts shown in the joint venture's ECHBHMREN 2 2FE  THRRELRE
financial statements prepared in accordance with uniform E-EBHEitRERR -
accounting policies in conformity with those adopted by the Group.
2024 2023
—ECIEF —T=-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARETTT
Non-current assets ERBEE 721,173 765,578
Current assets mENEE 152,895 142,160
Current liabilities nBAIE (140,826) (178,828)
Net assets BEFE 733,242 728,910
The above amounts of assets and liabilities ~FillEEMEBELERENA T
include the followings: HE
Cash and bank balance We RRITETT 106,196 92,698
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade  E ¢ @B & (T BEEME
and other payables) SR At AT FRIE) 105,000 145,000
2024 2023
—E-MF R =F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBFTT
Revenue WA 194,185 195,952
Profit for the year REEZH 64,630 54,476
Dividend income recognised by the Group ~ FRAREE 2R 2R EWA
during the year 30,149 22,840
The Group's share of profit and REBEEEERERIK
other comprehensive income of H 2w
the joint venture 32,315 27,238
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Investment in a joint venture (continued) 18
The above profit and other comprehensive income for the year

R—EEELRNIRE (F)
B EAEERF R E A R E M BITAT

includes the following: EA

2024 2023

—B-mE —T-=f

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥EF ARBFTT

Depreciation and amortization Yre Kk ey 37,172 37,187

Interest income Tl g A 2,580 2,022

Interest expense FMEZH 3,794 5,560

Income tax expense Fri8fiss 25,811 22,439
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the B RS B R R W HmERPHER

carrying amount of the investment in a joint venture recognised in
the consolidated financial statements:

R—EABELEMNKREZIRAENK

2024 2023
—EomE —F==
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBTTT
Net assets of the joint venture BETECEEFE 733,242 728,910
Proportion of the Group's ownership REEERRE B
interest 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group's investment  AEEBEREEDEMRE 2
in a joint venture BREE 366,621 364,455
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 19 EEZEBBEBEE (EE)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

NTREEHREBEASAMBREENZ D

financial reporting purposes: T
2024 2023
ZEZMEF —ET-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIBE = 32,586 26,081
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIAEE (75,897) (67,198)
(43,311) 41,117)

FliEFEREARRAF —T-NFFH
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Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (continued)
The followings are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the year:

Distributable
profits of PRC
subsidiaries,

19

Accelerated

BEBEEE/(BE)(H)
UTAERRZ EBREREAE LA E
SRR F R EE) -

associates and tax
a joint venture  depreciation Tax losses Others Total
HE M’JE'D\ﬁ .
m#ﬁ /‘\
ﬁAﬁu-_%Z
AAEER MmMEHERE BIEEE Hith @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFIT ARBFIT AREFIT ARETF T
At 1 January 2023 RZE=-=%F
—A—H (50,958) 5,229 4,000 (7,340) (49,069)
(Charged)/credited to profit or P (?ﬂfﬁ?)/?r)\
loss (note 9) (FF5E9) (9,839) 5,641 15,142 (2,992) 7,952
At 31 December 2023 i —
+=-ZA=+—H (60,797) 10,870 19,142 (10,332) 41,117)
(Charged)/credited to profit or RiEx (FIBR),FTA
loss (note 9) (PFF5E9) (4,432) 7,588 (5,014) (336) (2,194)
At 31 December 2024 =t
+=-A=+—H (65,229) 18,458 14,128 (10,668) (43,311)

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax at the rate ranging from 5% to
10% is imposed on dividends in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred taxation of RMB4,432,000 (2023: RMB9,839,000)
in respect of distributable profit of the PRC entities amounting of
RMB297,540,000 (2023: RMB338,852,000) has been provided during
the year ended 31 December 2024. At the end of the reporting
period, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised was RMB1,010,780,000 (2023:
RMB991,377,000). No deferred tax has been recognised in respect of
these differences because the Group is in a position to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences, and it is
probable that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

RECEMERE B2 /N\F—AF—
HEMTFEMBAR  BEARR—ME
BREMBRENZRED KRB F5%E
10%TEHR - REE_T_WFE+_A
=t+—HIEFE BPRFERTSIKEF
AR#297,540,0007C (ZE = =F : AR

338,852,0007T) B E i A R #4,432,0007T

(ZZ =% : AR¥9,6839,0007T) & iE T
PIAEHE RBEHER MBRAERD

RZRFELAME R EEREERAE
WFHIB A E - 4% A AR 1,010,780,000
7T ( =4 AR#991,377,0007T) °
U LEBLERRTMECHE A
AN 2 @75 B 7 4% R 1 = R A B ) B
M REfEEBERAE NS EA7ELNE
[ -

— =
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19 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (continued) 19 EEHRBEEE (AE)(E)

At 31 December 2024, the Group had unused tax losses of R-ZZE-_WNFE+_-_A=+—H A£EA
approximately RMB1,112,771,000 (2023: RMB992,025,000) available AEAREBEOR/RAR1,112,771,000
for offset against future profits. The unrecognised tax losses arising TT(ZEZ=F : AR¥992,025,0007T) °

from subsidiaries operated in the PRC will expire as follows: AR B RRT - P B SN E
NAEENAERRIBBBEGSR TIIE

REILIE
Tax losses expiring in HEBEIHZ2FEH

2024 2023

—EME —E=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥EF ARETT

2024 :gipﬂﬂz — 100,719

2025 —E-RF 100,894 100,894

2026 ZERF 207,217 207,217

2027 - 279,572 279,572

2028 :gij\ﬂi 303,623 303,623

2029 —T-NF 221,465 —

1,112,771 992,025
During the year ended 31 December 2024, approximately Eki:%_IEE%*H*JF*EH:iF '
RMB100,719,000 (2023: RMB127,709,000) tax losses expired. #AREE100,719,000C (ZE-=5F: AR

#5127,709,0007T) BT 1B B IE 2 2 8 -
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20 Trade and other receivables

132

20 EBWERRREAEWRRE

31 December | 31 December 1 January
2024 2023 2023
—E-NE —E-=4F

+=A +=A —E=F
=+—H =+—H —H—H
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ET R ARBFT AREFTT
*Restated *Restated
*E 7 *E 7
Trade receivables JE AR R 19,356 27,093 25,929
Lease receivables 0 & R WA 63,415 67,244 74,862
82,771 94,337 100,791

Less: Loss allowance on expected B TEEEEEEZE
credit losses BRHE (8,633) (9,148) (2,657)
74,138 85,189 98,134
Prepayments T RIE 305 299 257
Deposits paid [=ANE & 4,353 5,353 5,352
Value Added Tax (“VAT") receivable FEYRIEETR ([HEEH]) 67,900 68,670 88,457
Others receivables H b fE U R IE 60,363 62,988 46,783
132,921 137,310 140,849

Less: Loss allowance on expected B BEEEBEZE
credit losses B (22,253) (22,253) (22,253)
110,668 115,057 118,596
184,806 200,246 216,730
Less: Non-current portion B IERE I (19,930) (14,930) (6,402)
164,876 185,316 210,328

reclassification.

See note 3.2 for details regarding the restatement as a result of a

* BREN D EMSIBNEIFE - F2HK
F32-
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20 Trade and other receivables (continued)

The Group's retail sales to customers are mainly made in cash and
through debit card or third-party payment platform. Its major trade
receivables arising from third-party payment platform sales are
normally settled in one to two business days and lease receivables
are normally settled 30 days in arrears. The following is an aged
analysis of trade and lease receivables net of allowance for expected
credit losses, if any, at the end of the reporting period presented

based on invoice date:

20

FE W e =k I L fth P W R IR (4R

AEEREREHNTEREEREBR
SRIEDRIE=FART AT - K%
Bl ERMERRE — RN —EMATHE
BB E=F T 6 #ER—RK30
R P Bl 7 B B MRROE o AT R AE MR
A EEKEOE Nk B EE R RERE
(IA) BEREWARERA M2 RS

#r

2024 2023
—E-MEF =
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET ARBETF T
0-30 days OHZ=30H 53,832 67,373
31-60 days 3THZ60H 6,313 11,165
61-90 days 61HZ90H 4,114 2,637
over 90 days EBiE90 H 9,879 4,014
74,138 85,189
Movement in the provision for expected credit loss on trade ERERREREESERESD
receivables
2024 2023
—E-MmE —E=F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREEF T
At 1 January n—H—H 9,148 2,657
(Reversal of)/provision for expected credit ~ BHRBHEEEHE (BE
loss recognised B ml), B (515) 6,491
At 31 December R+—-—B=+—H 8,633 9,148

The fair value of the trade and other receivables approximates to

R U BiR k  EL Ah FEMR IR A R B AL R T

their carrying values. BRE -
21 Inventories 21 FE
2024 2023
—E-E —E-=fF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARBETIT
Merchandise held for resale BEEFEERR 97,177 93,877

FliEFEREARRAF —T-NFFH
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23

24

134

Amount due to a joint venture 22 EN-—MBEELENE
At 31 December 2024 and 2023, the amount due to a joint venture RZZE-_NMER T -_=F+_A=+—
represented accrued rental and management fee payable to a joint H  EN—EeECEZRIEREIRE
venture. The amount was unsecured, non-interest bearing and N—EEECECHERERE - LFIA
repayable on demand. RELR - CERAREREFER -
Amount due from associates 23 EWEE NRIRIE
At 31 December 2024 and 2023 the amount due from associates R _NFR-ZFB_=ZF+-_A=+—
mainly represented dividend receivables from Beiren Group, Beiguo B BUHERARRELIZERRBILASE
and Future Mall, as well as loan receivable from Beiguo which was AbBI R AR T ESOERIEE - AR
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. RELBENERER  HR®ER 28
RIARERKEFER
Cash and bank balance 24 RERBITHRF
31 December | 31 December 1 January
2024 2023 2023
—E-ME B
+=A +=H —F=F
=t+—8H =+—H —HA—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F ARETT ARETTT
Restated* Restated*
=l B
Cash and cash equivalents HehBeEEY 1,066,997 821,434 1,196,308
Bank deposits with original maturity JREIER A #2 = 18 5 &Y
over three months FITER 1,376,808 1,421,392 412,789
2,443,805 2,242,826 1,609,097
Less: Non-current bank deposits B IEREIBITFER (618,600) (553,214) (84,570)
1,825,205 1,689,612 1,524,527

At 31 December 2024, cash and bank balance carry interest at
prevailing market rates ranging from 0.35% to 4.70% per annum
(2023: 0.35% to 5.19% per annum).

See note 3.2 for details regarding the restatement as a result of a

reclassification.

Cash and bank balance was denominated in the following

N_ZE-WNE+-A=+—H BE&L MR
THEFRBETMSHETB(FRMENT
035FEZE470E)(ZZE==F : FHENTF
035 E5.19[E) o

* BREMABEMSIBNBIIFE  F2HH
F3.2°

B MIRTTEFATIEEE

currencies:
2024 2023
—EOF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBET T
RMB AR 2,276,185 2,111,407
US Dollars ("US$") ES(ES ) 97,086 91,283
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$") B (BT 70,534 40,136
2,443,805 2,242,826
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25 Structured bank deposits 25 HERMUBITER
The Group entered into structured bank deposits agreements with AREE AP B IRITA] AR I IRTT IR
the banks in the PRC. The banks guaranteed 100% of the invested ik o RITIRF100% 2R E AR FF B
principle and floating interest rate of 0.1% to 2.8% per annum with MEGF01%E2.8% * hiniEAZIEAHAR
maturity periods ranging from 21 days to 186 days specified in the R21BZE186H ©
agreements.
2024 2023
—EME —T=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥EF ARETT
Structured bank deposits ERBIRITIER 509,510 580,800
26 Trade and other payables 26 EARRRHEMENSIE
2024 2023
—E-F “EC=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥EF T AREBTFT
Trade payables FERTRRFR 52,000 45,816
Construction payables JERT T2 RRIE 13,232 3,686
Concessionaire sales payables FE R RTEMEIHE IR 390,152 425,562
Refundable prepaid card deposits AREBN RS 114,102 125,623
Rental deposits received SN ERS 232,344 221,658
Accrued expenses EsrEH 63,863 69,880
VAT payable FERIEETIA 5,553 6,937
Interest payables FET RS 3,215 3,856
Others Hib 80,853 56,338
955,314 959,356

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables date at the end

AT SRR i o HIR 3% 3% A IS R A AR 3K

of the reporting period presented based on invoice date: B RRER D AT -

2024 2023
—BoNEF —Eo=F
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETTT
0-30 days OHZ30H 48,080 36,451
31-60 days 31THZE60H 370 3,008
61-90 days 61THZE9H 1,052 1,206
over 90 days HBiE90H 2,498 5,151
52,000 45,816

The average credit period of trade payables and concessionaire FE AT BR R R JE A RF BT BB S B RRIE 2 1T

sales payables is 45 days from invoice date. The Group has financial
risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are
paid within the credit timeframe.

FliEFEREARRAF —T-NFFH

EEMANEZERAHLISE - KAEER
BRBREREEBUR - BRTE BNRIEA

REEHRASA -
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27 Bank borrowings 27 RITEE
2024 2023
—F-MF —T=F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®F T ARETTT
Bank borrowings comprise bank loans and  #R1TEE MR IRITE KA -
are analysed as: WIRA T4
Secured, variable rate and denominated BEE  FERUARE
in RMB FHE 3,238,000 3,278,000
Carrying amount repayable based on REKNFEERRS B IEE
contractual repayment dates: RERHEE
Within one year —FR 60,000 40,000
More than one year, but not exceeding —FRENERBME
two years 80,000 60,000
More than two years, but not exceeding MEREDER=4F
three years 100,000 80,000
More than three years, but not exceeding = FIREERMYEF
four years 140,000 100,000
More than four years, but not exceeding MEREIEBAF
five years 190,000 140,000
Over five years BEAF 2,668,000 2,858,000
3,238,000 3,278,000
Less: Amount due within one year shown B AARBBRER —FRA
under current liabilities F B2 K18 (60,000) (40,000)
Amount due after one year —F1EE|H 2 2B 3,178,000 3,238,000

136

Notes:

(@)

The effective interest rate of the borrowings was at 3.1%-3.7% (2023: 3.7%—

3.8%) per annum.

For detail of the pledge of assets, please refer to note 38.

Compliance with loan covenants

Under the terms of the bank borrowings, one of the subsidiaries in the

group is required to comply with the financial covenants at the end of each

annual period that it has to record positive operation cash flow and

operating income comprising of sales of goods and income from

concessionaire sales in gross amount of not less than RMB600 million for a

year.

The Group complied with the financial covenants of its bank borrowings

j:t
EI E
0 37%3.8%) °

b) AEEEEMNFE-

(© BERZH

BEERMNERENE3I%3T%(ZF==

ELBMMFE3S -

RIBRITIEENGS - AEEN—RHIBER
RAESTMB RS REAFEHER &

?Eﬁf'

o

EERSERA  UREERA (R

BEREERSAEEBEENEEN) 5F

fﬁ%&i? =

REERT27 N RIEFENTE

LIARBOBEETT -

HiRTT

during both years presented.

There are no current indication that the Group would has difficulties
complying with the above mentioned financial covenants when they are
next tested upon 31 December 2025.

fER MBI T5225 o

BRI EPRETASE TAR ST _hEF
TZAZ+—RETARN  eERET L
L T e IR B o
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28 Lease liabilities 28 HEAME
2024 2023
—E-MF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥EF ARETT
At 1 January m—A—§8 1,611,870 188,407
Addition N — 1,481,589
Less: A
Lease payments HENK (114,680) (115,824)
Interest expense HMBERX 69,340 57,698
At 31 December W+=—A=+—8 1,566,530 1,611,870
2024 2023
—E-mE —g-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F ARBT T
Within a year —FR" 51,949 45,809
More than one year, —FRETBBRF
but not exceeding five years 231,015 221,512
After five years hFE 1,283,566 1,344,549
1,566,530 1,611,870

Lease contracts are for fixed period of 20 years.

In 2024, the cash outflow related to principal elements of lease
liabilities and finance costs were RMB45,340,000 (2023:
RMB58,126,000) and RMB69,340,000 (2023: RMB57,698,000)
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group incurred
RMB30,502,000 (2023: RMB37,404,000) contingent rents which was
based on certain percentage of sales.

FliEFEREARRAF —T-NFFH

HEANREEFH20F -

RZEZNF HESaEs A S kHE
KRABEBEOESREDA ABARE
45,340,000 (ZZEZ=ZF : AR®
58,126,0007T) & A K #69,340,0007T
—F-=F: AR¥57,698,0007C) °

BE-_Z-_ME+-_A=+—RILFE "
REEREERTESLINHARES A
AR#30,502,000t (ZEZ=F : AR¥
37,404,0007T) °
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29 Contract liabilities 29 EREfE

2024 2023
—F-MF —F-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®F T ARETTT

Loyalty points under loyalty reward B AR A BT 8 BB R
programmes B 7,889 10,723
Unredeemed gift certificates KA Z &S 1,932 2,945
9,821 13,668

Loyalty points under loyalty
reward programmes
BHEBTEATHERRBES

2024 2023
—E-F —EC=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBF T ARBTT

Revenue recognised out of the contract FHEHNEETHERZLA
liabilities at the beginning of the year 13,668 9,691

138

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities recognised are as follows:

(a) Loyalty points under loyalty reward programmes
Under the Group's customer loyalty reward programmes,
customers who participate in the loyalty programmes can earn
reward point in proportion to every dollar of their spending.
For every 5,000 points earned from cosmetic products and
every 10,000 points earned from non-cosmetic products,
customers can redeem gift certificates from basic conversion
rate with face value of RMB250 and RMB50 respectively, which
can be redeemed for goods or services offered at the
department stores. Rewards points earned has an expiry
period of one year.

(b) Unredeemed gift certificates
The Group sells gift certificates to customers who redeem
them for goods and services offered at the retail premises.
The gift certificates are non-refundable and valid for one year
from the date of issue.

The Group applied the practical expedient and does not disclose
the information relating to the remaining performance obligations
that have original expected duration of one year or less.

HAMERSHNABES BB EN —RN
BIGHAT

(a) Mm%m*ngmm%mEﬁ
RAEEZ B EEET 28
BHREFECERARE T2
HESBEIZLAIRBES - EEM
btk fn 22 fn B R ER 895,000 I 3E1b
HRE T BEAY 10,0009 © AR E
REREHIEES BB AREE250
TTRARESOTT 2SS AJARE
BHEEERHEZERERTES o BE
ZHEAIN—EHEER -

(b) ARH#]2EH
AEBHERAFTEE mMBAEH
EFH?%%%HSﬁﬁ’ii%Fﬂ%T ZEm
KBRS = 185 TAHRR - WREL A
Hr—FRNER-

AEBEERERAITNEREFE &I

mHERREEAENA—ER T2 H%
TEOEEAMZAR -
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30

31

32

Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of 30 ENHEBAR—BFEZERBRERZ
subsidiaries M;IE
As at 31 December 2023 and 2024, the amount was unsecured, RIE-_=ZFR T _NF+_A=+—
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. B ZRXEAERER 2ERAREXRK
BE -
Share capital 31 RE
Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital are as follows: RABIRAZEBFHBNOT :
Number of
shares Amount
ROEE MIE
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each H R E{EO.005/8 LAY & il Ak
Authorised: SEERA
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 RZZE=Z=%—HF—H-
and 31 December 2024 —ZE=F+ZA=+—RHk
—EZNF+=ZA=+—H 4,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRBRRA
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 RN—ZE-_=%—H—A8"
and 31 December 2024 —E-=F+A=+—HK
—E-_NF+=-A=+—H 1,464,448,500 7,322
RMB'000
AREFTT
Shown in the financial statements as RMB at RZE_=FR-ZZT_MF+_A
31 December 2023 and 2024 =t AR BREAAREZ7 6,291

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during both years.

Statutory surplus reserve and capital reserve

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign
investment enterprises in the PRC, the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
are required to transfer 10% of their respective after-tax profits as
reflected in the statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries
to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches
50% of the registered capital. The statutory surplus reserve fund can
be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in
conversion into capital by means of capitalisation, provided that
such reserve fund is maintained a minimum of 25% of the registered
capital.

The capital reserve represented deemed contribution from Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited (“Lifestyle International”), a former
holding company of the Company in prior years, that certain loan
interest payables were waived by Lifestyle International and not
recharged to the Company and its subsidiaries prior to the listing of
the Company in 2016.

FliEFEREARRAF —T-NFFH

32

RREFEE - AARHEEMMEARL
BBE  DENBRARRERLHES -

EEBBRLABRERERRHE

REBEPRIMNIRELENRBER AR
BT AR RN B A RZE SR
BREPVEEM B RER T RRHBRERRR
B Z10%BBEEEERBAEEEER
WREE DM & A B50% < A FE BB NTE
SR RERABTEFENER(WWA) © 1
RBENMEBRITERRER  AIIRREZ
ERBERERBSEZMERN25% AL -

EXREARBEFENRRREEER
AE([FEBER D (KRR R ZATZERAR)
ZRIEEE - RETERNESRMN SRR
BEERR R ARRR T RFLH
I EEETARRARRENBLRR -
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33

140

Leases
The Group as lessee
The Group has recognised right-of-use assets for all leases except

HE
AEMERRBA

AEBECHAMEHENEREEE

for short-term and low-value leases. R REEEEERI -
2024 2023
—E-mE —_E_=%F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBETF T

Minimum lease payments paid for HEMAEEEREDNZ
short-term and low-value leases ®EHEERE

Leasehold land and buildings HELHRET 1,135 1,357
Other assets Ht&EE 581 622
1,716 1,979

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for

RB|ERR  AEER T RBELEHEE

future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating ZHEAEREREEERE(RREEH
leases (fixed rent only) which fall due as follows: ) BN T FEEIE

2024 2023
—EComE —E=F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBFTT
Within one year —F R 1,105 1,352
In the second to fifth year inclusive —EELF (PEERME) 836 1,440
1,941 2,792

The above commitments represent commitments for leasing FHFERRETMEEEARIMNAR

residential properties amounting to RMB1,021,000 (2023:
RMB1,719,000) and other assets amounting to RMB920,000 (2023:
RMB1,073,000).

Lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
short-term and low-value leases of residential properties and other
assets which represented machineries. Rental payables are
predetermined at fixed amounts except for certain lease of which
contingent rental are charged based on certain percentage of sales.
Leases are generally negotiated for terms ranging from one year to
three years (2023: one year to three years) and rentals are fixed for
terms ranging from one year to three years (2023: one year to three
years).

1,021,000 (ZE-_=ZF: AR

1,719,0007%) &

REMEEINARE

920,000t (ZZE Z =4 : ARK¥1,073,000

JL) °

HERBEEAEEREHIEEEHEERE
EYEREMEE (BIKR) EMZHS -

MmENz B AFREEBENTER -

BT

—LRBHEREE T B LM IR AR
SOELY - BH—RIREER—==F (=

%—:¢-
=F(=F==

F

—E2=F)KE HEEERE

—E=F)ETE -
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33

34

35

Leases (continued)

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

33 #HE (A

AEBEREEHBAA
RIMERR AEBCEABFTHNBE%R
HEMASEHRENT ¢

2024 2023

—E-NE B

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARET ARBETF T

Within one year —F R 269,223 284,524
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EERF (BIEEEWSE) 429,330 480,215
Over five years BiBAF 30,851 60,222
729,404 824,961

Leases are generally negotiated for terms ranging from one year to
eight years.

Capital and other commitments

HHO—BREBERR —EN\FiHn -

34 BEXRRHEHMEE

2024 2023
—ENE —E-=4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AREBTFT
Capital and other expenditure in respect of B F] #VMERN 4R G B E TR R
acquisition of property, plant and B2 BBBADE BB
equipment and property development RBEAREREIER 2
project contracted for but not provided in BEARRAMMZ
the consolidated financial statements 1,400 5,903

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, net
of cash and bank balance and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors of the
Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.

FliEFEREARRAF —T-NFFH

35

EXERERE

AEEERHLER  URENEER HE
BEMERELE  RSEARIEERR
AR RIS ERMREER - B E—
FREML  AREZ BEEREL EE -

AEBZEARBRERITEER - MR
ERRITEFARARREE ARG E DS
(BREHTRA  HELREEN)

ARREEEHRAERNRRE - (ERZR
AZ—H#D  ARREEEREAKA R
EREXHBEZER - REARREEZ
B AKEMEBIKMNRE  BITH
B BRI R BT EXEEARAER
AP E BB E AR
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36

142

Financial instruments 36 $RETA
Categories of financial instruments ERMIAER
2024 2023
—E-MEF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBETF T
Financial assets TRMEE
Financial assets measured at amortised EHBENATEZSREE
cost (including cash and bank balance) (BiERe RIR{THEF) 2,854,537 2,486,884
Financial assets measured at fair value BEATEFAER
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") — (MEAFEFTAER]
Structured bank deposit ZemEE — EBE
HRITIF K 509,510 580,800
3,364,047 3,067,684
Financial liabilities £ N=Ri
Financial liabilities measured at amortised RHEN AR o RAaE
cost 5,813,050 5,906,071

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include cash and bank
balance, bank deposits, trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables, amount due to a joint venture, amount due to a
non-controlling shareholder of subsidiaries, bank borrowings and
amount due from associates. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Currency risk
The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
operating in the PRC is RMB, in which most of its transactions are
denominated. The functional currency of the subsidiaries operating
in Hong Kong is HK$, in which most of the transactions are
denominated.

The Group has certain foreign currency denominated bank balances
at the end of each reporting period and details of which are
disclosed in respective notes.

BB REEER I REE
FEBTEZEeRMIABRRE RRITHA
7 RITHE R FE YR 3R R 8 R
B BARRREMEN R - BN
EEFIE  BNMEAR—RIFER

Hx%ZMIﬁ RITREE LA R B E A7)

B-ZEemIAFBES MR
EEE c BN E T AR Z AR KRIES
BERZBREN T - EEEGEER
B H B - DARE (R I B B U R ER
HERE -

Brmpg
ARRERPEEENHB AR ZIEE
BRARYE  BRRIEDRHUAARKEE

B -REBLENNBRARICNEEER
BT EEII:F‘j(_LB/_\/\%J’/{/%TE:DﬁO
qHE miﬁiﬁﬂﬂi Zliﬁlﬁ :FQ\\%EJME
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36 Financial instruments (continued) 36 €WMIA(E)

FRTERERRAF

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The Group is mainly exposed to currency risk of US$ and HKS$. The
carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated

T EER (F)

Bwmp (&)

AEEXrZEHEXTRETHBEERA
NE|EMR  NEBINEFEE

monetary assets at the end of each reporting period are as follows: MEEREMBENT :
2024 2023
—E-MF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥EF ARETT
Assets BE
US$ ETT 97,086 91,283
HK$ BT 70,534 40,136
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging 7N £ B 3R IR 30 A HNES ST R BUR B
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange B2 g B NE [E by IE/\\H‘EEE?%E%‘T

exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change of 5% (2023: 5%) in exchange rate of US$ and HK$
against RMB, while all other variables are held constant. 5% (2023:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to the key management personnel and represents the
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of each reporting period for a 5%
(2023: 5%) change in foreign currency rate. A positive number below
indicates an increase in profit for the year where RMB weakens
against the relevant foreign currency. Where RMB strengthens
against the relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit for the year and the amounts below
would be negative.

R INEE R

TRANAEBRETEBTHAARKEZ
PERAGE RN (C T - =F :5%) A~
BB P A AL B B R TR 2 B
B 5% (ZT_=%: 5%)7%1% BAR

MERFE RIS BB P A 2 UK - W RE
BEHIMEERATRES T “@JZ&H& &

BRESTERBARALBINEIEEER
E WRERERARZS% (ZE-=F:
5%) INEERBEBHERE - ARKERL
BRASMNET B BINRAS 2 EBRRF
PR AR AR S BRSNS L7t
AleHFNRENEERFERR 2EE -
ATERMINBFHREE -

2024 2023
—E-NEF =

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBT R AR¥ETFTT

US$ against RMB ETHARYKE 3,641 3,423
HK$ against RMB BT HARE 2,645 1,505

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

—E-MEER

ERERR - BANFEE 2RI R R

FRER
FEE LB -

R E 3 i AR BB S
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36

144

Financial instruments (continued)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate bank deposits (2023: fixed-rate bank deposits). The Group
is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk relating to the Group's
variable-rate bank borrowings (2023: variable-rate bank borrowings).
The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

The Group's sensitivity to cash flow interest rate risk has been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
borrowings at the end of the reporting period and the reasonably
possible change taking place at the beginning of each year and held
constant throughout the year. A 50 basis points (2023: 50 basis
points) increase or decrease is used for variable-rate balances when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. The Group's sensitivity to interest
rate risk at the end of the reporting period while all other variables
were held constant after taking into account the impact of the tax
and finance costs are as follows:

36 €@TI A (H&)

@ T AEER (&)

FIE @

7R 62 [ T 5 B B 5E R R ERIT 7 k2 R R
MERB(ZEZ=F: BFMNXRTHF
) o REBETEE RS REMN KRR - Ty
BERASBEIHNRRTEE( T =
FOFBNERRITER) - AEERKILE
EAIRIEREREE - A BRESER
MEER - WRFEEEHEZEHHEAMNE
[\ -

AEBEHRERENXER 2 HBZE - Ty
RENBERRBITEENTER - AR
REFFONAIRABERNESHETE - A
REFEFTE -ERNIEEEASAMR
PEIRA R K - SOEER (ZT =%
SOfEIER) 38 hnskm 2 RIF B4k -
REEBHNERAGEABEHONGE - &
FRAEMB R R T - EEEHENE
BRANTER AKRERSHREHRY
MEREBRERERT

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE

2024 2023

—EOF —F-=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T R AREFT

(Decrease)/increase in post-tax profit FERBRBEEF ORL), i

for the year

— as a result of increase in interest rate — HBRFIE EF (12,143) (12,293)

— as a result of decrease in interest rate — HRFIER TR 12,143 12,293
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36

Financial instruments (continued)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at
31 December 2024 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Trade receivables and lease receivables

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has formulated a defined
fixed credit policy and delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. The Group's retail sales are mainly on cash basis,
either in cash, debit card or third-party payment platform. The
Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 on trade receivable and lease receivables
balances individually or based on provision matrix.

For the credit-impaired trade receivables, reversal of impairment
loss of RMB515,000 (2023: an impairment loss of RMB6,491,000) was
made during the year ended 31 December 2024. The following table
shows the movement in loss allowance that has been recognised for
trade receivables under the simplified approach.
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MEERERKERMS  EREZE-Z
TMFE+-—A=+—BItFEEELARE
515,0007C 2 R BEEEER (Z T = =F :
AR¥6,491,000C ZREERE) - TRE7
R IEAE A 77 =0 B P MR BR FRFE R 2 518

ECL

EHEERE

RMB'000

ARETTT

As at 1 January 2023 RZEZ=F—H—H 2,657
— change in expected credit losses —EHEEBEEZS 6,491
As at 31 December 2023 RZFZ=F+=ZA=+—H 9,148
— change in expected credit losses — EHEEEEY (515)
As at 31 December 2024 RZZE-_WNF+_A=+—H 8,633
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Financial instruments (continued)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Other receivables

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9. The Group assessed the 12-month ECL for other
receivables individually as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 and
considered that impairment allowance on other receivables (not
credit impaired) to be insignificant and thus negligible to be
provided by the Group based on the low probability of default on
those counterparties based on historical credit loss experience. The
management has also assessed all available forward looking
information, including but not limited to the economic outlook of
the PRC and subsequent settlement of the debtors, and concluded
that the credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding other
receivables is insignificant.

Bank deposits and bank balances

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with credit ratings of B or above assigned by international
credit-rating agencies. For the year ended 31 December 2024 and
2023, the Group performed impairment assessment on bank
balances and concluded that the probability of defaults of the
counterparty banks are insignificant and accordingly, no allowance
for credit losses is provided. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk in relation to trade and other receivables,
with exposure spread over a number of counterparties and
customers.

Amount due from an associate

Management consider they do not have significant credit risk due to
the past payment history and also taking into account of the sound
financial performance and position of the associate to meet
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. No impairment
had been provided under 12-month expected credit loss
assessment.

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and bank balance deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the
utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. Details of bank borrowings are set out in note 27.
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36 Financial instruments (continued) 36 €WMIA(E)
Categories of financial instruments (continued) SRT AEER (#)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBEL R (E)
Based on the above, the management of the Company considers ER bt RAREREERRAEE L &
the Group does not have any significant liquidity risk and it will be ERIERTGBE @ R - WASREHEITH
able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due in the AT R MR RE M B R -
foreseeable future.
In addition, the following table details the Group's remaining B TRFAVNAREEETE SR B ER
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The TEREHPE - TRIVRBAREET B
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted gross cash ERBRHFAE  NemaE I
flows of financial liabilities based on earliest date on which the RINEMEBAERY - TREHIIFER
Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and reRENE
principal cash flows:
Weighted
average On demand/ Total
effective less than 1to3 3 months to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month months 1year 1to5years Over5Syears  cashflows amount
nETHE  RER/ FERRE
EWAE -@ANK -ZZfiR Z@AZ-% -E2nf  EBEF  REAH REE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARNTR ARMTR ARMTR ARET:R
31 December 2024 ZZ-PE+t=A=t-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities FITECRER
Trade and other payables JERERS RE MR — 949,761 - - - - 949,761 949,761
Amount due to a non-controlling ERMBAR-BIERRRZ
shareholder of subsidiaries A - 26,142 - - - - 26,142 26,142
Bank borrowings — variable rate BITHRE —FBHFE 3.10-3.70 - 30,238 115,309 836,736 3,391,025 4,373,308 3,238,000
Amount due to a joint venture ER-RaEREHE - 32,617 - - - - 32,617 32,617
Lease liabilities HERE 430 9,182 18,365 82,640 409,675 1,127,175 1,647,037 1,566,530
1,017,702 48,603 197,949 1,246,411 4518200 7,028,865 5,813,050
Weighted
average  On demand/ Total
effective less than 1103 3months to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month months Tyear  Tto5years OverSyears  cashflows amount
mETS  REY FERAE
ERfE  —@ANA —-2=@A =ZEAZ-F -21F HBRF LS SHfE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARMTT ARBTR ARETT AR%TT AR¥TL ARETR
31 December 2023 ZR-ZFtZA=t-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities FITECHER
Trade and other payables R REMENTIR — 952,419 — - - - 952,419 952,419
Amount due to a non-controlling e B R R — B BERERE
shareholder of subsidiaries FE — 26,142 - - - - 26,142 26,142
Bank borrowings — variable rate ROEE—FHFE 3.70-3.80 — 30238 130,531 836,736 3,391,025 4,388,530 3,278,000
Amount due to a joint venture ER-FaErERA - 37,640 - - - - 37,640 37,640
Lease liabilities HERE 430 9,182 18,365 82,640 409,675 1127175 1,647,037 1,611,870
1,025,383 48,603 21317 1,246,411 4,518,200 7,051,768 5.906,071
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36 Financial instruments (continued) 36 €WMIA(E)
Categories of financial instruments (continued) SRITEER (F)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBELERE (&)
The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments WF B P REENREAREBEE 2 F =
for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes BETER - EXRIFETESRBEZIZD
in variable interest rates differ from those estimates of interest rates FETABEZSRERELIRES -

determined at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments ERMIAZATETE

(a)  Fair value hierarchy (a) R FEZR
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair TRUBEESTRATEIIERZ
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been TRIE  SERINET :

defined as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for o HREEXAFEZERTISMR
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). B CRIEHAE)(E—H) -

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 o HREmEGIASZ—F) N &
that are observable for the asset or liability, either EBEzEES MR
directly or indirectly (level 2). BABE (B4 -

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on o W IR IR AT B T IS 8RS T
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) ZEES B ERAZSUE (BT
(level 3). ATBRE AR (E=/) -

Financial Assets Fair values as at December 31 Fair value hierarchy

CREE Rt+t=A=+—BZA¥E DNFEER

Structured bank deposits 2024: RMB509,510,000 Level 2

(2023: RMB580,800,000)
REIBMIRITER —ZmF - AR¥509,510,0007T FER

(ZZ= =4 : AR¥580,800,0007T)

(b)  Valuation techniques used to determine fair value (b) EER-FEAFEGELE
The fair values of structured bank deposits are determined by ERBERITERO A FEERA
valuation techniques that use observable inputs such as the BReASE (WEX - REEBER
exchange rate, stock index and commodity prices that are EmER) NEERTEE - %56
observable at commonly quoted intervals. ABBER—RREREAEE -
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37 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing 37 HBEETBELENEBYHER

activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising TRAVNAEEREMEETDHEENEE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. 28 AEReRIEREH HMEZTH
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash EXNEESEDANEAEEFERS
flow were, or future cashflows will be classified in the Group's MEXRFIELAMETH IREMNE °

consolidated statement of cash flows from financing activities.

Amount
due to a non-
controlling
Bank Interest Lease shareholder of
borrowings payables liabilities subsidiaries Total
EAHELR
BITRE EAFE HERE HFERBRRITE s
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT AR®FT
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE=-=F—A—H 2,240,000 2,940 188,407 26,142 2,457,489
Interest on bank borrowing RITEEFIE — 124,240 — — 124,240
Interests on lease liability HEAEFS — — 57,698 — 57,698
Addition R 3,300,000 — 1,481,589 — 4,781,589
Financing cash outflow BREZHRE L (2,262,000) (123,324) (115,824) — (2,501,148)
At 31 December 2023 RZBZZF+-A=+—H 3278000 3,856 1,611,870 26,142 4,919,868
At 1 January 2024 RZZ-_WMF—-A—H 3,278,000 3,856 1,611,870 26,142 4,919,868
Interest on bank borrowing RITEER S — 117,576 — — 117,576
Interests on lease liability HEAEFE — — 69,340 — 69,340
Financing cash outflow BREEBHREN (40,000) (118,217) (114,680) — (272,897)
At 31 December 2024 RZZE-ZmFE+=A=+—H 3,238,000 3,215 1,566,530 26,142 4,833,887
38 Pledge of assets 38 EEKEH
As at 31 December 2024, certain of the Group's (i) property, plant RZZZWFE+_A=+—R A£EEZ
and equipment in the PRC with a book value of approximately EHEETOURPRZYE  BE&&
RMB3,529 million (2023: RMB3,631 million) and (ii) right-of-use assets B FEEEELHAAREISBEETL(Z
in the PRC with a book value of approximately RMB1,518 million T_=F ARB3631E&T) KR
(2023: RMB1,569 million) were pledged to secure bank loan facilities FEZEREEE  FABENAARE
with outstanding balances of approximately RMB3,238 million (2023: 1518BE L (ZEZ=F : AR¥1,5698
RMB3,278 million). B ERRITERRE - HAREERE
HR/ARBI2BEET(ZZE_=F: A
R¥3278E&T) °
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150

Related party disclosure
Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related

39

BEALRE

RAMBRREMEOBESIN -
HEEATETUNTIORS

RE

=]
parties:
(a) Transactions (@ X3
During the year, the Group had entered into the following FR - REEETHEATET
significant transactions with the following related parties. THNEBRRS °
2024 2023
—E-MF —E=F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETTT
Nature of related party transactions: ~ B:E A T SHIIEH
Variable lease payment expenses and X {JF—RH&&EE A&
management fee to a joint venture ENFFEXRERE 73,564 76,328
Repayment of lease liabilities to a mM—HAELEEERERE
joint venture (including principal (BERE RHEHH)
and interest elements) 114,680 115,824
Rental expenses and management fee 2R B —fAllii & A FHIHS
from an associate LREBE 7,879 6,295
All of the above transactions with related parties were FiE L BEEEATHR AR
conducted in the ordinary course of the business of the Group SEBREBBETREBEEUSA
based on the terms mutually agreed between the relevant H R TE BV IR FETT ©
parties.
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b)y EEEBASHM

The remuneration of the executive director, being the key
management personnel, was determined by the remuneration
committee of the Company having regard to the performance
of the individuals and market. Details of which together with
the other two (2023: two) highest paid employees are
disclosed in note 11 above.

WITESIEATEEEAB ZFHH
RHEARRBHFWNE 8 2 RIEMEAF
MBERIBMET - HFBERE
MB(ZZEZ=F WMB)=mHE
B HBEER EXMF11H#E -
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40

FRTERERRAF

Retirement benefits schemes

Hong Kong

The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme under
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”). Both the
Group and the employee contribute 5% of the employee’s relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
for the MPF ordinance. No forfeited contribution was available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

PRC

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
respective local governments in relevant jurisdictions. The Group is
required to contribute and recognise a specified percentage of
payroll costs to the schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligations of the Group with respect to these schemes are to make
the specified contributions and recognise the respective retirement
pay in accordance with terms set out in the schemes and relevant
jurisdiction requirements.

The total cost charged to profit or loss in respect of the

abovementioned schemes during the year amounted to
approximately RMB20.9 million (2023: RMB21.2 million).

—E-MEER
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41 Particulars of principal subsidiaries

At 31 December 2024 and 2023, the details of the Company's

principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(a) General information of subsidiaries

Place/Date of incorporation/

Issued and fully paid share capital/

41 FEMEBARFE
R -NER T -_=F+=-H=+—
B ARAIZEEMEBEARFBOT
(a) KHEBRAAN—MRER

Attributable equity interest

Name of company establishment and operation registered capital of the Group Principal activities
ERRL/BIR
kR EEHY/AH BEARAR/ERBA AREELRR ITER
2024 223 2024 2023
—RopE ka2 It 13 TRZE
Ample Sun Group Limited (*Ample Sun”) Hong Kong HK$62,050,000 HK$62,050,000 60% 60%  Investment holding
17 August 2007
HEREEERAT(ER]) 3 62,050,000 % 6205000077 RARK
“ERtENATLR
Lifestyle Plaza (Dalian) Co,, Limited™*" PRC US$45,000,000 1S$45,000,000 100% 100%  Dormant
9 October 1993
HREE (RE) BRAF hE 45,000,000% 7 45000000570 Fx
“ANZETANA
Lifestyle Plaza (Suzhou) Co., Limited* PRC RMB1,071,072,800 RMB1,071,072,800 100% 100%  Retaling business
1 March 2007
HRES BN ARAR™ hE ARH ARE TERK
“TTrE-F-H 1,071,072,8007 1,071,01280070
LiYi Da Commercial and Real Estate (Shanghai) PRC RMB3,249,429,232 RMB3,09,849,779 100% 100%  Retaling business and
Company Limited™** 23 April 2012 property development
FllhEBsEE (L) ERAR GilET ARH ARE SEXBRNRER
“F-ZEMA-T=R 3,249,429,232 70 3096,849,7797C
Shanghai Li Hai Chao Commercial Company PRC RMB52,000,000 RMB15,000,000 100% 100%  Retaling business
Limiteg™*" 31 March 2012
LEREREEERAR HE AR#52,000,0007% ARE15,0000007 TEER
Z%-Z5=f=1-A
Shanghai Ongoing Department Store Limited* PRC U5$12,000,000 15$12,000,000 65% 5% Retailing business
("Shanghai Ongoing") 26 July 2004
PEAXAERRLA( LEAR)) hE 12,000,000% % 1200000057 TERK
TMELAZT7A
Shenyang Chuk Yuen Company Limited**" PRC RMB710,090,392 RMB710,090,392 100% 100%  Dormant
1 December 2006
EBERELARAT™ GilET ARH ARE %
ZEERETZA-H 710,090,392 7100903927
Wingold Limited ("Wingold") Hong Kong HK$10,000 HK$10,000 60% 60%  Investment holding
20 April 2007
FEERAR (%)) Bk 10,000%7 10,0007 ALK
ZERLERACTH

* a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC.
*k

wholly foreign-owned enterprises established in the PRC.

The English name is translated for identification purpose only

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
at the end of both reporting periods.
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41 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued)

41 FEMBEQEFE (E)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (continued) (a) HMEBLAAN—RER (&)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, P RINHESZRAEEZER
in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results or SEEXBENEECARANMEBR
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries Al BEERA - REHEMMELRE
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of HeE8YFBBE -
excessive length.
(b) Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has (b) HEERFERERNIZENS
material non-controlling interests ARINFE
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TRINTHEEEARFIERERHAE
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling SEFZEMBRRINE
interests:
Proportion of ownership interest
Name of Place of incorporation and and voting rights held by Profit allocated to Accumulated
company principal place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
A 3L 3t B R FERERREE
ARER TEEEBY RARRERELH BT HFERERHEF Rt FRRER
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F —E-NE —Eo=E —E-NE —EC-=F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBFT ARBT T ARBFT
Wingold Hong Kong 40% 40% 79,673 108,266 1,319,783 1,240,111
e BB
Shanghai PRC 35% 35% 46,520 65,368 100,179 119,583
Ongoing
iRV S hE
Ample Sun Hong Kong 40% 40% 12,968 14,148 271,233 258,264
#wR B
139,161 187,782 1,691,195 1,617,958

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is set
out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

FliEFEREARRAF —T-NFFH
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41 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued) 41 EEWEARFE (&)
(b) Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has (b) BEERFERERNIZEMNES
material non-controlling interests (continued) AT FE ()
(i)  Wingold (i) #=£
2024 2023
—E-MF T =F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARETTT
Current assets MENVE E 215,226 204,373
Non-current asset FERBEE 3,115,152 2,926,820
Current liabilities mEEE (4,873) (4,873)
Non-current liabilities FERBAG (26,042) (26,042)
Net assets EEAE 3,299,463 3,100,278
Less: Non-controlling interests W IR R (1,319,783) (1.240,111)
Equity attributable to owners of RARGER AR GER
the Company 1,979,680 1,860,167
Income A 199,189 270,670
Expenses Fx (6) (6)
Profit and total comprehensive REERNEEEYE
income for the year R 199,183 270,664
Profit and total comprehensive RRARGER AERRT
income attributable to owners of Ra2mEasE
the Company 119,510 162,398
Profit and total comprehensive FEFE AR HE am FE AR e ) J2
income attributable to the non- FH AR
controlling interests 79,673 108,266
Profit and total comprehensive REE R R2E K
income for the year Fk) 199,183 270,664
Net cash inflow from operating K REMEENES
activities MAFEE 6 —
Net cash inflow from investing REESEENR S
activities MAHER — —
Net cash inflow from financing METHAEANRS
activities AR — —
Net cash inflow REMAFEE 6 —
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41 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued) 41 FTEMNBATFE (&)
(b) Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has (b) HEERFERERNIZENES
material non-controlling interests (continued) NEIWFE (E)
(i)  Shanghai Ongoing (i) LERE
2024 2023
—E-NE —E=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥EF ARBFT
Current assets mENE E 835,163 855,808
Non-current assets EnREBEE 1,499,516 2,456,178
Current liabilities mEBaE (533,871) (614,507)
Non-current liabilities EnEatE (1,514,581) (2,355,811)
Net assets BEEFE 286,227 341,668
Less: Non-controlling interests T JEIERAR RE (100,179) (119,583)
Equity attributable to owners RARER ABEER
of the Company 186,048 222,085
Income A 804,871 871,336
Expenses -3 (671,957) (684,570)
Profit and total comprehensive REERMNEEEKE
income for the year 4z 132,914 186,766
Profit and total comprehensive RARGER ARG RT
income attributable to owners of PR G e
the Company 86,394 121,398
Profit and total comprehensive FEVE AR i 2 FE A R M) f2
income attributable to the non- THENRRE
controlling interests 46,520 65,368
Profit and total comprehensive REE R R 2 ER
income for the year Fiak] 132,914 186,766
Net cash inflow from operating KETHMEENTRS
activities MAFRR 258,430 115,194
Net cash inflow from investing REEHMEENERS
activities A ERE 10,770 16,555
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from METHMEENRS
financing activities Gr),/mAE R (303,034) 15,140
Net cash (outflow)/inflow BE R,/ mAFE (33,834) 146,889

FliEFEREARRAF —T-NFFH
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41 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued) 41
Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has

156

(b)

TEMEARFEE (&)
(b) WEEAFZRBEENEZEMNE

material non-controlling interests (continued) AT FE ()
(i) Ample Sun (i) #= R
2024 2023
—E-WEF T =4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET R ARBEF T
Current assets MENEE 261,392 7,459
Non-current assets ERBEE 435,425 642,212
Current liabilities mEEE (18,734) (4,0006)
Net assets BEFE 678,083 645,665
Less: Non-controlling interests o IR AR R R (271,233) (258,264)
Equity attributable to owners RARHER AR GER
of the Company 406,850 387,401
Income A 32,679 37,597
Expenses X (258) (2,228)
Profit and total comprehensive REERENEEEYE
income for the year e 32,421 35,369
Profit and total comprehensive RRARGEA AERRT
income attributable to owners of PERTR gy 2k
the Company 19,453 21,221
Profit and total comprehensive FEFE AR M o FE AR e ) K2
income attributable to the non- 2H KRR
controlling interests 12,968 14,148
Profit and total comprehensive REERMNREEY =
income for the year PR 32,421 35,369
Net cash inflow from operating KEEEESANRE
activities MAEE 16,282 6
Net cash inflow from investing REESEENR S
activities MAHEE 61,740 —
Net cash outflow from financing METHREANRS
activities mHFRR (77,947) —
Net cash inflow ReRAFRE 75 6
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)

for the year ended 31 December 2024 B Z — T _NF+_A=+—HIFE

42 Statement of financial position and reserves of 42 NRI MR R R #E
the Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the EHHR - RARBMEIRARERBE
Company at the end of the reporting period includes:
2024 2023
—E-MEF =%
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBFTT
Non-current assets EnREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries AN EERNGIE 6,614,691 6,800,649
Amounts due from a subsidiary (note a) Uy — R B B R RIF B
(KisEa) 254,751 —
6,869,442 6,800,649
Current assets mENE E
Other receivables H Ath & R IE 494 299
Amounts due from a subsidiary JE W — eI B B8 2 RISk 3A
(note b) (FisEb) 8,622 278,181
Cash and bank balance e RIRITET 177,288 1,218
186,404 279,698
Current liabilities nEBaE
Other payables Hth &< FRIE 24,941 22,166
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note c) FEASTB /B A A ZR B (i 3Ec) 291,246 291,246
Tax payable JE# 1A 563 577
316,750 313,989
Net current liabilities mEBEFE (130,346) (34,291)
6,739,096 6,766,358
Capital and reserves ERRFEE
Share capital [N 6,291 6,291
Reserves & 6,732,805 6,760,067
6,739,096 6,766,358
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 Bl Z — T _NFE+_A=+—HILFE

42

158

Statement of financial position and reserves of
the Company (continued)

Movement of the equity of the Company is as follows:

42 AR FMBRR KRR FHE ()

ARTREELDIT -

Share Merger Retained
premium reserve profits Total
IR 135 E BOHEE & A E Y
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARBTRT AR®TRr ARETET
At 1 January 2023 W-E—=&—Hf—H 6,543,132 480 231,753 6,775,365
Loss and total comprehensive ZARNF[EEIE N2 H
expenses for the year ISk — — (15,298) (15,298)
At 31 December 2023 R_F_=F+_A
=+—H 6,543,132 480 216,455 6,760,067
Loss and total comprehensive ANFEEERE2EEZ L
expenses for the year Rk — — (27,262) (27,262)
At 31 December 2024 RZZEBZME+ A
=+—H 6,543,132 480 189,193 6,732,805
Notes: B 5T -

(a) The amounts due from a subsidiary included amount of RMB78,000,000
(2023: RMB78,000,000) and RMB176,751,000 (2023: RMB172,968,000), which
were unsecured, carried fixed interest of 3.30% (2023: 3.50%) and 3.30%
(2023: 3.50%) per annum, and repayable in March 2027 and June 2027
respectively.

(b) The amounts were unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable within

twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

(c) The amounts due to subsidiaries were unsecured, non-interest-bearing and

repayable on demand.

(a) JE S B BB A R IR B 3R AR #78,000,0007T
—T - =4F : AR¥78,000,0007T) AR
¥176,751,000 L (Z T Z=F : ARM
172,968,0007T) - H I - 5 5l LA TE F
MZEIE (T = =4 :3.50F) %3.30E
ZEZ=F:350E)FE WESRINRZ
E_+FZARE-_LFNAEBE-

b)  EEFAREEIN 8 RANSRE AL
TEARNEE -

© ERHEATREAEER  LARAKE
SHEEE -
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Five-Year Group Financial Summary

T FEEETERE

Results

For the year ended 31 December

HE+_A=T—HILFE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-mE —B-=fE - —F-- ZZTZ%F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFL AREFL AREFL AREFI
Revenue WA 1,252,612 1,348,975 1,127,588 1,299,736 1,124,020
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners AREERE AEE
of the Company wAl/ (E18) (20,098) 87,767 (24,441) 143,393 212,748
(Losses)/earnings per share (RMB) R (BR)/BIARE)
— Basic —HK (0.014) 0.060 (0.017) 0.098 0.145
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
At 31 December R+—-A=+—H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-m&E —E-=HE —E-- —E-—F kg 3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFL AREFL AREFL AREFL
Total assets BELE 16,993,935 17,036,933 14,448,660 15,032,372 14,589,901
Total liabilities BlEEE 5,924,258 6,020,395 3,649,796 4252026 4,058,202
Net assets BEFE 11,069,677 11,016,538 10,798,864 10,780,346 10,531,699
Non-controlling interests FERER 1,691,195 1,617,958 1,488,071 1,445,289 1,340,336
Net assets attributable to owners ARREE NERL
of the Company BEFE 9,378,482 9,398,580 9,310,793 9,335,057 9,191,363
Net assets per share (RMB) FREEFE(ARY) 7.56 7.52 7.37 7.3 7.19
Net assets per share attributable to FRAHE AEGER
owners of the Company (RMB) EEFE(ARE) 6.40 642 6.36 637 6.28
Number of shares issued BETRHHE 1,464,448500 | 1464448500 1464448500 1464448500  1,464,448500

FIEPEKEARLE —FT-_NFFR
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Particulars of Major Property

ETEMEFR

Gross floor area
(ground and

Attributable
interest to the

Address above) Existing use Group Lease term
BEEEE AEE
1 31k (ER L) BEEAR PEAL RS HEFH
sq.m.
5%
Investment property No. 1-2, Lane 2218, 78,987 Office leasing 100% Medium
Gonghexin Road,
Jing'an District,
Shanghai, PRC
REME hE EETmRRER HERAE h Hf

HE 22187 1-25%
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L1fest le China Group Limited
Fl f8 b B4 AR A

Lifestyle China Group Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
20/F., East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

ANEFERESRAF
(RBIS RS EMAIMBRAT)
BB e HE5555
RARL2018

Tel E5E: (852) 2833 8338

Fax{&E&: (852) 2838 2030

Email : info@lifestylechina.com.hk
www.lifestylechina.com.hk
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